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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
Coverall North America, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) d/b/a Coverall® 

350 SW 12th Avenue 
Deerfield Beach, Florida 33442 

|1-800-537-3371 
www.coverall.com

The Franchised Business will operate a commercial cleaning franchise utilizing our Coverall® Program. 

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Coverall franchised business is $17,917 to $62,908 depending on the 
package size you choose. This includes $16,560 to $42,870 that must be paid to the franchisor or its affiliates. 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other information in plain English. 
Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. You must receive this disclosure at least 14 
calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection 
with the proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained 
in this document. 

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. This disclosure 
document is available electronically in Adobe Acrobat PDF format through a link from DocuSign sent via email. 

The terms of your contract ("Franchise Agreement") will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the disclosure 
document alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this disclosure 
document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you make up your mind. 
More information on franchising, such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying a Franchise," which can help you understand 
how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877- 
FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the 
FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov for additional information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other 
sources of information on franchising. 

There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them. 

This disclosure document is issued as of March 26, 2024 
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to find more 
information: 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 
How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs, 

profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this 
information from others, like current and former 
franchisees. You can find their names and contact 
information in Exhibit E. 

How much will I need to invest? Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor 
or at the franchisor's direction. Item 7 lists the initial 
investment to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you must 
use. 

Does the franchisor have the financial 
ability to provide support to my 
business? 

Exhibit  B includes financial statements.  Review 
these statements carefully. 

Is the franchise system stable, 
growing, or shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of 
company-owned and franchised outlets. 

Will my business be the only Coverall 
business in my area? 

Item 12 and the "territory" provisions in the franchise 
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other 
franchisees can compete with you. 

Does the franchisor have a troubled 
legal history? 

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its 
management have been involved in material litigation or 
bankruptcy proceedings. 

What's it like to be a Coverall 
franchisee? 

Exhibit E lists current and former franchisees. You can 
contact them to ask about their experiences. 

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you should look for. 
Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure 
document to better understand this franchise opportunity. 
See the table of contents. 
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally 

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even if you are 
losing money. 

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change its manuals 
and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to make additional investments 
in your franchise business or may harm your franchise business. 

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited group of 
suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than similar items you could 
buy on your own. 

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business 
during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some examples may include 
controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, how you market, and your hours of 
operation. 

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the franchisor 
may have the right to compete with you in your territory. 

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may have to sign 
a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to operate your franchise 
business. 

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a similar business 
after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord or other creditors. 

Some States Require Registration 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register before 
offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state recommends the 
franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if your state has a registration 
requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency information in Exhibit C. 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be made to your 
franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for 
the location of the State Specific Addenda. 
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 

1. The franchise agreement requires that all disagreements be resolved by binding arbitration and 
not in a court of law. This means that you agree you are not eligible for trial by jury in a court of 
law and you further waive the right to proceed as a class action. The arbitration will occur in the 
area in which franchised business conducts its business with the costs being shared equally by 
franchised business and Coverall. 

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the "State Specific Addenda" (if any) to 
see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted. 
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MICHIGAN FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW: 

The state of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in franchise documents. If any of the following 
provisions are in these franchise documents, the provisions are void and cannot be enforced against you. 

(a) A prohibition on the right of a franchisee to join an association of franchisees. 

(b) A requirement that a franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or estoppel which deprives a 
franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude a franchisee, after entering into a franchise 
agreement, from settling any and all claims. 

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its term except for good 
cause. Good cause shall include the failure of the franchisee to comply with any lawful provision of the franchise agreement 
and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be 
more than 30 days, to cure such failure. 

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly compensating the franchisee by 
repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration of the franchisee's inventory, supplies, 
equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have no value to the franchisor and inventory, supplies, 
equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably required in the conduct of the franchise business are not subject to 
compensation. This subsection applies only if: (i) The term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) the franchisee is 
prohibited by the franchise or other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another 
trademark, service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent to the 
expiration of the franchise or the franchisee does not receive at least 6 months advance notice of franchisor's intent not to 
renew the franchise. 

(e) A provision that permits the franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally available to other 
franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not require a renewal provision. 

(f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall not preclude the 
franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration at a location outside this state. 

(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a franchise, except for good 
cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good 
cause shall include, but is not limited to: 

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the franchisor's then current reasonable qualifications or 
standards. 

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the franchisor or subfranchisor. 

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with all lawful obligations. 

(iv) The failure of the franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the franchisor or to cure any 
default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the proposed transfer. 

(h) A provision that requires the franchisee to resell to the franchisor items that are not uniquely identified with the 
franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a right of first refusal to purchase the 
assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide third party willing and able to purchase those assets, 
nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that grants the franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the 
market or appraised value of such assets if the franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and 
has failed to cure the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c). 
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(i) A provision which permits the franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or otherwise transfer its obligations 
to fulfill contractual obligations to the franchisee unless provision has been made for providing the required contractual 
services. 

If the franchisor's most recent financial statements are unaudited and which show a net worth of less than $100,000.00 shall, 
at the request of a franchisee arrange for the escrow of initial investment and other funds paid by the franchisee or 
subfranchisor until the obligations to provide real estate, improvements, equipment, inventory, training, or other items 
included in the franchise offering are fulfilled. At the option of the franchisor, a surety bond may be provided in place of 
escrow. 

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general does not constitute approval, 
recommendation, or endorsement by the attorney general.

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to: 

State of Michigan Consumer Protection Division 
MI Office of the Attorney General 

Attn: Franchise Section 
P.O. Box 30213 

Lansing, MI 48913 
(517) 373-7117 
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COVERALL NORTH AMERICA, INC.  
FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

ITEM 1 - THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENT, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES 

To simplify the language in this Franchise Disclosure Document, "we" and "our" means Coverall North America, 
Inc. ("Coverall"), the franchisor. "You" and "your" means the corporation or the limited liability company that is awarded 
a Coverall franchise. We only award Coverall franchises to corporations or limited liability companies (as awarded, 
"Franchised Businesses") and we do not award Coverall franchises to individuals or sole proprietorships. You must keep 
separate accounting, banking, and financial records for the Franchised Business. Prior to signing the Franchise Agreement, 
the Franchised Business must obtain a Federal Employer Identification Number a business license, if applicable.  

We were incorporated in the State of Delaware on February 26, 1985, and we have no predecessor. CNA Holding 
Corporation ("Holding"), a Delaware corporation incorporated on February 4, 2005, owns 100% of the stock of Coverall 
and is our direct parent company. 

On July 1, 2021, Wellspring Capital Management LLC ("Wellspring") purchased Holding and its subsidiaries, 
including Coverall. The principal business address of Wellspring is 605 Third Avenue, 44th Floor, New York, NY 10158. 
Wellspring exercises oversight of Coverall via subsidiaries including the indirect parent company Coverall Acquisition, 
LLC.  Wellspring’s subsidiaries have never offered franchises for Coverall and, except as described below, have never 
offered franchises in any other line of business.  Caring Brands International (“CBI”) is a subsidiary of Wellspring, and 
therefore an affiliate of Coverall, that offers franchises. The principal business address of CBI is 1551 Sawgrass Corp. Pkwy, 
Ste.230  Sunrise, FL 33323. CBI owns and operates the following franchise brands: 

Interim Healthcare Inc. (“IHC”) is a franchisor of home care, hospice, and healthcare staffing services in 
the United States. IHC was established in 1966 and has offered franchises for IHC branded outlets since 
1968. As of December 31, 2023, there were 4 company owned and 240 franchised IHC branded outlets 
operating in the United States.  

Bluebird Care (“BC”) is a franchisor of  non-medical care services in England, Wales, Scotland, Northern 
Ireland and the Republic of Ireland. BC was established in 2004 and has offered franchises for BC branded 
outlets since 2007.  As of December 31, 2023, there were 0 company owned and 227 franchised BC outlets 
operating in the United Kingdom and Ireland. 

Just Better Care (“JBC”) is a franchisor of  in-home non-medical and medical care services throughout 
Australia. JBC was established in 2005 and has offered franchises for JBC branded outlets since 2006.  As 
of December 31, 2023, there were 2 company owned and 49 franchised JBC outlets operating Australia. 

Holding formerly owned 100% of the stock of Restroom Authority, Inc. ("RA"), a Delaware corporation formed on 
December 14, 2004 to provide services to hospitality facilities. On December 7, 2012, RA was dissolved out of existence. 
On August 1, 2008, Holding became the sole shareholder of Majco, Inc. ("MI"), a Pennsylvania corporation and Coverall 
Service Franchisee (as defined below). On August 7, 2008, MI merged with Majco Acquisition, LLC ("Majco"), a Delaware 
limited liability company formed on July 31, 2008; Majco merged with Coverall on March 31, 2011, and Coverall is the 
surviving corporation. MI is our predecessor at MI's former locations in Pennsylvania. On February 27, 2009, Holding 
became the sole shareholder of Triesler Company, Inc. ("Triesler"), a North Carolina corporation and Coverall Service 
Franchisee (as defined below). On March 2, 2009, Triesler merged with Coverall of the Carolinas Acquisition, LLC 
("Carolinas"), a Delaware limited liability company formed on February 27, 2009; Carolinas merged with Coverall on 
March 31, 2011, and Coverall is the surviving corporation. Triesler is our predecessor at Triesler's former locations in North 
Carolina and South Carolina. On March 30, 2010, Coverall became the sole shareholder of Coverall of Boston, Inc. ("CBI") 
a Delaware corporation, and CBI was dissolved on December 31, 2015 and no longer conducts business. CBI was formerly 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Coverall and offered the same type of franchises we do in the commercial industry in 
Massachusetts. Effective June 20, 2011, Verica, LLC's Service Franchise for the Iowa and Nebraska territory was 
terminated, and they are our predecessor. On May 17, 2012, Coverall became the sole shareholder of Melton Franchise 
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Systems, Inc. ("MFS"), a California corporation, and a Coverall Service Franchisee, and in March 2022, MFS merged into 
Coverall, and Coverall is the surviving corporation. MFS was a wholly owned subsidiary of Coverall and offered under the 
Coverall® name the same type of franchises as Coverall does in the commercial cleaning industry. On July 31, 2016, 
Coverall purchased the assets of Cavalier Services, Inc. ("Cavalier"), an Oregon corporation, a former Coverall Service 
Franchisee. Cavalier is our predecessor in Oregon. On January 31, 2018, Holding became the sole shareholder of 4444 
International, Inc., a Florida corporation and Coverall Service Franchisee doing business as Coverall of Central Florida 
("4444"). Effective January 31, 2018, 4444 merged with Coverall, and Coverall is the surviving corporation. 4444 is our 
predecessor in the Orlando area of Florida. On June 1, 2020, Coverall became the sole shareholder of Plymouth Ridge, Inc., 
a Minnesota corporation and Coverall Service Franchisee doing business as Coverall of the Twin Cities, Inc. ("Plymouth 
Ridge"). Effective June 2, 2020, Plymouth Ridge merged with Coverall, and Coverall is the surviving corporation. Plymouth 
Ridge is our predecessor in the Minneapolis-St. Paul, Minnesota area.  On January 31, 2022, Coverall became the sole 
shareholder of Warjon, Inc., a Florida corporation and Coverall Service Franchisee doing business in Florida, North 
Carolina, Texas, and Arizona ("Warjon"). Effective February 1, 2022, Warjon merged with Coverall, and Coverall is the 
surviving corporation. Warjon is our predecessor in various regions in Florida, North Carolina, Texas, and Arizona. 

Our global support center and the principal offices for Holding are located at 350 SW 12th Avenue, Deerfield 
Beach, Florida 33442. The principal offices for Coverall Acquisition, LLC are located at 605 Third Avenue, 44th Floor, 
New York, NY 10158. Our agents for service of process are listed in Exhibit C. We do business at the regional sales and 
support centers listed in Exhibit E. Our business experience includes offering commercial cleaning and related special 
services Coverall Franchises ("Commercial Cleaning Franchises" or "Coverall Franchises") since July 1985, offering 
Service Franchises since October 1986, and offering Territory Franchises (as defined below) since May 1996. 

Except as set forth above, we have not conducted businesses of any kind, nor have we offered a franchise in any 
other line of business. 

The Business Opportunity We Offer 

Historically, we have offered three types of franchises in the commercial janitorial cleaning industry: Commercial 
Cleaning Franchises, Service Franchises (also called "Master Franchises"), and Territory Franchises. We presently offer 
and award only Commercial Cleaning Franchises and are not offering or awarding new Service or Territory Franchises; we 
have no current Territory Franchises. This Franchise Disclosure Document is for use in offering and awarding only 
Commercial Cleaning Franchises.  

Commercial Cleaning Franchises are independent franchised businesses licensed by us to use Coverall® 
tradenames, trademarks, and the proprietary Coverall Program. Typical commercial janitorial services which Franchised 
Businesses will likely provide, regardless of the size of the franchise package Franchised Business purchases include, but 
are not limited to: floor care, trash and waste removal, sanitizing surfaces and equipment, dusting, restroom cleaning, 
vacuuming, and light maintenance. Special services are one-time or periodic cleaning contracts which include, but are not 
limited to: day porter services, special event cleanup, blind cleaning, light bulb changing, deep cleaning, upholstery 
cleaning, machine scrub and rinse, strip and finish, scrub and recoat, windows, carpet extraction, carpet encapsulation and 
electrostatic disinfection. Competitors include other commercial janitorial and building cleaning services, such as small 
independent operators, other commercial cleaning franchises, and large commercial cleaning businesses. We distinguish 
ourselves from our competitors with our Coverall® Program.  

Service Franchises are independent businesses licensed by us to use the Coverall® tradenames, trademarks, System, 
and business model to offer, sell, and service commercial cleaning franchises under agreements between those Service 
Franchises and their own franchisees. Service Franchises were sold only in metropolitan or other designated territories and 
in foreign countries, and Service Franchises are permitted to offer, sell, and service their own franchises only in the territories 
where the Service Franchises are located. We no longer offer new Service Franchises but may renew certain existing Service 
Franchises. 
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We license all of our Franchised Businesses to use the Coverall® Program to conduct and promote their independent 
businesses. 

As an incentive to contribute to the growth of the Coverall® Program, we offer eligible Franchised Businesses a 
$500 referral fee for each prospective Franchised Business they introduce to Coverall. To be eligible to receive the referral 
fee: (i) the referring Franchised Business must be in good standing with us - - that means, the referring Franchised Business 
must not be in default of its obligations under the Franchise Agreement; (ii) the referral must be documented in writing (for 
example, the referring Franchised Business introduces us to the prospective Franchised Business via email); (iii) the 
prospective Franchised Business executes our then-current Franchise Agreement and pays the associated Initial Franchise 
Fee within 6 months of the date of the referral; and (iv) the referring Franchised Business is a current Franchised Business 
at the time the referral fee is payable. Within 60 days following the execution of the Franchise Agreement and our receipt 
of the Initial Franchise Fee, we will pay a one-time $500 fee to the referring Franchised Business; provided that all of the 
foregoing conditions have been satisfied. We may, in our sole discretion, modify or discontinue this referral program at any 
time.   

Applicable Regulations 

You must comply with federal, state, and local regulations concerning the delivery of commercial cleaning and 
related special services by your business. We are not aware of any special laws covering the commercial janitorial business, 
but every municipal body or state may have local laws governing the right to do business in their locale. Certain services 
that your franchised business will provide are governed by state and local licensing laws. For example, the state in which 
you will operate your Coverall franchise may require you to obtain a general contractor's license. You must obtain all such 
licenses before opening your business and performing such services, and you agree to maintain all such licenses at all times 
during the term and any renewal term of the Franchise Agreement.  You should investigate the application of these laws 
further. 

ITEM 2 - BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

CHARLES DANIEL: CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND SOLE DIRECTOR 

From August 2017 to December 2021, Mr. Daniel served as Coverall's Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer in 
Deerfield Beach, Florida. In December 2021, Mr. Daniel was promoted to Chief Executive Officer and Sole Director of 
Coverall.  

KEVIN HARRISON: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER  

Mr. Harrison has served as Coverall’s Chief Financial Officer since March 2022.  Previously, Mr. Harrison served 
as Vice President – Finance for ServiceMaster Brands in Memphis, Tennessee from September 2015 until May 2019, and 
Vice President – Finance for Wood & Laminate North America for Mohawk Industries, Inc. in Calhoun, Georgia from June 
2019 until March 2022 before joining Coverall. 

TYLER DICKINSON: CHIEF SALES OFFICER 

Since August 2019, Mr. Dickinson has served as Coverall's Chief Sales Officer in Deerfield Beach, Florida. Mr. 
Dickinson was formerly Coverall's Divisional Vice President Sales for the West Division from June 2015 to August 2019 
in San Diego, California. 

SHIRLEY KLEIN: CHIEF OPERATIONS OFFICER 

Since August 2017, Ms. Klein has served as Coverall's Chief Operations Officer, in Deerfield Beach, Florida.  
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STEPHEN KLOPPENBURG: VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATION 

From August 2022, Mr. Kloppenburg has served as Coverall’s Vice President of Operations in Deerfield Beach, 
Florida. Mr. Kloppenburg served as Divisional Director at Coverall from May 2016 through August 2022. 

ADAM WALKER: VICE PRESIDENT AND GENERAL COUNSEL 

Since September 2022, Mr. Walker has served as Coverall’s Vice Present and General Counsel in Deerfield Beach, 
Florida. Mr. Walker previously served as Corporate General Counsel in Atlanta, Georgia for Edible Arrangements, LLC 
from August 2020 to September 2022. Prior to his time at Edible Arrangements, LLC, Mr. Walker served as Director-
Counsel at HSN, Inc. in St. Petersburg, Florida from June 2016 to August 2020. 

ALAN HARRIS: VICE PRESIDENT, NATIONAL ACCOUNTS 

Since June 2018, Mr. Harris has served as Coverall's Vice President, National Accounts in Deerfield Beach, Florida. 

NICOLE IVEY: VICE PRESIDENT OF MARKETING 

Since July 2016, Ms. Ivey has served as Coverall's Vice President of Marketing in Deerfield Beach, Florida. 

KATHY JONES: VICE PRESIDENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES 

Since November 2012, Ms. Jones has served as Coverall's Vice President of Human Resources in Deerfield Beach, 
Florida. 

WARREN VAUGHN, JR.: VICE PRESIDENT, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

Since February 2019, Mr. Vaughn has served as Coverall's Vice President, Information Technology in Deerfield 
Beach, Florida.  

EDWARD CRUZ: DIVISIONAL VICE PRESIDENT OPERATIONS - WEST 

Since June 2015, Mr. Cruz has served as Coverall's Divisional Vice President for West Division in San Francisco, 
California. 

MARK EICHENBERGER: DIVISIONAL VICE PRESIDENT SALES –  CENTRAL 

Since October 2018, Mr. Eichenberger has served as Coverall's Divisional Vice President Sales - Central in 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania.  

TOM MARCUS:  DIVISIONAL VICE PRESIDENT OF SALES – WEST 

Since November 2022, Mr. Marcus has served as Coverall's Vice President of Sales - West . Previously, Mr. Marcus 
served as a Coverall Regional Sales Manager from January 2020 to November 2022 and Divisional Sales Training Manager 
from March 2016 to January 2020.  

NICK JACKSON: DIVISIONAL VICE PRESIDENT OF SALES –  EAST 

Since October 2022, Mr. Jackson has served as our Divisional Vice President - East in Atlanta, Georgia. From 
January 2018 to October 2022, Mr. Jackson served as the Regional Sales Manager for Atlanta in Atlanta, Georgia.   
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JOSHUA WAGER: DIVISIONAL VICE PRESIDENT, OPERATIONS – CENTRAL  

Since August 2022, Mr. Wager has served as our Divisional Vice President, Operations – Central in Brookfield, 
Wisconsin. From October 2017 to August 2022, Mr. Wagner served as our Division Director, Operational Development in 
Brookfield, Wisconsin.    

SARAH HAMMOND: DIVISIONAL VICE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS – EAST 
From April 2023 to present, Ms. Hammond has served as our Divisional Vice President of Operations - East in 

Charlotte, South Carolina.  Previously, from June 2018 to April 2023, Ms. Hammond served as General Manager with 
Coverall in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.   

ELIZABETH ZUNIGA: GENERAL MANAGER 
From February 2022 to present, Ms. Zuniga has served as Coverall's General Manager in Austin, Texas, adding the 

San Antonio, Texas region to her management portfolio in June 2023. From April 2013 to January 2022, Ms. Zuniga served 
as Regional Director for Warjon, Inc. dba Coverall in Austin, Texas 

BILL ENTRIKIN: GENERAL MANAGER 
From February 2003 to present, Mr. Entrikin has served as a General Manager at Coverall in Charlotte, North 

Carolina.  

JEFFREY PETERSON: GENERAL MANAGER 
From January 2017 to present Mr. Peterson has served as a Coverall General Manager in Chicago, Illinois. 

CHRIS TAYLOR: GENERAL MANAGER 
From January 2009 to present, Mr. Taylor has served as Coverall’s General Manager in Cincinnati, Ohio, adding 

the Dayton, Ohio region to his management portfolio in May, 2023. 

ANTHONY HADAD: GENERAL MANAGER 
From July 2020 to present, Mr. Hadad has served as a General Manager at Coverall in Cleveland, Ohio. From July 

1995 to September 2019, Mr. Hadad served as Area Manager at Clerac LLC in Strongsville, Ohio. 

TIM LEIGH: GENERAL MANAGER 
From September 2002 to present, Mr. Leigh has been with Coverall, currently serving as a General Manager in Columbus, 
Ohio. 
IVY HARPER: GENERAL MANAGER 

From June 2010 to present, Ivy Harper has served as General Manager with Coverall in Detroit, Michigan.  

JAMES BROWNING: GENERAL MANAGER 
From June 2016 to present, Mr. Browning has served as a Coverall General Manager in Fort Myers, Florida. 

VANNESA TORRES: GENERAL MANAGER 
From February 2022 through the present, Ms. Torres has served as a General manager with Coverall in Gainesville 

and Ocala, Florida. From February 2010 to February 2022, Ms. Torres served as a Regional Director of Warjon, Inc. dba 
Coverall of North Central Florida. 

GUY MAKIMOTO: GENERAL MANAGER 
From December 2014 to present, Mr. Makimoto has served as a Coverall General Manager in Honolulu, Hawaii. 
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KARENN RIFAI: GENERAL MANAGER 

From April 2020 to present, Ms. Rifai has served as a Coverall General Manager in Houston, Texas. Ms. Rifai was 
formerly a Field Consultant for Vanguard Cleaning Systems in Houston, Texas from July 2019 to April 2020, and Director 
of Franchise for Smith and Associates in Houston, Texas from April 2014 to April 2019. 

HECTOR GONZALEZ: GENERAL MANAGER 

From October 2023 through the present, Mr. Gonzalez has served as General Manager with Coverall in Jacksonville, 
Florida and Daytona, Florida.  From July 2023 to October 2023, Mr. Gonzalez served as a Franchise Development 
Consultant with Coverall in Jacksonville, Florida.  From March 2019 through May 2023 Mr. Gonzalez served as Human 
Resources Manager at Allbright of Jax, Inc. 

RUDINIA MESITI: GENERAL MANAGER 

From March 2022 through the present, Ms. Mesiti has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Las Vegas, 
Nevada. From January 2018 to March 2022, Ms. Mesiti served as a Franchise Development Consultant with Coverall in 
Las Vegas, Nevada. 

Juan SEBASTIAN ROMERO: GENERAL MANAGER 

From June 2020 to present, Mr. Romero has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Long Island, New York. 
Mr. Romero was formerly the Director of Operations at Globall Concepts in Plainview, New York from May 2019 to 
October 2019. Mr. Romero was formerly a Senior Manager of Sporting Operations & Strategy for Red Bull New York, Inc. 
in Harrison, New Jersey from January 2010 to March 2019.  

PIO GANABAN: GENERAL MANAGER 

From November 2018 to present, Mr. Ganaban has been a General Manager with Coverall in Los Angeles, 
California.  

RICHARD STANLEY: GENERAL MANAGER 

From December 2016 to present, Mr. Stanley has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Baton Rouge, 
Louisiana. 

JOHANNE MORALES: GENERAL MANAGER 

From November 2017 to present, Johanne Morales has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Madison, 
Wisconsin. 

JEFFREY SEAVERT: GENERAL MANAGER 

From May 2014 to present, Mr. Seavert has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Milwaukee, Wisconsin.  

MIGDALIA ESTRADA: GENERAL MANAGER 

From August 2022 to present, Ms. Estrada has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Hamilton, New Jersey. 
From June 2010 until August 2022, Ms. Estrada served as a Franchise Development Consultant with Coverall in Lyndhurst, 
New Jersey. 

VINCENT PARDO: GENERAL MANAGER 

From July 2016 to present, Mr. Pardo has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Omaha, Nebraska.  
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PAUL BURBOA: GENERAL MANAGER 

From September 2023 to present, Mr. Burboa has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Orange County, 
California. Prior to this, Mr. Burboa served as a District Manager for Chemical Guys/Smart LLC from July 2022 through 
May 2023 in Los Angeles, California.  From July 2020 to July 2022, Mr. Burboa served as Area Manager at Amazon, Inc. 
in Los Angeles, California and from September 2014 to July 2020, he served as General Manager for World Market 
Corporation in Los Angeles, California.  

JAMES WARNER: GENERAL MANAGER 

From September 2016 to present, Mr. Warner has served as a Coverall General Manager in Beaverton, Oregon.  

EDWARD CLAYTON: GENERAL MANAGER 

From February 2018 to present, Mr. Clayton has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Orlando, Florida. 

SAMUEL TAVAREZ: GENERAL MANAGER 

From February 2017 to the present, Mr. Tavarez has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Palm Beach, 
Florida. 

JEROME MARTINELLI: GENERAL MANAGER 

From June 2023 to the present, Mr. Martinelli has served as General Manager of  Coverall in Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania.  From August 2022 to June 2023, Mr. Martinelli served as General Manager at Charles P. Rogers in King of 
Prussia, Pennsylvania, and from August 2019 to June 2023, he was the owner of JAM Professional Services in Broomall, 
Pennsylvania. 

WILLIAM BROWN: GENERAL MANAGER 

From February 2022 through the present, Mr. Brown has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Phoenix, 
Arizona. From June 2021 through January 2022, Mr. Brown served as a General Manager with Warjon, Inc. in Phoenix, 
Arizona. From December 2017 to May 2021, Mr. Brown was the owner of Alien Donuts in Phoenix, Arizona. 

JAMES BELLANTE: GENERAL MANAGER 

From September 2014 to present, Mr. Bellante has served as a Coverall General Manager in Pittsburgh, 
Pennsylvania. 

JAMIE NELSON: GENERAL MANAGER 

From November 2022 through the present, Jamie Nelson has served as a General Manager with Coverall in 
Raleigh/Durham, North Carolina. Prior to that, from September 2017 to November 2022, Jamie Nelson served as Store 
Manager for Sherwin Williams in Garner, North Carolina. 

PHILIP WALDROP: GENERAL MANAGER 

From August 2023 to present, Mr. Waldrop has served as General Manager with Coverall in Richmond, Virginia.  
From October 2019 to August 2023, Mr. Waldrop served as an Associate, Coach and in the Management Development 
Program for GEICO in Fredericksburg, Virginia.   From March 2014 to October 2019, Mr. Waldrop served as Associate, 
District Sales Coordinator and Regional Trainer for Aflac in Richmond, Virginia. 

CYNTHIA SALAS: GENERAL MANAGER 

From March 2021 to present, Ms. Salas has been a Coverall General Manager in Sacramento, California. Ms. Salas 
was formerly a Coverall Field Consultant from January 2021 until March 2021, and a Coverall Business Development 
Manager from August 2017 to December 2020. 
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CHRISTINA KAPUA: GENERAL MANAGER 

From August 2023 to present, Ms. Kapua has served as General Manager at Coverall in San Bernardino, California.  
Ms. Kapua previously served as an Executive Sales Consultant with Coverall from February 2016 to June 2019 in Honolulu, 
Hawaii and from June 2019 to July 2023 as an Executive Sales Consultant with Coverall in San Bernardino, California. 

KEVIN SOOY: GENERAL MANAGER 

From May 2023 to present, Mr. Sooy has served as General Manager of Coverall in San Diego, California. Prior to 
this, Mr. Sooy served as Director for Compass at Qualcomm, from January 2017 to December 2022 in San Diego, California. 

LESLIE GAMEZ: GENERAL MANAGER 

From March 2019 to present, Ms. Gamez has served as a General Manager with Coverall in San Francisco, 
California. Ms. Gamez was previously the Vice President of Franchising for KidsPark, Inc. in San Jose, California from 
May 1994 to March 2019. 

NELSON QUINTERO: GENERAL MANAGER 

From March 2017 to present, Mr. Quintero has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Miramar, Florida. 

EVAN BERNER: GENERAL MANAGER 

From June 2016 to present, Mr. Berner has served as a Coverall General Manager in Tampa, Florida.  

TIMOTHY J. PUGH: GENERAL MANAGER 

From February 2022 through the present, Mr. Pugh has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Tucson, 
Arizona. From February 2014 to February 2022, Mr. Pugh served as a Regional Director for Warjon, Inc. in Tucson, 
Arizona. 

CHAD HARCK: GENERAL MANAGER 

From June 2020 to present, Mr. Harck has served as Coverall's General Manager in Bloomington, Minnesota. Mr. 
Harck was previously the Director of Operations with Plymouth Ridge, Inc. d/b/a Coverall of Twin Cities in Bloomington, 
Minnesota from July 2001 to June 2020.  

DAVID SERPA, JR.: GENERAL MANAGER 

From March 2018 to present, Mr. Serpa has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Ventura, California.  

MICHAEL MALONEY: GENERAL MANAGER 

From March 2015 to present, Mr. Maloney has served as a General Manager with Coverall in Virginia Beach, 
Virginia. 

CLAUDIA SIBRIAN: GENERAL MANAGER   

From October 2023 to present, Ms. Sibrian has served as General Manager with Coverall in Washington, D.C. Ms. 
Sibrian previously served as Field Development Consultant with Coverall from November 2015 to October 2023. 

PATRICK FOX: GENERAL MANAGER 

From April 2023 to the present, Mr. Fox has served as General Manager for Coverall in Fresno, California, prior to 
which Mr. Fox served as Sales Manager for Coverall in San Diego, California from June 2022 to April 2023, as Coverall’s 
a Franchise Development Consultant from May 2020 to June 2022 in Fresno, California, and as Coverall’s Business 
Development Manager from February 2018 to May 2020 in Fresno, California. 
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BRIAN KEIL: GENERAL MANAGER 

From February 2023 to present, Mr. Keil has served as General Manager of Coverall in Sandy, Utah. From March 
2021 to February 2023, Mr. Keil served as a Franchise Sales Consultant for Lendio in Lehi, Utah. From November 2016 to 
March 2021, Mr. Keil served as a Franchise Onboarding / Sales Coach for InXpress in South Jordan, Utah. 

MICHELLE JOHNSON: GENERAL MANAGER 

From October 2023 to present, Ms. Johnson has served as General Manager of Coverall for the territories of Rhode 
Island and Connecticut in Westerly, Rhode Island. Ms. Johnson previously served as Regional General Manager at Servpro 
in Westerly, Rhode Island from November 2022 to October 2023. From October 2018 to December 2022, Ms. Johnson 
served as Director of Operations at Harbor Lights in Warrick, Richmond. 

ITEM 3 - LITIGATION 

Holding: 

Concluded. 

Sabrina Laguna v. Coverall North America, Inc., et al (Superior Court of California County of San Diego, 
Civil Action No. 37-2008-00089347-CU-OE-CTL) filed August 8, 2008. See case description under Coverall’s 
litigation. 

Other than this one action, no litigation of Holding is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

Coverall: 

Pending. 

Caribe Billie and Quincy Reeves vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (United States District Court, District of 
Connecticut, Case No. 3:19-cv-00092-JCH) filed January 17, 2019. Plaintiffs, franchisees of R & B Services, Inc. 
d/b/a Coverall of Connecticut & Westchester (“RB”), Coverall’s former master franchisee, filed this putative class 
action claiming that Coverall violated various sections of the Connecticut Minimum Wage Act. Plaintiffs sought wages 
allegedly withheld under the Connecticut Minimum Wage Act; penalties, attorney’s fees, a refund of all franchise fees 
and additional fees paid by the putative class members, punitive damages, interest, costs, and injunctive and 
declaratory relief. On March 20, 2019, Coverall filed a Motion to Dismiss for lack of personal jurisdiction over 
Coverall, or, in the Alternative, to Compel Arbitration, or in the Alternative, to Dismiss for Plaintiff’s failure to state 
a claim. On March 12, 2020, the Court denied Coverall’s motion to dismiss but granted Coverall’s motion to compel 
arbitration. On June 18, 2020, Reeves filed a Demand for Arbitration, Quincy Reeves (“Reeves”) vs. Coverall North 
America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-20-0007-2506). Billie also filed a Demand for 
Arbitration, Caribe Billie (“Billie”) vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, Case No. 
01-20-0007-2501). Coverall and Billie arbitrated Billie’s claims and, on February 1, 2022, the Billie arbitrator issued 
an interim decision in favor of Billie. In March of 2022, the parties stipulated to damages of $56,164.  The arbitrator 
issued an award in that amount, which Coverall paid in July 2022.  On March 9, 2021, Reeves joined with Veronica 
Flores, another franchisee of RB (Veronica Flores vs. Coverall North America, Inc., American Arbitration 
Association, Case No. 01-20-0015-7022) to file a Motion to Lift Stay on the ground they allegedly could not afford to 
pursue arbitration. In March 2022, the district court judge issued a ruling partially in plaintiffs’ favor, allowing Reeves 
(but not Flores) to proceed in district court. Coverall appealed this decision to the Second Circuit Court of Appeals 
and, on March 14, 2023, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals issued a Summary Order reinstating the arbitral stay. 
By Order dated March 15, 2023, the Second Circuit reversed the district court and reinstated the stay. Coverall 
subsequently settled its disputes with both Reeves (in November 2023 for the amount of $20,000) and Flores (in or 
around April of 2023 for the amount of $15,000). 
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Carlos Rivas vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (United States District Court Central District of California 
Case No. 8:18-cv-01007-JGB-KK). On June 7, 2018, Plaintiff, a then-current franchisee, filed a complaint under the 
Private Attorney General Act of 2004 (“PAGA”) seeking a declaration and finding that Coverall violated the California 
Labor Code due to, among other things, (i) charging cleaning workers for their jobs and failure to reimburse them for 
all necessary expenditures; (ii) failing to provide itemized wage statements in violation of the California Labor Code; 
(iii) taking unauthorized deductions from its workers’ pay in violation of the California Labor Code; (iv) failing to 
pay all wages twice in each calendar month and paying them late in violating of the California Labor Code; and (iv) 
failing to maintain payroll records in violation of the California Labor Code.  Plaintiff seeks to recover  all penalties, 
pre- and post-judgment interest, reasonable attorney’s fees, costs and expenses, and injunctive relief. On March 21, 
2019, Coverall filed an Answer to Complaint and Counterclaim requesting a declaratory judgment that the Franchise 
Agreement be deemed null and void if Plaintiff was deemed an employee rather than an independent contractor. On 
March 29, 2019, Plaintiff filed a First Amended Complaint, again claiming (though PAGA) violations of the California 
Labor Code. Coverall filed an Answer on April 12, 2019, denying the material allegations of the Amended Complaint. 
On May 17, 2019, Plaintiff filed a Motion to Dismiss Coverall’s Counterclaim, and this motion was denied on July 
12, 2019. On November 11, 2019, Plaintiff filed a Motion for Summary Judgment. On November 18, 2019, Coverall 
filed a Motion to Compel Arbitration. On January 21, 2020, the Court denied Coverall’s Motion to Compel Arbitration. 
On February 7, 2020, Coverall filed a Notice of Appeal (United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit Court, 
Case No. 20-55140). After the Ninth Circuit denied the appeal, Coverall petitioned the U.S. Supreme Court for a writ 
of certiorari. In December 2021, the Supreme Court agreed to hear a companion case, Viking River Cruises, regarding 
the same arbitrability issue, and ultimately decided that PAGA representative claims could be arbitrated individually 
and that a PAGA claim must be dismissed once an individual’s PAGA claim is sent to arbitration. The Supreme Court 
then granted Coverall’s petition, reversed the 9th Circuit, and remanded the matter to the 9th Circuit for further 
proceedings consistent with its opinion in the Viking River Cruises case. On September 21, 2022, the 9th Circuit 
remanded the matter to the District Court, which compelled arbitration of Rivas’ individual claims and dismissed 
Rivas’ non-individual claims by order dated November 28, 2022.  On December 18, 2022, Rivas appealed that decision 
to the 9th Circuit.  That appeal remains pending.  Coverall disputes these claims and is vigorously defending this action.   

Sergio Gonzalez v. Coverall North America, Inc. (United States District Court, Central District of 
California, Civil Action No. 5:16-CV-02287-JGB-KK) filed November 2, 2016. Plaintiff, a current franchisee, filed 
this putative class action claiming Coverall violated various sections of the California Labor Code by misclassifying 
its franchisees as independent contractors, requiring its franchisees to pay for their cleaning work, requiring 
franchisees to pay franchise and additional business fees and other charges improperly deducted from their alleged 
“pay,” failing to provide proper itemized wage statements, failing to pay wages twice each calendar month, failing to 
maintain payroll records, and engaging in unfair competition. Plaintiff seeks certification of the putative class action, 
a declaration and finding that Coverall violated the California Labor Code; compensatory damages, underpaid wages 
and deductions, liquidated damages, interest, costs and attorneys’ fees and injunctive relief. Plaintiff also seeks 
penalties on behalf of the State under PAGA. On April 13, 2017, the Court granted Coverall’s Motion to Compel 
Arbitration and stayed all proceedings pending a decision on arbitrability by the arbitrator. Plaintiff filed a motion 
with the Court on April 24, 2017 to dismiss the case so he could appeal the court’s decision. On June 1, 2017, Plaintiff 
filed a Notice of Appeal with the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit of the District Court’s Order of 
April 13, 2017 granting Coverall’s Motion to Compel Arbitration (United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit 
Court, Case No. 17-55787). On February 22, 2019, the Ninth Circuit dismissed Plaintiff’s appeal for lack of 
jurisdiction. 

On March 8, 2019, Plaintiff filed a Renewed Motion to Reopen Case with the District Court, which was 
denied on April 19, 2019. On May 6, 2019, Plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal of the Order denying the Motion to 
Reopen Case (United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit Court, Case No. 19-55511).On December 8, 2022, 
the District Court denied Plaintiff’s Renewed Motion to Reopen the Case.  On December 18, 2022, Gonzalez appealed 
that decision to the 9th Circuit.  That appeal remains pending.  Coverall disputes these claims and is vigorously 
defending this action.   

Keon Reny Cleaning Service vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (Court of Common Pleas of Allegheny County, 
Pennsylvania- Civil Division, Case No. GD23-9413) filed August 3, 2023.  Plaintiff, a former franchisee of Coverall, seeks 
a declaration and finding that Coverall breached the franchise agreement with Keon Reny Cleaning Services.   On September 
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5, 2023, Coverall filed various preliminary objections against Keon Reny Cleaning Servicing, including, but not limited to, 
a motion to dismiss pursuant to local rules of civil procedure due to an existence of an agreement for alternative dispute 
resolution.   The court sustained Coverall’s motion and stayed the dispute to allow Plaintiff to file arbitration.  

Coverall: 

Concluded. 

Erika Richardson and Luis Silva vs. Coverall North America, Inc.; Sujol, LLC d/b/a Coverall of Southern 
NJ (Superior Court of New Jersey, Middlesex County, Law Division, Docket No. MID-L-007250-17) filed December 
8, 2017. Plaintiffs, current franchisees of Sujol, LLC d/b/a Coverall of Southern NJ (“Sujol”), Coverall’s Master 
Franchisee, filed this putative class action claiming that Sujol and Coverall have violated various sections of the New 
Jersey Wage Payment Law. Plaintiffs sought certification of the putative class action; declaration and finding that 
Sujol and Coverall have misclassified Plaintiffs as independent contractors under the New Jersey Wage Payment Law; 
declaration and finding that Sujol and Coverall violated the New Jersey Wage Payment Law; compensatory damages, 
including all expenses owed, underpaid wages, and deductions; liquidated damages; interest, costs, and attorney’s 
fees; injunctive relief in the form of an Order directing Sujol and Coverall to comply with New Jersey law; and other, 
if applicable, relief in law or in equity as may be available. On January 12, 2018, Coverall filed a Notice of Removal, 
to remove the case from the Superior Court of New Jersey, Law Division, Middlesex County, to federal court, the 
United States District Court of New Jersey (U.S. District Court, District of New Jersey, Trenton, Case No. 3:18-cv-
00532- MAS-TJB), and the case was removed. On January 30, 2018, Sujol and Coverall filed a joint Motion with the 
District Court to Stay this Action Pending Mediation and Arbitration. On September 27, 2018, an Order was entered 
granting in part and denying in part Sujol and Coverall’s Motion to stay, as the Richardson matter was stayed and 
administratively terminated as to Sujol pending arbitration, but was not stayed as to Coverall. And, the Silva matter 
was not stayed as to either Sujol or Coverall. On October 25, 2018, Sujol and Coverall filed a Notice of Appeal to the 
United States Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit for both matters. (United States Court of Appeals for the Third 
Circuit Court, Case No. 18-3393). The Third Circuit heard oral arguments on November 20, 2019. On April 28, 2020 
the Third Circuit issued a ruling reversing and remanding the case back to the District Court. On May 12, 2020 
Plaintiffs filed a petition for a rehearing En Banc. On June 30, 2020 the Plaintiffs’ petition for rehearing was denied. 
On October 1, 2020, this matter was stayed pending resolution of Plaintiff’s Petition to the United States Supreme 
Court for a Writ of Certiorari. On November 27, 2020 Plaintiff filed a Petition for Writ of Certiorari with the Supreme 
Court of the United States. The petition was denied March 22, 2021. Both cases were ordered to arbitration and both 
plaintiffs filed motions that arbitration is unconscionable. The Silva arbitrator ruled in that Silva’s agreement was 
enforceable, and Richardson’s arbitrator ruled Richardson’s agreement was not.   This matter settled in May 2022 with 
a $22,000 payment to Silva and a $17,500 payment to Richardson with no admission of liability by Coverall. 

Cinthia Yarleque vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-20-
0015- 5079) filed October 30, 2020. Claimant, a former franchised business filed a Demand for Arbitration with the 
American Arbitration Association. Claimant alleged that Coverall had misclassified her as an independent contractor 
under New Jersey Statute 43:21-19 and had violated New Jersey Statute 34:11-4.4 by taking unlawful deductions from 
her wages. Claimant sought compensatory damages and liquidated damages in the amount of attorneys’ fees, costs, 
and expenses and injunctive relief requiring Coverall to comply with New Jersey law. This matter settled in December 
2021 for $25,000, with no admission of liability by Coverall. 

Ivett Alcazar vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-20-0015-
5052) filed October 30, 2020. Claimant, a former franchised business, filed a Demand for Arbitration with the 
American Arbitration Association. Claimant alleged that Coverall had misclassified him as an independent contractor 
under New Jersey Statute 43:21-19 and had violated New Jersey Statute 34:11-4.4 by taking unlawful deductions from 
his wages. Claimant sought compensatory damages and liquidated damages in the amount of attorneys’ fees, costs, 
and expenses and injunctive relief requiring Coverall to comply with New Jersey law. This matter settled in January 
2022 for $32,000, with no admission of liability by Coverall. 

Jose Munoz vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-20-0015-
5028) filed October 30, 2020. Claimant, a former franchised business, filed a Demand for Arbitration with the 
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American Arbitration Association. Claimant sought: i) a ruling that Claimant can pursue their claims against Coverall 
in Court; and ii) to bring a claim for violation of the New Jersey Wage Payment Law. Claimant also sought 
compensatory damages and liquidated damages in the amount of attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses. This matter 
settled in February 2022 for $40,000, with no admission of liability by Coverall. 

Miguel Yamunaque vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-20- 
0015-5025) filed October 30, 2020. Claimant, a former franchised business, filed a Demand for Arbitration with the 
American Arbitration Association. Claimant alleged that Coverall had misclassified him as an independent contractor 
under New Jersey Statute 43:21-19 and had violated New Jersey Statute 34:11-4.4 by taking unlawful deductions from 
his wages. Claimant seeks compensatory damages and liquidated damages in the amount of attorneys’ fees, costs, and 
expenses and injunctive relief requiring Coverall to comply with New Jersey law. This matter settled in January 2022 
for $29,500, with no admission of liability by Coverall. 

Jimmy Soto vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, Case No. 01-21-0000-
1887) filed January 14, 2021. Claimant, a former franchised business, filed a Demand for Arbitration with the 
American Arbitration Association. Claimant sought: i) a ruling that Claimant could pursue their claims against 
Coverall in Court; and ii) to bring a claim for violation of the New Jersey Wage Payment Law. Claimant also sought 
compensatory damages and liquidated damages in the amount of attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses. This matter 
settled in January 2022 for $28,340, with no admission of liability by Coverall. 

Pacific Commercial Services, LLC vs. Coverall North America, Inc. (American Arbitration Association, 
Case No. 02-19-0003-0718) filed January 24, 2020. Plaintiff, a current Coverall Service Franchisee filed a Breach of 
Agreement and Lack of Good Faith and Fair Dealings Demand for Arbitration with the American Arbitration 
Association. Plaintiff seeks: i) a finding that Coverall has breached the terms of the Service Franchise Agreement 
(“SFA”) by requesting that Plaintiff make [sic] additional royalty fees that are not due and owing; ii) a finding that 
Coverall has breached the terms of the SFA by requesting that Plaintiff increase its working capital account; and iii) a 
finding that Coverall has violated the covenant of good faith and fair dealing implied in the SFA under Florida law. 
Plaintiff also seeks a declaration that: i) the Minimum Royalty provision of the SFA is interpreted as written and 
applies to Plaintiff as a whole and not per territory; ii) the Minimum Royalty provision of the SFA has been modified 
by the conduct of the parties pursuant to Florida law or waived by Coverall: and iii) the Working Capital provision of 
the SFA has been modified by the conduct of the parties or waived by Coverall. Plaintiff also requests damages in the 
amount of attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses. On March 23, 2020, Coverall filed a Response to Statement of Claim 
and Counterclaim against Pacific Commercial Services, LLC. Coverall claims that Plaintiff has: i) failed to make 
minimum royalty payments under the SFA; and ii) failed to maintain minimum working capital under the SFA. On 
April 16, 2020, Plaintiff filed a Response to Coverall’s Counterclaim. On February 21, 2021 a Continued Temporary 
Stay of Proceedings was Ordered while the parties discussed settlement. This matter settled in August 2021 for by 
mutual agreement of the parties, with a waiver by Coverall of certain alleged debt and no admission of liability by 
Coverall. 

Randall Richardson and Janitorial Tech, LLC v. Coverall North America, Inc. (United States District Court 
for the Northern District of Georgia, Atlanta Division, Case No. 1:17-mi-2405-UNA) filed June 27, 2017. Plaintiff, a 
current franchisee, filed this putative class action claiming Coverall has violated various sections of the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, Georgia Industrial Loan Act, Georgia Payday Lending Act, and Georgia Racketeer Influenced and 
Corrupt Organizations Act. Plaintiff seeks: certification of the putative class action; declaration that the Janitorial 
Franchise Agreement, arbitration agreement, delegation provision, and class waiver are inapplicable, null and void, 
and/or unenforceable; to permanently enjoin Coverall from violating the Fair Labor Standards Act and issue an order 
requiring that Coverall comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act wage, overtime, and reporting requirements; to 
permanently enjoin Coverall from collecting unlawful interest under the Georgia Industrial Loan Act; to permanently 
enjoin Coverall from making any future loans of $3,000.00 or less in violation of the Georgia Industrial Loan Act and 
Georgia’s Payday Lending Act; compensatory damages, including reasonable attorney’s fees and costs; and punitive 
damages sufficient to punish and deter Coverall from its unlawful conduct. On July 20, 2017, Coverall filed a Motion 
to Dismiss, or, in the Alternative, Stay Litigation Pending Arbitration. On September 5, 2017, Plaintiff filed a Motion 
for Oral Argument and Sur-Reply In Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss or, In the Alternative, Stay 
Litigation Pending Arbitration. After Oral arguments on the motion were heard November 29, 2017, the District Court 
issued an order staying the case, requiring the parties to mediate, then proceed to arbitration in the event mediation 
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does not resolve the matter. On January 30, 2018, a mediation conference was held, but the parties were unable to 
resolve the matter. On October 31, 2018 the parties filed a Joint Motion for Settlement Approval with Brief in Support 
by Janitorial Tech, LLC, Randall Richardson. On November 11, 2018, an Order was entered granting the Motion for 
Settlement Approval. The material terms of the Settlement were that Coverall: i) paid to Franchisee $27,325.00, which 
included the purchase price for the assets of Franchisee’s business and customers; and ii) cancelled all remaining 
balances due Coverall on Franchisee’s Promissory Notes. 

Cooks v. Coverall North America, Inc. and Coverall of Boston, Inc. (Superior Court, Suffolk County, 
Massachusetts, Civil Action No. SUCV2013-02373) filed July 1, 2013. Plaintiff, a current franchisee, filed this 
purported class action claiming that CBI and Coverall knowingly and willingly i) misclassified its franchisees as 
independent contractors in violation of the Massachusetts Independent Contractor Law; ii) violated the Wage Act by 
charging its franchisees for a job, made unlawful deductions, and did not pay its franchisees timely; and iii) failed to 
pay its franchisees minimum wage and overtime for all work performed in excess of 40 hours a week. The plaintiff 
sought restitution for all damages due to misclassification as an independent contractor and related wage violations, 
an injunction against alleged unlawful practices, statutory trebling of all damages; attorney’s fees and costs, and other 
relief the court deems proper. On July 30, 2013, Coverall and CBI removed the case to the United States District Court 
for the District of Massachusetts. The new case number was 13-cv-11802-WGY. The matter was settled as part of the 
settlement described below. 

Pius Awuah, et al v. Coverall North America, Inc. (U.S. District Court, District of Massachusetts, Civil 
Action No. 07-10287) filed February 15, 2007; Amended Complaint filed on February 22, 2007; Second Amended 
Complaint filed on June 5, 2007; Third Amended Complaint filed April 25, 2008: Fourth Amended Complaint filed 
on July 9, 2010. This action was originally filed by eleven plaintiffs. Four of the original plaintiffs were franchisees 
of various Coverall Master Franchisees, and not Coverall. Coverall obtained summary judgment on the claims of those 
four plaintiffs on February 9, 2010. Of the remaining seven franchisees, three had entered into arbitration agreements 
with Coverall. Their claims were stayed pending arbitration. The remaining plaintiffs claimed that Coverall negligently 
or intentionally misrepresented that it had sufficient business to satisfy its contractual obligations; that Coverall 
breached its obligations to plaintiffs; and that plaintiffs were misclassified as independent contractors and are therefore 
entitled to be compensated, and to receive the same benefits, as employees of Coverall. The damages plaintiffs sought 
were not specified. On March 23, 2010, the court granted plaintiffs’ Motion for Partial Summary Judgment and held 
that Benecira Cavalcante and Geraldo Correia were misclassified under Massachusetts wage hour law as independent 
contractors. Trial commenced on May 10, 2010 as to the claims of those named plaintiffs who had not agreed to 
arbitrate their disputes with Coverall -- Geraldo Correia, Benecira Calvalcante, Jai Prem and Aldivar Brandao. Prior 
to the commencement of the trial, the court sanctioned plaintiffs for their failure to disclose the damage theory 
underlying their misclassification claims and struck those claims. One of the plaintiffs, Jai Prem, failed to appear at 
trial, and the court declared a mistrial as to that plaintiff on May 24, 2010. Upon the close of plaintiffs’ case, Coverall 
moved for a directed verdict as to Geraldo Correia. That motion was granted. At the same time, the court issued a 
ruling rejecting plaintiffs’ claim that Coverall’s Janitorial Franchise Agreement was unconscionable. On May 26, 
2010, the jury returned a verdict in favor of Coverall as to Benecira Calvalcante and Aldivar Brandao. The claims of 
the three plaintiffs whose claims were subject to arbitration, plus one additional plaintiff, Manuel DaSilva, were 
arbitrated with the federal judge in the case acting as the arbitrator in October 2010. On December 15, 2010, the 
Arbitrator ruled that: plaintiff Richard Barrientos failed to prove his claims and was not entitled to recover anything; 
plaintiff Denise Pineda proved that she was misclassified as an independent contractor under the laws of the State of 
New Jersey but failed to prove that she incurred any damages, and was therefore entitled to no recovery; plaintiffs 
Manuel DaSilva and Pius Awuah failed to prove their claims of fraud and breach of contract, but were entitled to 
damages on their misclassification claims of $5,656.30 and $1,553.40, respectively. Pius Awuah’s award was subject 
to a set-off of $671.71, reducing his award to $881.69. On October 26, 2010, the Court entered an Order certifying 
four questions to the Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court regarding what an employer may legitimately deduct from 
“earned wages” under Massachusetts law. The Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court issued an opinion on August 
31, 2011 concluding that an employer may not deduct certain items from earned wages if the person is deemed to be 
an employee. On September 23, 2011, the Court certified the following class: All individuals who owned a Coverall 
Franchise and performed work for Coverall customers in Massachusetts at any time between February 15, 2004, and 
June 30, 2010, and who had not (i) signed an arbitration agreement, or (ii) had their claims adjudicated. The Court 
ruled that Plaintiffs were entitled, as damages incurred, to the amounts paid for franchise fees, additional business 
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fees, and insurance, and to amounts withheld as chargebacks. On March 15, 2012, the Court ruled that treble damages 
would be allowed for a certain time period. On May 10, 2012, the Court entered a partial judgment: (i) giving 109 
class members a total of $2,949,322.49 in damages, in individually varying amounts; (ii) dismissing the claims of 27 
class members with prejudice, on the grounds that they signed enforceable releases; (iii) dismissing the claims of 11 
other franchisees – those whose claims had either been arbitrated or adjudicated or rejected at summary judgment 
because their agreements were with Coverall Service Franchisees – with prejudice; (iv) awarding Pius Awuah and 
Manuel DaSilva $34,119 in attorney’s fees and $3,362.12 in costs; and (v) based on an Offer of Judgment, awarding 
Jai Prem judgment in the amount of $5,000 on all counts of Plaintiff’s Third Amended Complaint, inclusive of all 
damages, attorney’s fees, costs and interest In February 2012, the Court put into the class certain franchise owners 
who were transferees of franchise owners that had arbitration agreements in their franchise agreements, but whom the 
Court found did not have specific notice of their obligation to arbitrate. Coverall appealed that decision to the U.S. 
Court of Appeals for the First Circuit. The First Circuit reversed the Court’s decision and remanded the matter to the 
District Court for further proceedings (including an entry of a stay of proceedings involving those franchisees who 
have arbitration agreements). In May 2012, Plaintiffs filed a motion seeking to expand the Awuah class to include all 
franchise owners who had provided services in Massachusetts at any time since February 15, 2004, regardless of 
whether they had agreed to arbitrate disputes with Coverall. The Court denied that motion in July 2012. In September 
2012, following a notice filed by Plaintiffs that claimed that Coverall had violated a court order pertaining to franchise 
owners who had commenced arbitration proceedings against Coverall, the Court sanctioned Coverall by allowing ten 
arbitration claimants to join the Awuah class. Coverall appealed that decision to the First Circuit. The First Circuit 
reversed the District Court’s sanctions decision, holding that Coverall had not violated the Court’s order, and remanded 
the matter to the District Court for further proceedings. In January 2013, Plaintiffs filed a motion for reconsideration 
regarding the enforceability of certain releases. Plaintiffs asserted that, in light of a new opinion from the 
Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court, releases that did not specifically reference the Massachusetts Wage Act were 
not enforceable as to claims arising under that Act. In February 2013, the Court granted the plaintiffs’ motion for 
reconsideration and allowed 27 class members who had signed releases to maintain claims for damages. By agreement 
of the parties, fourteen persons who had filed for arbitration against Coverall but who had signed releases were also 
permitted to join the class. On September 16, 2013, the Court entered a Final Amended Judgment in the amount of 
$4,803,078.16 (exclusive of attorneys’ fees and costs), dismissed the claims of nine Class Members, and awarded the 
two arbitration claimants whose claims were arbitrated by the Court a total of $37,481.12 in attorneys’ fees and costs. 
Coverall appealed the Final Amended Judgment, including all of the Court’s liability and damages rulings, to the First 
Circuit, and the appeal was docketed as Case No. 13-2190. Plaintiffs cross-appealed the District Court’s (a) May 2010 
sanctions ruling, as to plaintiffs Cavalcante and Correia; and (b) ruling that Coverall is not liable to any franchise 
owner who purchased his franchise from a Coverall master. The First Circuit docketed the cross-appeal as Case No. 
13-2274. The parties submitted their briefs and oral arguments were scheduled to be heard on January 7, 2015. On 
January 6, 2015, based on the parties report of a pending settlement, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the First Circuit 
granted a joint motion to postpone oral arguments indefinitely, then after a certification from the U.S. District Court 
that it was willing to undertake the various procedures necessary to certify a class and approve settlement, the First 
Circuit remanded the case to the District Court. This matter was settled as described below. 

Between December 2011 and February 2012, 115 other franchise owners, represented by the same attorneys 
as those representing the Plaintiffs in Awuah, filed demands for arbitration with the American Arbitration Association 
(“AAA”). Two additional franchise owners filed similar arbitration demands in December 2013. These owners 
claimed that Coverall had misclassified them under Massachusetts law as independent contractors. Thirty-six of the 
claimants (including fifteen franchise owners who were allowed to join the Awuah class, and nineteen who sought 
unsuccessfully to join the Awuah class) subsequently withdrew their arbitration demands. Fifty-six claimants did not 
pay their share of AAA filing fees; Coverall withheld payment of its share of the fees for two of the claimants pending 
settlement discussions. Coverall settled with one of the AAA claimants, Rufino Henriquez, in August 2013 and paid 
him a total of $25,000.00. Coverall settled with another of the AAA claimants, Jose Carlos Moraes, in October 2013 
by paying him $10,805.00 and repurchasing his accounts for $1,695.00. All of the remaining AAA matters were settled 
as described below. 

Awuah, Cooks, AAA Settlement. On April 15, 2015, the parties entered into a settlement agreement to 
resolve all of the Cooks (above) claims, Awuah (above) plaintiffs’ claims, and the AAA (above) claims, as well as 
potential claims by any other Coverall franchisee operating in Massachusetts. The District Court issued a Final 
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Judgment Order approving the settlement on July 27, 2015, and the settlement became effective on August 29, 2015. 
The material terms of the settlement were: 1) the Class was revised to include: i. Awuah Class Claimants; ii. Cooks 
Class Claimants; iii. AAA Claimants; and iv. all Coverall franchisees currently operating in Massachusetts, including 
those operating through Coverall’s master franchisee, R&B Services, Inc.; 2) Coverall paid $5.5 Million to the Class; 
3) all franchise agreements of the Class were terminated; 4) Customers were transitioned to servicing Class members; 
and 5) Coverall withdrew from Massachusetts. 

Mario Danek, et al v. Coverall North America, Inc. (Superior Court of Alameda County, California, Case 
No. RG13701706) filed November 1, 2013. Plaintiffs were ex-employees of Coverall in California who alleged failure 
to reimburse certain business expenses in violation of the California Labor Code and of the California Unfair 
Competition Law (“UCL”) on behalf of themselves and a claimed class of purportedly similarly situated plaintiffs. 
The claim involved a technical issue in Coverall’s auto expense reimbursement policy, asserting that as to the plaintiffs 
and the claimed class failed to reimburse all business expenses incurred as a result of the use of their personal motor 
vehicles in the course of their duties in that Coverall’s auto reimbursement policy was a fixed monthly amount, and 
did not in the normal course include a mileage factor or other reimbursement if that amount was exceeded. The UCL 
claim was that this policy was an unlawful, unfair, and/or fraudulent business practice. The plaintiffs sought 
certification as a class, a finding that Coverall’s business expense policy violated the California Labor Code and the 
UCL, reimbursement of any unreimbursed expenses and interest on those unreimbursed amounts, civil penalties 
permitted by the California Labor Code, attorneys’ fees and costs. Coverall modified its auto reimbursement policy to 
better conform to the California Labor Code. 

In January 2015, the parties reached a settlement. The material terms of the Settlement were: Coverall paid 
i) $125,000.00 to class counsel for fees expenses; and ii) approximately $35,000 to potential claimants not yet 
reimbursed for additional amounts due in addition to the $225,000 amount previously paid by Coverall based on 
mileage records submitted by claimants. On April 17, 2015, the settlement became final and the case was dismissed 
with prejudice to all claims of the Plaintiffs, Mario Danek, Claudia Osorio and Olivero Rodriguez, and without 
prejudice to all claims of the Putative Class Members. 

Sabrina Laguna v. Coverall North America, Inc. (Superior Court of California County of San Diego, Civil 
Action No. 37-2008-00089347-CU-OE-CTL) filed August 8, 2008. Plaintiff, a then-current franchisee, filed this 
purported class action variously claiming that Coverall negligently or intentionally misrepresented that it had sufficient 
business to satisfy its contractual obligations; that Plaintiffs were misclassified as independent contractors and that 
they were or are employees of Coverall who should be earning minimum wage and other benefits of “employment;” 
and that Coverall takes advantage of immigrants with limited English language skills. Coverall filed a demurrer on 
October 3, 2008. The demurrer was sustained as the causes of action for negligent misrepresentation and declaratory 
relief but overruled as to certain other aspects of the demurrer. The case was removed to the United States District 
Court for the Southern District of California on September 29, 2009 and given case number 3:09-cv-02131-JM-RBB. 
Through amended complaints, plaintiffs, Carlos Acevedo and Teresa Salas, and defendants, Allied Capital 
Corporation, CNA Holding Corporation, and Ted Elliott, were added. A Class Action Settlement Agreement and 
Release (the “Settlement”) filed on September 12, 2011 and approved by the court on February 23, 2012, after a 
Fairness Hearing on November 21, 2011. The class certified in February 2012 under the Settlement was defined as: A 
class of all persons or entities who (1) executed a Janitorial Franchise Agreement with Coverall for a franchise to be 
located in the State of California, and (2) between August 8, 2004, and entry of the Preliminary Approval Order, 
performed janitorial or cleaning services in the State of California pursuant to a Janitorial Franchise Agreement entered 
into between the person(s) or entity and Coverall. The material terms of the Settlement were: (1) Coverall will assign 
customer Service Agreements to the operating franchisees excluding those Service Agreements that prohibit 
assignment, cover multiple locations, and National Account Customers; (2) Former franchisees who submit a valid 
claim will receive $475; (3) Former franchisees who indicate an interest in purchasing a new franchise on or before 
November 8, 2011 and who close the transaction within 120 days of Final Approval of the Settlement will receive a 
$750 credit toward the purchase price; and 4) New franchisees in California shall have thirty (30) days from signing 
to rescind or cancel their Franchise Agreement. 

There was an appeal of the Court’s order approving the settlement to the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals. That 
appeal was heard by a 3 judge panel of the 9th Circuit in November 2013, and the panel upheld the settlement. There 
was then a request by the objector to the 9th Circuit to hear the matter en banc. The objector settled with Coverall for 
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$15,000, and dismissed his appeal. The 9th Circuit considered on its own whether to re-hear the matter en banc, but 
as there was no longer any objector, decided to vacate the decision of the panel and remand the case to the district 
court to effect the settlement without change. The settlement became effective December 15, 2014. 

Maria Mora v. Coverall North America, Inc., et al. (Circuit Court County of Washington, Oregon Case No. 
C140316 CV), filed January 23, 2014. Plaintiff is a franchisee of Cavalier Services, Inc. (“Cavalier”). Cavalier is an 
independently owned and operated Master Franchisee of Coverall. The named defendants were Coverall, Cavalier and 
John Bartholf, President of Cavalier. Plaintiff alleged common law fraud, violations of the Oregon Unlawful Trade 
Practices Act and Oregon Franchise Act, and breach of contract, and sought declaratory judgments on whether the 
franchise agreement provisions relating to mediation, arbitration, the initial business guarantee and certain liquidated 
damages are unconscionable, and she claimed damages in the amount of $234,686.00. Coverall has no agreement with 
Mora and had no contact with Mora. On April 10, 2014 a Settlement Agreement was entered into between all the 
parties by which Cavalier repurchased Plaintiff’s Coverall Franchise for $8,500.00, forgave her obligations to Cavalier 
for the balance of her promissory note and terminated her Coverall Franchise, effective April 10, 2014. Plaintiff 
released all parties and the action was dismissed with prejudice on June 14, 2014. 

United States of America v. Coverall North America, Inc. (Civil Action No. 94 C 1178). On March 18, 
1994, a Consent Decree was entered in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Illinois in United 
States of America v. Coverall North America, Inc. (Civil Action No. 94 C 1178). In voluntarily entering into the 
Consent Decree, we did not admit any liability for the alleged violations. The U.S., on behalf of the Federal Trade 
Commission, alleged that we did not make proper disclosures regarding our janitorial franchisees, should have 
included an earnings’ claim disclosure in connection with the offer of customer contracts as part of the franchise 
package purchased by janitorial franchisees, and, in some circumstances, did not wait the full ten business days 
between furnishing an Offering Circular and executing a Franchise Agreement. Without admitting liability, we agreed 
to pay a civil penalty of $100,000 and to be enjoined from not complying with the FTC’s franchise disclosure rule. 
We include certain information in Item 19 as agreed with the FTC. 

Other than these actions, no litigation of Coverall is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 4 - BANKRUPTCY 

Coverall: 

On October 21, 2011, James F. Bellante, Jr., General Manager of our Pittsburgh Support Center, filed for relief 
under Chapter 13 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (United States Bankruptcy Court Western District of Pennsylvania, 
Pittsburgh), Case No: 11-26498-CMB, and a discharge was granted on November 15, 2016.  

On December 20, 2012, Nicole Ivey, our Vice President of Marketing, filed for relief under Chapter 13 of the U.S. 
Bankruptcy Code (United States Bankruptcy Court Northern District of Illinois, Chicago), Case No. 12-49720, and a 
discharge was granted on October 2, 2013. On May 9, 2014, the case was closed. 

On July 1, 2015, Chris Taylor, our General Manager, filed for relief under Chapter 13 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code 
(United States Bankruptcy Court Southern District of Ohio), Case No. 1:15bk12594, and a discharge was granted on July 
15, 2020. On September 15, 2020, the case was closed. 

Other than these actions, no bankruptcy is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 5 - INITIAL FEES 

HOW YOUR FEE IS DETERMINED 

All Franchised Businesses pay an Initial Franchise Fee for the franchise rights. This fee will be between $15,570.00 
and $40,320.00, depending on the Franchise Package purchased. Payment is due in full when the Franchise Agreement is 
signed, unless it is financed as described below and in Item 10. The Initial Franchise Fee is not refundable except as 
described at the end of Item 5 below.   
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If you pay the entire fee in cash, we will discount the Initial Franchise Fee, as described in this Item 5, by 5%.  

We currently offer Veterans who are qualified applicants a 10% discount on the Initial Franchise Fee. If the Veteran 
finances a portion of the Initial Franchise Fee, however, the down payment specified below for the Franchise Package 
remains the same. In order to qualify and participate in our Veteran Program, the majority owner of a Franchised Business 
must: (i) be a United States military veteran; (ii) have been honorably discharged from any branch thereof; (iii) provide us 
with a certified copy of the owner’s Certificate of Release or Discharge from Active Duty (DD 214 Form) evidencing 
honorable discharge; (iv) otherwise meet the requirements of our Veteran Program; and, (v) request participation in our 
Veteran Program prior to signing the Franchise Agreement. We may, in our sole discretion, modify or discontinue our 
Veteran discount program at any time.  Coverall is also a participating member of the International Franchise Association's 
VetFran Program (Veteran's Transition Franchise Initiative). Under the VetFran Program, veterans who qualify for and 
obtain an 85% Small Business Administration Loan Guaranty will receive a 25% discount on the Initial Franchise Fee. 
Veterans must choose only one of the discounts offered, either the 5% cash discount or the 10% discount on the Initial 
Franchise Fee.  

In addition, on or before the completion of Initial Training and prior to commencing operations of your Franchised 
Business, you must either purchase from us a starter-kit of equipment, chemicals and supplies in the amount ranging from 
$990.00 to $2,550.00 or demonstrate to us that you have purchased the specified equipment, chemicals and supplies 
necessary to get started in your business. 

Except as disclosed above, you are not required to pay us or our affiliates any other fees or payments for services 
or goods before your Franchised Business commences operations. 

THE PACKAGES 

You buy a specific Franchise Package that includes training and provision within a specified time of an initial 
amount of customers to service. 

We sell our franchises by packages (the "Franchise Package"). Our Franchise Packages are sold based on the 
monthly dollar volume of business that you choose to service ("Initial Business"). In other words, we offer you cleaning 
customers to service totaling a specific dollar amount as follows: 

FRANCHISE PACKAGE INITIAL MONTHLY BUSINESS VOLUME OFFERED 
P- 3,000 $ 3,000
P- 4,000 $4,000
P- 5,000 $ 5,000
P- 7,000 $ 7,000
P-10,000 $10,000

WE DESCRIBE THESE FRANCHISE PACKAGES IN TERMS OF THE GROSS DOLLAR VOLUME OF 
INITIAL BUSINESS WHICH WE ARE OBLIGATED TO OFFER YOU. THE SIZE OF THE FRANCHISE PACKAGE 
DOES NOT REPRESENT HOW MUCH MONEY YOU WILL NET (RECEIVE) EACH MONTH FROM YOUR 
FRANCHISE AND IS NOT A GUARANTEE THAT YOU WILL EARN AN EQUIVALENT AMOUNT OF REVENUE. 
IT IS A GROSS NUMBER AND THE AMOUNT THAT YOU NET DEPENDS UPON A NUMBER OF FACTORS 
INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, FEES COVERALL CHARGES UNDER YOUR AGREEMENT, THE 
EXPENSES THAT YOU INCUR TO SERVICE YOUR CUSTOMERS, WHETHER THE CUSTOMERS ARE 
ENTITLED TO CREDITS FOR MISSED OR POOR SERVICE, OR THE CUSTOMER TERMINATES YOUR 
SERVICES, OR THE CUSTOMER FAILS TO PAY FOR YOUR SERVICES. ONCE YOUR PACKAGE IS FULFILLED, 
IT IS UP TO YOU TO KEEP YOUR CUSTOMERS. COVERALL IS NOT OBLIGATED TO REPLACE LOST 
CUSTOMERS TO ENABLE YOU TO MAINTAIN THAT LEVEL OF GROSS DOLLAR VOLUME. OTHER THAN 
THE LIMITED GUARANTEES DESCRIBED IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, WE HAVE NO OBLIGATION 
TO CONTINUE TO OFFER YOU CUSTOMERS, AND WE MAKE NO REPRESENTATIONS REGARDING THE 
ACTUAL REVENUE THAT YOUR FRANCHISE BUSINESS MIGHT EARN. 



©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. 18 Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document 
74005932;6 

The Initial Franchise Fee for each Franchise Package is as follows: 

FRANCHISE 
PACKAGE 

TOTAL 
FEE 

DOWN 
PAYMENT 

AMOUNT 
FINANCED1

MONTHLY PAYMENT TERM 
(MONTHS)1

CASH 
DISCOUNT 

12 
mo. 

18 mo. 24 mo. 30 mo. 

P-3,000 $15,570.00 $4,000.00 $11,570.00 $995.7
8

$689.55 $544.63 $448.31 $778.50

P-4,000 $19,635.00 $7,500.00 $12,135.00 $1,044
.41

$723.22 $571.23 $470.21 $981.75

P-5,000 $22,890.00 $11,445.00 $ 11,445.00 $682.10 $538.76 $443.47 $1,144.50
P-7,000 $29,925.00 $14,962.50 $14,962.50 $891.73 $704.34 $579.77 $1,496.25
P-10,000 $40,320.00 $22,256.64 $18,063.36 $1,076.53 $850.31 $699.92 $2,016.00

1This is an example of one form of financing made available by Coverall. See Item 10. 

WHEN WE MUST OFFER YOUR INITIAL BUSINESS 

Coverall may or may not have an inventory of customers available to offer your dollar amount of Initial Business 
on the date you sign your Coverall Franchise Agreement or even on the date that you become eligible to accept customers 
(i.e., upon completion of your initial obligations).  Therefore, Coverall has between 120 and 330 business days from the 
date you complete your initial obligations to offer you your Initial Business, depending on the particular Franchise Package, 
as set forth in the following chart: 

Franchise Package Fulfillment Period Business Days 
P-3,000 120
P-4,000 150
P-5,000 180
P-7,000 240

P-10,000 330

Your initial obligations are completed (triggering the start of your Initial Business Offering Period outlined above) 
when: i) you or your designated employee, as approved by Coverall, has successfully completed the Initial Training Program 
and ii) your background screening has been approved. The completion of your initial obligations is recorded in our FranSys®

operating system.  The Initial Business Offering Period may by suspended if: i) Coverall requires you to attend retraining 
(see Item 11); or ii) you are in breach of any material provision of the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with 
Coverall.  

The customers that we offer you to fulfill your Franchise Package may be new customers recently acquired by 
Coverall; or they may be existing customers that become available for resale. You may be offered an existing customer 
because a customer requested replacement of the franchised business servicing its facility or a franchised business 
discontinued servicing a customer. These existing customers may be dissatisfied with their prior service and may be difficult 
to please. In addition, the results of your background screening may mean that you do not satisfy certain customer 
requirements and the customer may object to you servicing its facilities. 

Once Coverall's obligation to offer you Initial Business has been fulfilled, we have no obligation to offer you 
Additional Business. 

SPECIAL PROMOTIONS 

On occasion, we may offer special promotions or negotiate financing terms for the Franchised Business's benefit 
which do not affect the amount of the Franchise Fee, which may include, but is not limited to: offering a small equipment 
item as a promotion, providing an amount of free business which exceeds the package size, or financing a larger portion of 
the Initial Franchise Fee. 
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FULFILLING YOUR INITIAL BUSINESS 

If you reject a customer offered as part of your Initial Business, our obligation to offer that amount of Initial Business 
during the Initial Business Offering Period is satisfied. However, we will continue, after the expiration of the Initial Business 
Offering Period, to offer you customers to fulfill your Initial Business. You may reject customers offered to you to fulfill 
your Initial Business. If you do so unreasonably, our obligation to offer you customers to fulfill your Initial Business may 
be deemed satisfied. If you choose to stop servicing a customer that you have accepted as part of your Initial Business, you 
will not be entitled to replacement of that customer. 

The monthly dollar volume of Initial Business for any specific month may not equal the total Initial Business for a 
number of reasons, including, but not limited to: you may choose not to accept all of the customers we offer, we may offer 
you the Initial Business in stages throughout the Initial Business Offering Period, customers may request a change of 
franchised business or cancel the contract due to poor service, and the customer may move or cancel for other reasons before 
the end of the Initial Business Offering Period. 

Once you accept a customer, Coverall will assign the Service Agreement to you, excluding those Service 
Agreements that prohibit assignment, cover multiple locations, or apply to National Account Customers, subject to your 
payment in full of your Franchise Fee. The assignment will be subject to the terms and conditions of your Coverall Franchise 
Agreement. (See attached Exhibit G, Franchised Business Customer Acceptance Forms). After assignment to you by 
Coverall, an assigned Service Agreement will be solely between you and the customer. 

THE NON-REFUNDABLE FRANCHISE FEE 

Except as otherwise provided herein or if a Franchise application is rejected, the Initial Franchise Fee is non-
refundable. A portion of the Initial Franchise Fee, $5,000, is the price that you pay for the license granted to you to use the 
Coverall® Marks and System, described in Paragraph 1 of the Coverall Franchise Agreement, Exhibit A.1. 

PARTIAL REFUND FOR COVERALL'S FAILURE TO TIMELY OFFER INITIAL BUSINESS 

You may request a refund of a portion of the Initial Franchise Fee if we do not: (i) offer you the full amount of 
Initial Business within the Initial Business Offering Period, or (ii) offer you within a reasonable time after the expiration of 
the Initial Business Offering Period an amount of Initial Business equal to that which you reasonably rejected during the 
Initial Business Offering Period, or (iii) offer to replace within a reasonable time an amount equivalent to the contract value 
of a customer lost by you through no fault of your own during the Initial Business guarantee Offering Period. The refund is 
equal to the then current Multiplier published and revised from time to time in the Franchised Business Policies and 
Procedures Manual times the amount of Initial Business not offered to you. For example, if you purchased a P-5,000 package 
and we offer you a total of $4,500 in monthly Gross Dollar Volume within the Initial Business Offering Period, then a 
refund would be calculated at the then current Multiplier, which is 3.0 as of the date of this Franchise Disclosure Document, 
times $500, which totals $1,500. However, you may choose instead to reduce the size of the Franchise Package that you 
purchased. If you do, Coverall will refund the difference between the Franchise Fee you paid and the Franchise Fee 
customarily charged for the smaller Franchise Package. If, at the time of either refund you owe us money, then the amount 
of the refund will first be applied to any outstanding balance on any promissory note or other obligation you owe us, with 
any remaining sum paid to you. Such a refund fulfills our obligation to offer or provide any remaining portion of the Initial 
Business or replacement Initial Business, and as a condition of the refund, you will be required to sign a general release in 
favor of Coverall. After accepting this refund, if you decide to grow your business by acquiring customers from Coverall, 
you will have to purchase those customers. The refund will be your sole remedy. 
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Coverall shall have no obligation to refund any portion of any payment made under your Franchise Agreement if 
you are in breach of any material provision of the agreement, or any other agreement between you and Coverall, until all 
such material breaches are cured.  

ITEM 6 - OTHER FEES 

TYPE OF FEE18 AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 
Royalty1,3,4, 5 5% of Gross Dollar 

Volume 
Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month

"Gross Dollar Volume" means the 
total amount billed to the customer for 
your cleaning services.

Support Fee1,2,3,4 10% of Gross Dollar 
Volume 

Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month 

We provide business and support 
services, including promotional and 
sales assistance; billing, collection and 
certain record keeping; cash flow 
protection services; and assistance 
with customer relations. 

Ongoing Equipment and 
Supply Packages5

Varies  As incurred Mandatory. 

General Liability 
Insurance1,3,4,6,7,8,9

$58- $351 monthly 
initially, and up to 
$5,000 monthly, 
depending on dollar 
volume

Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month 

Participation in our program is 
optional. The amount depends upon 
your Gross Dollar Volume. 

Coverall Accident 
Insurance 
Program1,3,4,8,9,10

2.4% of Gross Dollar 
Volume for the first 
shareholder or 
member owner, not to 
exceed $600, plus 
$15.00 per month for 
each additional 
shareholder 
or member owner

Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month. 

Participation in our program is 
optional. The amount depends upon 
your Gross Dollar Volume. 

Non-Conviction 
Janitorial Fidelity Bond 
or Alternative Non- 
Conviction Janitorial 
Fidelity Bond6,8

$5.95 up to $29.95 Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month 

Participation in our program is 
optional and eligibility is determined 
from your background screening. In 
addition, depending upon the results of 
your background screening, you may 
not meet certain customer criteria and 
customers may want to reject your 
services.

Electronic Fund 
Transfer Fee11

$9.95 up to $29.95 Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month.

Participation in our program is 
optional. 

National Account 
Customer Retention1,3,4

Percentage, or 
another portion, 
determined at the 
time the customer is 
accepted or serviced

Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month 

Participation in our program is 
optional. You are not required to 
accept National Account Customers 
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TYPE OF FEE18 AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 
Operating Advance 
Fee3,4,12

Up to 10% of the 
amount advanced 

Deducted on the last 
calendar day of the 
month following the 
advance

Charged on Operating Advances 
approved by Coverall. 

Special Services Finder's 
Fee1,3,4,13

A one-time fee per 
service of 20% of 
total Special Services 
contract price

Deducted monthly on the 
last calendar day of the 
next month 

No charge if you sell the service to the 
customer yourself. 

Sales and Marketing Fee 
for Additional 
Business1,3,14,15

As published and 
revised from time to 
time in the Franchised 
Business Policies and 
Procedures Manual, 
not to exceed 5.0 
times one month's 
billing of the 
additional volume. 
Presently, 3.8 times 
one month's billing of 
the additional volume

Due when you accept 
customer(s) 

Participation is optional. You are not 
required to obtain Additional Business 
through us. See Item 10 for financing 
options. 

Franchise Transfer Fee3,4 A one-time fee as 
published and revised 
from time to time in 
the Franchised 
Business Policies and 
Procedures Manual

Before or at time of 
transfer 

A transfer fee may be charged if 
franchise is sold, assigned, transferred, 
or conveyed. 

Customer or Business 
Owed Administrative 
Transfer Fee3,4

See Remarks Before or at time of 
transfer 

10% of the customer Regular Service 
Volume, not to exceed $500, or 10% 
of the dollar amount of Business 
Owed, not to exceed $500, will be 
assessed to cover administrative costs 
if customers or Business Owed are 
transferred.

Audit Fee3,4,16 Cost of the Audit, 
will vary 

As incurred Payable only if an audit reveals a 
violation of the in-term restriction on 
your involvement in another 
commercial cleaning business or 
related business, or diverting 
customers to another entity.

Liquidated Damages3,4 $500 per day As incurred May be charged only if your services 
to a customer are discontinued for any 
reason, and you do not timely return 
all keys, security codes and cards.

Attorneys' Fees and 
Costs3,4

Will vary As incurred Payable only if we prevail in an action 
to enforce the Franchise Agreement.

Indemnification3,4 Will vary As incurred You are solely responsible and must 
indemnify and hold us harmless for all 
loss, damage, claims or demands 
arising from your operation of your 
Coverall Franchise.
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TYPE OF FEE18 AMOUNT DUE DATE REMARKS 
Franchise Application 
Fee 

$85.00 Due in full when the 
Franchise Agreement is 
signed. 

Coverall conducts background and 
financial investigations on all 
applicants. This is a one-time, non-
refundable fee and includes 
administrative costs.

False Documentation/ 
Information Fee17

Up to $200.00 Deducted on your first 
monthly statement; or 
deducted from any refund 
due you if your Franchise 
Application is rejected. 

If Franchised Business knowingly 
provides Coverall with false 
information on the Franchise 
Application, Coverall, at its sole 
discretion, will charge a False 
Documentation Fee. This is a one-
time, non-refundable fee and includes 
administrative costs.

1Billing and Collection Services. We have the exclusive right to bill and collect in your business name from the 
customers that you service. We will invoice them on your behalf for your services and any supplies purchased by them. The 
customers remit funds to us, then we forward you the balance remaining after deductions for your royalty and support fees, 
any note payments, the cost of supplies and/or equipment purchased by you from us, and any other authorized deductions 
(for example insurance premiums or electronic funds transfer fee) (the "Authorized Deductions"). If applicable, Coverall 
will remit on your behalf any state sales tax collected from your customers to the appropriate state taxing authority. Coverall 
reserves the right to apply the full amount received from any customer who cancels your services for any reason to reduce 
any financed or other debt owed by you to Coverall. 

Royalty and support fees are based on monthly Gross Dollar Volume for all services, including special services and 
any one-time building cleaning and maintenance services (e.g., carpet cleaning and hard floor maintenance) which you 
perform for any customer. The Initial Training Program is included in the Initial Franchise Fee. Royalty and support fees 
may be discounted by Coverall in our sole discretion. 

National Account Customers. With the exception of National Account Customers, you are entitled to receive the 
total amount collected from each customer, less all authorized deductions. National Account Customers are customers that 
have multiple national or regional locations. Coverall may retain a percentage, or another specified portion, of the total 
amount collected from the National Account Customer (the "Retention"). Therefore, the amount that you will receive for 
servicing a National Account Customer location may not be equivalent to a pro-rata share of the total monthly amount that 
is collected from that National Account Customer, or equivalent to a pro-rata share of the total monthly amount that is 
collected from that National Account Customer for the location serviced by you. To the extent that there is excess Retention, 
those funds are kept by Coverall. Royalty and support fees are billed to that National Account Customer. The Retention, 
however, does not affect the amount of Regular Service Volume offered to you to fulfill either your Initial Package or sold 
to you as Additional Business. If you accept a National Account Customer as Additional Business, then the Retention is in 
addition to the Sales and Marketing Fee you pay for Additional Business. If you accept a National Account Customer, the 
Service Agreement will not be assigned to you. 

2Cash Flow Protection Program. Under our Cash Flow Protection Program, we will advance (loan) to you 
amounts billed to the customers, whether or not we have collected from the customer. Advances will be made no earlier 
than the last calendar day of the first month (if the last calendar day of the month falls on a weekend and/or holiday, payment 
will be made on the next business day) following the month the services were provided. Advances attributable to billings 
for any one customer shall not exceed an amount equal to billings for sixty (60) days and shall not remain outstanding for a 
period exceeding ninety (90) days from the date on which the amount of the billing was due from the customer. If advances 
remain uncollected from the customer at the end of ninety (90) days, Franchised Business shall repay Coverall the total 
amount of the advance. This section does not apply to National Accounts or non-assigned service agreements. 

3All fees are imposed by and payable to us. 
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4These fees in this Item 6 are nonrefundable. 

5Initial Equipment and Supply Package. The equipment, chemicals and supplies that you purchase for your 
Franchised Business must satisfy Coverall's specifications. You will receive the specifications at Initial Training. If you 
choose, you may purchase your equipment, chemicals and supplies from Coverall, and Coverall may agree to finance such 
purchases. See Exhibit A to A.1 for Coverall's current pricing of the Initial Equipment and Supply Package as of the date 
of this Disclosure Document. The items included in Coverall's Initial Equipment and Supply Package and pricing of each 
package are subject to change, and any changes will be stated in the Coverall Franchised Business Policies and Procedures 
Manual or written notice from us advising you of the changes. 

6Business Protection Program. Under our Business Protection Program, we may make available to you and you 
may wish to participate in the Coverall general liability insurance and bonding program, which have been placed through a 
major insurance company. Your background screening is used to determine your eligibility for either the Janitorial Fidelity 
Bond or the High-Risk Janitorial Fidelity Bond portion of the Business Protection Program. The Business Protection 
Program is subject to cancellation. 

As described in Items 8 and 11, you must obtain this insurance according to minimum specifications. 

Participation in Coverall's Business Protection Plan provides the Franchised Business with general liability 
insurance and fidelity bond coverage as described in Items 8 and 11. The deductibles and plan limits for Coverall's Business 
Protection Plan and are as follows: 

Business Protection Plan limitsA: Deductible 

General Liability = $1,000,000 per occurrence, with $2,000,000 maximum per policy 
year.

$1,000 per occurrence 

Non-Conviction Janitorial Fidelity Bond = $1,000,000 per occurrence, and a $1,000,000 
maximum limit per policy year.

$5,000 per occurrence 

Umbrella = $25,000,000 per occurrence, with $25,000,000 total of claims covered during 
the policy period.

$10,000 per occurrence 

ADefense costs and other allocated loss adjustment expenses are in addition to limits. 

If you enroll in Coverall's Business Protection Plan and coverage has been determined to apply, Coverall will waive 
(the "Waiver") certain of its contractual indemnification rights against you except for the applicable deductibles under the 
Plan (see Paragraph 20 of the Coverall Franchise Agreement Exhibit A.1.). Accordingly, Coverall will not look to you for 
such contractual indemnification rights, to the extent that coverage applies under the Plan. 

Coverall's Business Protection Plan, including Coverall's waiver, does not provide coverage for the following: 
1)Workers' Compensation, 2) Automobile, 3) Medical, 4) Dental, 5) Plan Deductibles, and 6) Items Not Covered or 
excluded by the Applicable Policy. 

YOU ARE NOT REQUIRED TO PARTICIPATE IN THE COVERALL BUSINESS PROTECTION PLAN. YOU 
MAY BE ABLE TO OBTAIN THIS COVERAGE AT A LOWER COST ON YOUR OWN. THE FEES PAID TO 
PARTICIPATE IN THE COVERALL BUSINESS PROTECTION PLAN EXCEED THE COST TO COVERALL FOR 
THESE PROGRAMS. THESE EXCESS FUNDS ARE RETAINED BY AND INURE SOLELY TO THE BENEFIT OF 
COVERALL. COVERALL TYPICALLY MAKES A PROFIT ON ITS BUSINESS PROTECTION PROGRAM. 

7These amounts apply to the monthly dollar volume being serviced by Franchised Business. 

8If Franchised Business fails to obtain any or all insurance as specified herein and approved by Coverall, Coverall 
may (but shall not be required to), in addition to other remedies, purchase such insurance for the benefit of Franchised 
Business in which event Franchised Business agrees to promptly reimburse Coverall for the cost. In the event it becomes 
necessary for Franchised Business to reimburse Coverall for the costs of insurance, Franchisee Business authorizes Coverall 



©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. 24 Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document 
74005932;6 

to deduct the costs of the insurance, on a monthly basis, or as is otherwise necessary, from amounts billed and collected 
from Franchised Business's customers. 

On-The-Job Accident Program. You may want to participate in our Franchise Owner On-the-Job Accident 
Insurance Program (the "Coverall Accident Insurance Program"). This is not worker's compensation insurance and does 
not provide the scope of benefits available to you under a worker's compensation insurance policy. The Coverall 
Accident Insurance Program provides coverage for the Franchised Business Owner and not the Franchised Business's 
employees. As described in Items 8 and 11, if you do not participate in the Coverall Franchise Owner On- the-Job Accident 
Insurance Program and are not covered by a workers' compensation policy, you must obtain comparable insurance coverage 
according to our minimum specifications, which may change from time to time. The rate charged to participate in the 
Coverall Accident Insurance Program is subject to change. Any changes in the minimum specifications or rates will be 
stated in the Coverall Franchised Business Policies and Procedures Manual and/or by a written notice from us advising you 
of the changes. The Coverall Accident Insurance Program is subject to cancellation. The current Coverall Accident 
Insurance Program plan limits are as follows: 

BENEFIT LIMITS 
ACCIDENTAL DEATH

Principal Sum $150,000
Accident Commencement Period 365 Days
Deductible Amount $0

ACCIDENTAL DISMEMBERMENT
Principal Sum $250,000
Accident Commencement Period 365 Days
Deductible Amount $0

PARALYSIS 
Principal Sum  
Accident Commencement Period

$250,000 
365 Days

TEMPORARY TOTAL DISABILITY 
Commencement Period (Initial Disability) Waiting 
Period 
Participation Percentage 
Maximum Weekly Benefit Amount Maximum 
Benefit Period

90 Days 
7 Days 
70% 
$500 
104 Weeks or to age 70, whichever occurs first

CONTINUOUS TOTAL DISABILITY 
Participation Percentage 
Maximum Weekly Benefit Amount Maximum 
Benefit Period

70% 
$500 
4 years or to age 70, whichever occurs first

ACCIDENT MEDICAL EXPENSE 
Commencement Period Deductible Amount Maximum 
Benefit Period Maximum Benefit Amount 

90 Days 
$0 
104 Weeks 
$1,000,000

DENTAL $250/tooth per accident, not to exceed $2,500
OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE 

Maximum Benefit Amount Subject to accident medical expense limit

YOU ARE NOT REQUIRED TO PARTICIPATE IN THE COVERALL ACCIDENT INSURANCE PROGRAM. 
YOU MAY BE ABLE TO OBTAIN THE REQUIRED COVERAGE AT LOWER COST ON YOUR OWN. THE FEES 
PAID TO PARTICIPATE IN THE COVERALL ACCIDENT INSURANCE PROGRAM EXCEED THE COST TO 
COVERALL FOR THE PROGRAM. THESE EXCESS FUNDS ARE RETAINED BY AND INURE SOLELY TO THE 
BENEFIT OF COVERALL. COVERALL TYPICALLY MAKES A PROFIT ON ITS ACCIDENT INSURANCE 
PROGRAM. 
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10If you elect to participate in Coverall's Franchise Owner On-the-Job Accident Insurance Program, then your rate 
will be 2.4% per month for the first shareholder or member owner, plus $15.00 per month for each additional shareholder 
or member owner. These rates may change as provided in Footnote 10 above. (These rates include a 0.2% administration 
fee charged by Coverall.) Since the premium is a percentage of your monthly Gross Dollar Volume, you may be able to 
procure this coverage elsewhere for less than the cost of participating in this Program. Coverall makes a profit on its 
Accident Insurance Program. 

11Electronic Fund Transfer Fee. If you choose to have your monthly Franchise distribution deposited via 
electronic fund transfer ("EFT") to your business bank account, then you must pay Coverall a fee for this service. The fee 
is currently $9.95 per month. Any change in this fee will be stated in the Coverall Franchised Business Policies and 
Procedures Manual. This service may not be available in your Support Center. 

12Operating Advance. Coverall may in its sole discretion, advance funds to you ("Operating Advance") [in addition 
to our Cash Flow Protection Plan] against your customer receivables. You are required to repay such advances on the 30th 
day following the date upon which the advance is made along with the fee. 

13Special Services Finder's Fees. Special Services Finder's Fees are applied to one-time services contracts, for 
example, window cleaning and strip and refinishing floors, unless you sell the service to the customers yourself and furnish 
all equipment, supplies and labor, in which case no finder's fee is payable. Royalty and support fees are charged. Special 
Services Finder's Fees may be discounted by Coverall in our sole discretion. 

14Additional Business. We may occasionally offer you a new customer (including a National Account Customer), 
an increase in Regular Service Volume for a customer currently serviced by you, or a customer to fulfill your Initial Package 
or Business Owed the contract value of which exceeds the amount that we are obligated to offer you ("Additional Business"). 
You may accept or refuse Additional Business. As a condition of acceptance and purchase of Additional Business, you will 
be required to sign a general release in favor of Coverall. (See attached Exhibit G, Franchised Business Customer 
Acceptance Forms.) 

15Sales and Marketing Fee for Additional Business. The sales and marketing fee is charged for customers 
purchased by you from us to grow your business. (You do not have to purchase Additional Business from us.) The sales 
and marketing fee will be the then-current Multiplier published and revised from time to time in the Franchised Business 
Policies and Procedures Manual. As a condition of your acceptance and purchase of Additional Business, you will be 
required to sign a general release in favor of Coverall. (See attached Exhibit G, Franchised Business Customer Acceptance 
Forms.) The current Multiplier is 3.8 times one month's Gross Dollar Volume for the Additional Business. The multiplier 
may not exceed 5.0. For example, if we offer and you accept Additional Business in the amount of $1,500.00 in monthly 
Gross Dollar Volume, at the current rate of 3.8 times, you will pay a sales and marketing fee of $5,700.00. The amount of 
the sales and marketing fee that you will pay will be specified in writing at the time you accept Additional Business. 

Once Coverall's obligation to offer you Initial Business has been fulfilled, we have no obligation to offer you 
Additional Business. If we offer you Additional Business and you accept it, we may finance up to eighty percent (80%) of 
the sales and marketing fee, at our discretion. The amount that you pay for Additional Business is non-refundable, and if 
you financed the purchase of Additional Business through Coverall, you remain obligated to continue to pay Coverall. 
Coverall reserves the right to apply the full amount received from any customer who cancels your services for any reason 
to reduce any financed or other debt owed by you to Coverall. 

If you locate or solicit new business on your own, you will not be charged a sales and marketing fee. However, 
royalty and support fees will be charged. We do not guarantee new business that you obtain; and billing and collection of 
all new business obtained by you shall be performed through Coverall, unless otherwise agreed by Coverall in writing. 

16Audit Fee. If Coverall conducts an audit of your Franchised Business records and discovers that you are in 
violation of the in-term restriction against your involvement in another commercial cleaning or related business, or against 
diverting customers to another entity, then you must pay Coverall for any reasonable expenses or costs incurred in 
conducting the audit. 



©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. 26 Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document 
74005932;6 

17If you knowingly provide Coverall with false information on the Franchise Owner Application, then Coverall, at 
its sole discretion, will charge a False Documentation/Information Fee in order to recover its administrative and other costs. 
This fee will not exceed $200, unless otherwise stated in the Coverall Franchised Business Policies and Procedures Manual. 

18All fees are uniformly imposed except in those instances where Coverall reserves discretion with regard to the 
amount of the fee to be imposed, or where the amount of the fee cannot be determined until the occurrence of the event that 
triggers the imposition of the fee. 

ITEM 7 - ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

Type of expenditure Amount 

Method 
of 

payment When due 

To whom 
payment is to 

be made 
Initial Franchise 
Fee1,2,3,4

$15,570-$40,320 As 
Arranged 

At signing of 
Franchise 
Agreement

Coverall 

Initial Equipment and 
Supply Package3,4

$990 - $2,550 As 
Arranged

As Incurred Coverall or 
Supplier

Corporate Filings, 
Banking, Business 
License, and Permits2,4

$175-$500 As 
Arranged 

As Incurred State and local 
government, 
Financial 
Institution, as 
applicable

Office Supplies & 
Equipment2,4,5,12

$0-$120 As 
Arranged

As Incurred Supplier 

Apparel2,4,6 $15-$150 Lump 
Sum

As Incurred Coverall 

Misc. Pre-Opening 
Costs2,4

$0-$300 As 
Arranged

As Incurred Supplier 

Additional Funds (four 
months)2,4,7,8,9,10

$314-$3,500 As 
Arranged

As Incurred Supplier 

General Liability 
Insurance8

$0-$1,479.84 Deducted 
Monthly 

Deducted on the last 
calendar day of the 
next month

Coverall or 
Supplier 

Franchise Owner On 
the Job Accident 
Insurance8

$0-$960 Deducted 
Monthly 

Deducted on the last 
calendar day of the 
next month

Coverall or 
Supplier 

Non-Conviction 
Janitorial Fidelity Bond 
or Alternative Non-
Conviction Janitorial 
Fidelity Bond8

$23.80-$47.80 Deducted 
Monthly 

Deducted on the last 
day of the next 
month 

Coverall or 
Supplier 

Automobile Insurance14 $500 -$5,000 As 
Arranged

As Incurred Supplier 

Workers' Compensation 
Insurance13

$104 - $5,680 As 
Arranged

As Incurred Supplier 

Vehicle15 $225-$2,300 As 
Arranged

As Incurred Supplier 

Total1,2,9,10,11 $17,917 – $62,908 

1You may choose to finance a portion of the Initial Franchise Fee as described in Items 5 and 10. 
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2Most amounts are affected by the size of the Franchise Package you purchase. Generally, the greater the Initial 
Business purchased, the greater the amount of the initial investment. (See Item 5.) 

3The Initial Franchise Fee is discussed in detail in Item 5. We offer financing for the Initial Franchise Fee at 6%, 
9%, or 12% interest as described in Item 10. The term of the loan is up to 30 months depending upon the franchise package 
you purchase, described in Item 5 and Item 10. We will provide you with initial training and start-up cleaning customers, 
all of which are included in the Initial Franchise Fee. (See Exhibit A to A.1 for a detailed list of equipment, chemicals and 
supplies that you will need to purchase to start your Franchised Business). The commercial cleaning industry is highly 
competitive; and customers can be lost for any number of reasons, including but not limited to, poor service, the customer 
chooses a lower priced provider, the customer goes out of business or files for bankruptcy protection, economic 
circumstances cause the customer to terminate outside vendors. Because of these factors, we are unable to predict with any 
certainty the point at which you might recover your initial investment in your franchised business. 

4These fees are nonrefundable. A Coverall Franchised Business must be a corporation or limited liability company, 
and must keep separate accounting, banking, and financial records for the Franchised Business. Each Franchised Business 
must obtain a Federal Employer Identification Number, and obtain a business license, if applicable. You will need to open 
a business checking account in connection with your business. 

5Includes office supplies, business cards, and identification badges. 

6You are required to purchase approved apparel at a cost of about $15-$30 per person for all persons performing 
services for the Franchised Business. Although we sell approved apparel, you are not required to purchase apparel from us. 
However, we must approve the use of any Coverall® Marks appearing on apparel purchased from third parties. 

7You will need additional funds for expenditures during the start-up phase to the extent that these costs are not 
covered by your initial Gross Dollar Volume. We define the start-up phase to be four months after you begin servicing your 
first customer. Depending on your accounts you may need additional equipment such as a floor polisher, the purchase cost 
of which has been included in the maximum amount. We offer financing for the purchase of equipment from us as described 
in Item 10. The "additional funds" category reported here is not an assurance that additional working capital will not be 
needed. Your own managerial ability and other factors beyond our control may result in additional start-up expenditures or 
time. 

8The cost of insurance varies depending upon your prior history, terms of payment, and various other factors. The 
range of prices for comprehensive liability insurance purchased through our Business Protection Program initially is 
ordinarily $116 to $369.96 per month, depending on your Gross Dollar Volume. Your background screening is used to 
determine your eligibility for either the Fidelity Bond or the High-Risk Fidelity Bond portion of the Business Protection 
Program. The range of prices for job related accident insurance purchased through Coverall is ordinarily $72 to $240 per 
month, for $3,000 and $10,000 Franchise Packages, respectively, for the first shareholder or member owner, plus $15.00 
per month for each additional shareholder or member owner. The rate for Coverall's Accident Program will be 2.4% 
(including Coverall's 0.2% administration fee) of monthly Gross Dollar Volume for the first shareholder or member owner, 
plus $15.00 per month for each additional shareholder or member owner. Coverall's rates for insurance coverages are subject 
to change per footnote 10 in Item 6. If such change(s) is made, the premium may differ by state(s). The fees collected by 
Coverall from its Franchised Businesses for participation in the Business Protection Program or the Accident Program may 
exceed the cost to Coverall for these programs. Fees in excess of cost are retained by Coverall. Coverall typically makes a 
profit on these programs. These ranges are based on four months of expenses. The estimated ranges above assumes you 
have no business fulfilled, on the low end and the amount of business set to be fulfilled under the P-10 Franchise Package, 
on the high end. However, this is not a maximum; if your Franchise exceeds the amount of business set to be fulfilled in the 
P-10 Franchise Package, your costs will increase accordingly. 

9We do not require you to purchase or lease any real estate. Most Coverall Franchised Businesses operate from 
home. In addition, since many Franchised Businesses do not have employees during the start-up phase, payroll costs are not 
included here. 
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10Your costs will depend on factors such as: how well you follow our Coverall Program; management skill, 
experience, and business acumen of owners and employees; local economic conditions; the local market for cleaning 
services; customer retention rate, and competition. We relied on our experience in the commercial cleaning business since 
1985 to compile these estimates. You should review these figures carefully with a business advisor before making any 
decision to purchase the franchise. 

11This amount includes the Initial Franchise Fee, a portion of which may be financed. 

12You are required to have access for your personnel to a personal computer or hand-held device with Internet access 
and full-web browser capabilities, and the ability to send and receive electronic mail. However, we are not specifying what 
type of device you use to access the Internet and electronic mail. 

13If you have employees, you must also obtain workers' compensation insurance for state statutory limits. In 
addition, if anyone other than a Franchised Business owner provides services to, then you must obtain workers' 
compensation insurance, regardless of state law. Coverall does not offer a worker's compensation program to offer to its 
franchise owners at this time. The low end of the range assumes a workers' compensation coverage rate of $2.59 per $100 
of payroll, at a hourly wage of $7.25 for one employee working 40 hours per week and the high end of the range assumes a 
workers' compensation coverage rate of $17.75 per $100 of payroll, at an hourly wage of $16.50 for three employees 
working 40 hours per week.  Some insurance companies require an up-front deposit to purchase worker's compensation 
insurance. 

14This cost estimate represents the estimated annual costs to procure commercial automobile insurance for a 
potential franchisee utilizing their own, single (1) vehicle, the potential driver would have zero serious infractions on their 
record (DUI, Reckless Driving, Racing, Super Speeder, etcetera) and no more than 2 minor infractions, and the vehicle 
would be driven no more than 20,000 miles per year.  The actual cost will vary greatly and is ultimately determined by the 
insurance carrier. Not all individuals will be able to procure automobile insurance. Not all encompassing, but some factors 
that may factor into pricing and availability of insurance are driving record, driver age, geographical location, type of 
vehicle, miles driven per year, and history with the insurance carrier. 

15You will need a vehicle in connection with this business. The low estimate is for fuel and routine maintenance 
only and assumes you have an insured vehicle. The high estimate assumes you do not already have an insured vehicle and 
need to lease one or make payments on a purchased one (at a monthly lease rate of $400 per month) and must incur costs 
for fuel and routine maintenance. 

ITEM 8 - RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Quality control is an important part of the Coverall Program. The success of a national franchise system depends 
upon high standards and uniformity of workmanship. In order to achieve these high standards, proper cleaning agents, 
supplies, and equipment must be used. 

SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT 

We use our purchasing power to negotiate arrangements with some suppliers for your benefit, which typically 
represent a savings to you of 5-10% off the manufacturer's retail list price. We may charge a mark-up on these sales. You 
are not required to purchase any goods, services, supplies, fixtures, equipment, or inventory, for your business from us. The 
cost of equipment, chemicals, supplies, and apparel purchased in accordance with specifications, through us or another 
approved supplier, represents (along with the purchase of required insurance) 70%-80% of your non-payroll expenditures 
in establishing and operating your commercial cleaning franchise. This percentage does not include labor costs or the 
purchase of Additional Business. 

Due to quality control and branding considerations, you must purchase and use in your Franchised Business supplies 
and equipment according to our specifications as set forth in directives issued from time to time and/or as published and 
revised from time to time in the Franchised Business Policies and Procedures Manual. We identify approved suppliers and 
approved equipment, chemicals, and supplies. A current list of approved suppliers is available in Coverall's Franchised 
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Business Policies and Procedures Manual. We are an approved supplier of cleaning chemicals, janitorial supplies, cleaning 
equipment, and apparel. Approval qualification criteria include requirements such as the identification of product 
composition and compliance with OSHA requirements. If you would like to purchase non-approved equipment, chemicals, 
and supplies, you must submit a "Request for Approval" form, a sample of the proposed product or equipment (if possible), 
the Material Safety Data Sheet for the chemicals and the manufacturer's specifications. Upon receipt, we will test for 
performance indications, including: cleaning efficiency, safety, ease of application, durability, and economy, and notify you 
of our approval or disapproval within 30 days. There is no fee for this service. We will approve an item after this test if it 
meets approved supplier qualifications and the performance standards of a comparable, approved product. If we or a 
customer specify the use of specific products or equipment, you are obligated to purchase and use the specified products or 
equipment from an approved supplier. 

On or before the completion of Initial Training, if you do not purchase a starter-kit of equipment, chemicals and 
supplies from Coverall, you must demonstrate to Coverall that you have purchased the specified equipment, chemicals and 
supplies necessary to get started in your business. This is a one-time requirement. 

We reserve the right to revoke our approval of a supplier, product, or equipment if it is determined that it no longer 
meets quality standards. Upon written notification of revocation, you must immediately cease using the disapproved supplier 
or product. 

No officers of Coverall have any ownership interest in any suppliers used by Coverall. 

In the 2023 fiscal year, our revenues from the sale of all equipment, chemicals, supplies, insurance, and apparel to 
Franchised Businesses were $16,944,661.00 or 18.13% of our total revenues of $93,458,758.00.  This information is from 
our internal financial records. We received discounts from vendors of 20 to 50% on our purchases of equipment, chemicals 
and miscellaneous supplies, which we re-sell to our Franchised Businesses. You may or may not receive the full benefit of 
these discounts. In addition, in 2023, we received rebates totaling $144,539.00 from vendors or 0.15% of our total revenues 
of $93,458,758.00.  We retain, at our sole discretion, all rebates. All or some portion of any rebate may, at Coverall's sole 
discretion, be allocated to charitable endeavors. Neither Coverall nor any of its affiliates receive any rebates on any Service 
Franchisees' sale of equipment, chemicals, supplies, insurance, and branded apparel to their franchisees. 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT 

Your owners are required to have access to a cell phone and personal computer, or hand-held device, such as a cell 
phone, with Internet access, the ability to send and receive electronic mail and text messages, and full-web browsing 
capabilities. You must provide Coverall with a cell phone number and electronic mail address. We are not specifying what 
type of device you use, as long as you have the ability to send and receive electronic mail, text messages, and full-web 
browsing capabilities via the Internet. 

INSURANCE SPECIFICATIONS 

You are required, at your sole expense, to maintain insurance naming us as an additional insured on the face of each 
policy. You must obtain commercial general liability insurance covering property damage, loss and personal injury in 
amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 in the aggregate, and a $5,000,000 umbrella policy. Your 
commercial general liability insurance: i) shall identify the Franchised Business's business name as the named insured on 
the policy; ii) shall name Coverall as an additional insured on a primary and non-contributory basis and include a waiver of 
subrogation; iii) may not contain an exclusion for property in your care, custody, and control; iv) we strongly recommend 
that you obtain an endorsement that provides coverage for bodily injury, property damage, loss and personal injury resulting 
from building, cleaning and maintenance operation in a limit no less than the CGL required policy limits written on an 
occurrence basis; and v) umbrella shall follow form.  

Participation in Coverall's Business Protection Program provides Franchised Business with: i) the $1,000,000 per 
occurrence, $2,000,000 in the aggregate commercial general liability coverage; ii) an $25,000,000 umbrella, iii) Franchised 
Business is named as an additional insured on Coverall's policy; and iv) includes an endorsement that provides coverage for 



©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. 30 Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document 
74005932;6 

bodily injury, property damage, loss and personal injury resulting from building, cleaning and maintenance operations at a 
limit no less than the CGL policy limits, written on an occurrence basis. (See Item 6 for Business Protection Plan limits.) 

You must obtain comprehensive automobile liability insurance, including personal injury and property damage 
insurance, in the minimum amount of $50,000, the amount required by state law, or the amount required by your customers. 
Participation in Coverall's Business Protection Program does not provide you with this coverage. 

If you have employees, you must also obtain workers' compensation insurance for state statutory limits. In addition, 
if anyone other than a franchise owner provides services to customers on behalf of your franchised business, you must 
obtain workers' compensation insurance, regardless of state law. Coverall does not have a worker's compensation program 
to offer to its franchise owners at this time.  If you do not have workers' compensation insurance covering the owners of the 
franchised business, then you must obtain on-the-job accident insurance for yourself, with minimum coverage as follows: 
accidental death ($20,000.00), accidental dismemberment ($20,000.00), paralysis ($20,000.00), temporary total disability 
($500.00 per week for 52 weeks), continuous disability ($500.00 per week for 52 weeks), and accident medical expense 
(maximum benefit of $50,000.00 for 52 weeks). The Coverall Accident Insurance Program has higher limits. (See Item 6 
for Franchise Owner On-the-Job Accident Insurance Program Plan limits.) 

You must also maintain employer's liability insurance in amounts no less than $100,000 each accident and comply 
with all state and federal laws to maintain a proper unemployment insurance account. 

You must also obtain janitorial bonding in a minimum amount of $100,000. Participation in Coverall's Business 
Protection Plan provides janitorial bonding coverage $1,000,000 per occurrence, and a $1,000,000 maximum limit per 
policy year. 

You may be able to procure the required insurance coverage elsewhere for less than the cost of participating in 
Coverall's insurance programs. If you choose to procure insurance on your own, you must provide proof of all required 
insurance to Coverall within ten (10) days of signing your Coverall Franchise Agreement and upon demand by Coverall at 
any time during the term of your Franchise. Failure to provide proof of insurance may result in suspension of the Initial 
Business Offering Period. All of your insurance policies shall name Coverall as an additional insured. If Franchised Business 
fails to obtain any or all insurance as specified herein and approved by Coverall, Coverall may (but shall not be required 
to), in addition to other remedies, purchase such insurance for the benefit of Franchised Business in which event Franchised 
Business agrees to promptly reimburse Coverall for the cost, or if available, automatically enroll you in the applicable 
Coverall insurance program and deduct the premiums monthly. In the event it becomes necessary for Franchised Business 
to reimburse Coverall for the costs of insurance, Franchised Business authorizes Coverall to deduct the costs of the 
insurance, on a monthly basis, or as is otherwise necessary, from amounts to be paid by Coverall to Franchised Business. 
(See Item 6). We will notify you of any modifications to the policy limits set forth above. Coverall reserves the right to 
change or modify all required coverages and premium rates. These programs are subject to cancellation, and minimum 
coverages are subject to increase or decrease from time to time in accordance with changes made to the Coverall Franchised 
Business Policies and Procedures Manual and/or by Coverall providing you with written notice advising you of change(s). 

We do not provide any material benefits to you if you buy from sources we approve. 

BILLING AND COLLECTIONS 

All of the commercial cleaning services that you provide must be through Franchised Business with all billing and 
collection done through Coverall. If you obtain a customer on your own, unless otherwise agreed by Coverall in writing, 
billing and collection services for that customer shall be performed by Coverall. If applicable, Coverall will pay any state 
sales tax collected from your customers to the appropriate state taxing authority. 
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ITEM 9 - FRANCHISED BUSINESS'S OBLIGATIONS 

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise and other agreements. It will help you find 
more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements and in other items of this disclosure document. 

Obligation Section In Franchise Agreement 

Disclosure 
Document 

Item 
a. Site selection and acquisition/lease Not Applicable 7, 11
b. Pre-opening purchases/leases Not Applicable 7, 8
c. Site development and other pre-

opening requirements
Not Applicable 7, 11 

d. Training Sections 9, 16A, 17A & B of Franchise Agreement 11
e. Opening Not Applicable 11
f. Fees Sections 4, 5, 6, 7, 17, 25 of Franchise Agreement; 

Promissory Note; Sections 2, 5, 10 of Equipment Purchase 
Agreement

5, 6, 7, 11 

g. Compliance with standards and 
policies/Operating Manual

Sections 11, 12, 17, 22 of Franchise Agreement 5, 8, 11 

h.  Trademarks and proprietary 
information

Sections 1, 11, 17, 18, 23 of Franchise Agreement 13, 14 

i. Restrictions on products/services 
offered

Section 18 of Franchise Agreement 8, 16 

j. Warranty and customer service 
requirements

Sections 17 & 22 of Franchise Agreement 5, 6, 8, 11 

k. Territorial development and sales 
quotas

Section 3 of Franchise Agreement 1 

l. Ongoing product/service purchases Sections 12 & 17 of Franchise Agreement; Equipment 
Purchase Agreement

8 

m. Maintenance, appearance and 
remodeling requirements

Not Applicable 

n. Insurance Section 17F of Franchise Agreement; Equipment Purchase 
Agreement page 3

6, 7, 8, 11 

o. Advertising Sections 2, 16, 18, 23B of Franchise Agreement 6, 11
p. Indemnification Sections 19 & 20 of Franchise Agreement
q. Owner's participation/ management/ 

staffing
Sections 9, 17, 19 of Franchise Agreement 15 

r. Records/reports Sections 13, 15, 16, 17, of Franchise Agreement 6
s. Inspections/audits Sections 12, 14, 15, 17 of Franchise Agreement
t. Transfer Sections 6, 21 of Franchise Agreement 6, 17
u. Successor Term Section 2 of Franchise Agreement 17
v. Post-termination obligations Sections 23 of Franchise Agreement 17
w. Non-competition covenants Section 18 of Franchise Agreement 17
x. Dispute resolution Section 24 & 25 of Franchise Agreement 17
y. Equipment maintenance and repairs Section 17 of Franchise Agreement
z. Certification Section 38 of Franchise Agreement
aa. Guaranty of Franchise Obligations Section 37 of Franchise Agreement 15

This space intentionally left blank. 
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ITEM 10 - FINANCING 

SUMMARY OF FINANCING OFFERED 

ITEM 
FINANCED 
(SOURCE) 

AMOUNT 
FINANCED 

DOWN 
PAYMENT TERM APR 

MONTH
LY 

PAYME
NT 

PRE
PAY 
PEN
ALT

Y 
SECURITY 
REQUIRED 

LIABILITY 
UPON 

DEFAULT 

LOSS OF 
LEGAL 
RIGHT 

ON 
DEFAULT 

Initial 
Franchise 
Fee1,2,7

(Coverall) 

$11,570.00 
- 
$18,063.361,2

$4,000.00 
- 
$22,256.642

1 year 
to 30 
months, 
depend
ent 
upon 
the 
franchis
e 
package
1

6%, 
9%, or 
12%, 
depend
ent 
upon 
the 
franchis
e 
package 
and 
financin
g term1

12 to 30 
equal 
Monthly 
installmen
ts, 
dependent 
upon the 
franchise 
package 
and 
financing 
term1

None Shareholder/
Member 
guaranty3

Late penalty; 
acceleration of 
amounts due; 
fees4

None5

Equipment 
Purchases3,6,7

(Coverall) 

Up to 100% 0 - up to 
100% 

Up to 
24 mos. 

18% Varies None Shareholder/ 
Member 
guaranty and 
pledge of 
equipment3

Late penalty; 
acceleration of 
amounts due; 
remove 
equipment4

None5

Additional 
Business7

(Coverall) 

Negotiable; 
Up to 50%8

Negotiable; 
Up to 50%8

Up to 
12 mos. 

12% Varies None Shareholder/ 
Member 
guaranty3

Late penalty; 
acceleration of 
amounts due; 
fees4

None5

1Depending on the Franchise Package you choose, unless there are applicable incentives (see Item 5) the Initial 
Franchise Fee ranges from $15,570.00 to $40,320.00. In order to assist credit-worthy Franchised Businesses in the purchase 
of the business, we will typically finance between $9,500.00 and $18,063.00. The financed amount is currently evidenced 
by a Promissory Note and is payable over a 1 year to 30 month period depending upon the franchise package and the 
financing term you choose from the following options: 

Franchise Package Interest Rates & Financing Terms 
Financing Terms Available 

12 mo. 18 mo. 24 mo. 30 mo. 
P-3,000 6% 9% 12% 12%
P-4,000 6% 9% 12% 12%
P-5,000 9% 12% 12%
P-7,000 9% 12% 12%

P-10,000 9% 12% 12%

We reserve the right to change the terms, interest rate, and amounts financed. (A copy of our Promissory Note 
appears in this disclosure document as an attachment to Exhibit A.1.) We reserve the right to change the method by which 
we offer financing to Franchised Businesses so that in lieu of our accepting Franchised Businesses' promissory notes, we 
may offer Franchised Businesses lines of credit and/or make available financing through third party lenders upon terms and 
conditions to be determined by the third party lenders. We reserve the right to sell, assign, or discount promissory notes to 
a third party. If Coverall agrees to temporarily suspend payment on any financed obligation, interest will continue to accrue 
on the outstanding balance. 

2The Initial Franchise Fee is uniform except as described in Item 5. 
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3The Equipment Promissory Note must be secured by the equipment, which shall be the collateral for such security 
interest. The Promissory Note and Equipment Purchase Agreement, if any, as well as all sums due under the Franchise 
Agreement, must be guaranteed individually by you, members and shareholders. (See Guaranty form.) 

4If you do not pay on time, we can charge a late penalty. In the case of nonpayment or other default under the 
Promissory Note, or any financing provided by Coverall, or breach of the Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with 
us, we can require immediate payment of all amounts due, and/or terminate your Franchise, and we can also collect our 
attorneys' fees and costs. (See Promissory Note.) Under the Equipment Purchase Agreement, we can require immediate 
payment of all amounts due and take back the equipment. (Equipment Purchase Agreement, Paragraphs 2 and 10). Your 
obligation to pay your financed debt to Coverall is not dependent upon your generation of revenue. You must make your 
monthly payment until the debt is paid in full; failure to do so can result in a declaration of default and imposition of late 
fees. 

5There is no waiver of legal rights in any financing contract. 

6The interest rate on financed equipment purchases is 18% or the highest rate permitted by your state, whichever is 
less, on the unpaid balance. 

7Monthly payments are due on the last calendar day of each month, beginning in the first month following the month 
in which service of the financed customer begins. Under the Franchise Agreement, we deduct payments due us from funds 
paid by customers for services. However, failure of a customer to pay does not relieve you of you obligation to make 
monthly payments on your financed debt, and if in any given month your Gross Dollar Volume is zero, you must make your 
note payment to Coverall. If Coverall agrees to temporarily suspend payment on any financed obligation, interest will 
continue to accrue on the outstanding balance. See Item 11 for a description of our billing and collection services. With the 
exception of equipment purchases, we do not presently make available financing for Franchised Businesses with other 
sources, but we may in the future make financing available to you through a third party lender upon terms and conditions 
satisfactory to the third party lender. 

8We usually finance up to 80% of the sales and marketing fee for Additional Business offered to you by Coverall. 
Additional Business requested by you must be paid for in full prior to Coverall offering you the requested amount of 
Additional Business, and as a condition of acceptance and purchase of Additional Business, you will be required to sign a 
general release in favor of Coverall. (See attached Exhibit G, Franchised Business Customer Acceptance Forms.) 

ITEM 11 - FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING 

Except as listed below, Coverall is not required to provide you with any assistance. 

PRE-OPENING ASSISTANCE 

Before you open your business: 

(1) We will license you to use the names and service marks "Coverall®," or such other name, mark, or logo as 
we may direct during the term of the Franchise Agreement (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 2). 

(2) We offer a starter-kit of equipment, chemicals and supplies for purchase (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 
17, and Exhibit A to A.1). 

(3) We will provide you with a training program as set forth below. (Franchise Agreement, Paragraphs 9 and 
17). 

Franchised Business may operate the Coverall Franchise only in the stated geographic area covered by the identified 
Coverall Support Center where Franchised Business bought the Franchise (the then-current list of Support Centers is 
described on Exhibit I to the Franchise Disclosure Document) (the "Area"). We do not offer site selection assistance. 
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TRAINING 

Coverall's current Franchised Business Initial Training Program, based on our proprietary Coverall Core 4® Process 
(“Initial Training Program”), consists of the following (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 9 and 17): 

The Coverall Initial Training Program is mandatory for the Franchised Business owner(s) or any designees approved 
by us in writing, and for transferees of the Franchise. Your employees, as approved by Coverall, may also attend training, 
pursuant to your request, however, you remain responsible for their training. The Training Program is conducted at one of 
our Support Centers or other designated facility and/or onsite at Coverall customer facilities, usually within commuting 
distance of your residence. Any travel or living expenses you may have should be minimal. 

The Initial Training Program consists of between approximately 33 to 46 combined hours of classroom and hands-
on instruction on, among other things, cleaning tools and techniques, customer service, and business management basics. It 
typically takes up to eight (8) weeks to complete the Initial Training Program. 

The Initial Training Program is available in printed or electronic format from your Support Center. To assist you 
with training your employees, your employees who sign Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement may be permitted 
to access certain training modules related only to cleaning task execution. Coverall reserves the right to revoke your and 
any of your employees’ access to the Training Program at any time for any reason. 

As part of the Initial Training Program, we distribute manuals and other instructional materials. All manuals are 
available for you to view at your local Support Center before you purchase your Coverall Franchised Business. Prior to 
viewing any manuals, you will be required to sign a Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement substantially in the 
form attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit F ("Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement"). At Coverall's 
sole discretion, all Coverall manuals and instructional materials may be provided to you in electronic format or printed copy. 
All Coverall instructional materials shall remain the property of Coverall and must be returned upon expiration, termination, 
or assignment of your Franchised Business. We may also provide additional home study material from time to time. We 
identify approved suppliers and approved equipment, chemicals, and supplies during training and consultation. 

As of the date of this Disclosure Document, the subjects covered in the Initial Training Program are described as 
follows: 

INITIAL TRAINING PROGRAM 

SUBJECT 

HOURS OF 
CLASSROO

M 
TRAINING1

HOURS OF ON- 
THE-JOB 

TRAINING LOCATION2

Class 1 
Orientation and More 2-3 N/A

Regional Support 
Center

Class 2 
Running Your Business 2-3 N/A

Regional Support 
Center

Class 3 
Core 4 and Starter Kit 3-4 N/A

Regional Support 
Center

Class 4 
General Office and Restroom Cleaning 2-3 N/A

Regional Support 
Center

Class 5 
Hands-On Cleaning: Office & Restroom Cleaning 1 3-4

Regional Support 
Center, Customer 
Facility

Class 6 
On Demand & Preventative Maintenance Services 2-3 3-4

Regional Support 
Center

Class 7 Vertical Markets 3-4 2
Regional Support 
Center

Class 8 
 Bloodborne and Airborne Pathogens 2-3 N/A

Regional Support 
Center
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Class 9 Safety and Security 2-3 N/A
Regional Support 
Center

Class 
10 

Customer Service and Communication 2-3 N/A
Regional Support 
Center

Class 
11 

Core Selling and Bidding 2-3 N/A
Regional Support 
Center

Class 
12 

Franchise Support and Documents Review 2-3 N/A
Regional Support 

Center

Total 23-36 8-10 

1The classroom hours are approximate. The actual classroom time is customized to meet the individual needs of the 
Franchised Business personnel in attendance at any given time. 

2Initial Training Program classes are held at one of our Support Centers or other designated facility and/or in 
customer facilities, usually within commuting distance of your residence. Any travel or living expenses you may have 
should be minimal. We may determine from time to time, in our sole judgment, to suspend in-person training and instead 
conduct the Initial Training Program, or any portion thereof, virtually. The classes listed in the Initial Training Program in 
the table above will be made available to franchised businesses upon demand. 

The Initial Training Program typically begins within 30 days after the Franchise Agreement is signed. Franchise 
Development Consultants located at the Support Centers conduct the Training Programs.  The Initial Training Program is 
overseen by our Divisional Directors, Stephen Kloppenburg and Joshua Wagner, who have at least 19 years of experience 
in the subjects taught and at least 9 years of experience with Coverall.  From time to time, we may ask some of our existing 
Franchised Businesses to assist in training. 

The cost of the Initial Training Program is included in your Initial Franchise Fee. Your attendance at the Initial 
Training Program is mandatory, and you will be required to complete the training to our satisfaction. You may elect to 
retake any training class, or have your employees take or retake training. There is no cost for retaking training classes. 
Retraining may in our sole discretion also be deemed mandatory. 

RETRAINING MAY BE REQUIRED 

The reputation of our brand enables us to procure customers to offer our Franchised Businesses. Therefore, we may 
require you to attend training again, if at any time any customer being serviced by Franchised Business: 

1) terminates your services due to faulty workmanship, lack of trustworthiness, or any other claimed or actual 
default under the Service Agreement; or 

2) for failure to adhere to Paragraph 17 of the Franchise Agreement (Franchised Business Operations); or 

3) you breach your Coverall Franchise Agreement or your obligations to provide services under any Service 
Agreement. 

In the event of retraining, the time within which Coverall must offer any remaining Initial Business or Additional 
Business will be suspended from the time Franchised Business is requested to attend retraining until Franchised Business 
completes retraining to Coverall's reasonable satisfaction.  

We require you to maintain high standards of workmanship to effectively service your customers. Failure to do 
so negatively impacts the Coverall brand and its franchised businesses. 
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OUR OBLIGATIONS 

Except as follows, Coverall is not required to provide you with any assistance.

Time for Offering Initial Business (Franchise Agreement, Page 1, Paragraph 10, 13, and 14) 

We will offer you Initial Business located in the area(s) in which we do business and specifically covering the 
area(s) in which you operate. Coverall may or may not have an inventory of customers available to offer your dollar amount 
of Initial Business on the date you sign your Coverall Franchise Agreement or on the date that you complete training.  
Therefore, Coverall has between 120 and 330 business days from the date you complete your initial obligations to offer you 
your Initial Business, depending on the particular Franchise Package you purchase.  Coverall's obligation to offer you 
sufficient customers to fill your Franchise Package does not begin until: i) your owner(s) or designated employee(s), as 
approved by Coverall, has successfully completed the Initial Training Program and ii) your background screening has been 
approved. The Initial Business Offering Period may be suspended if: i) Coverall requires you to attend retraining; or ii) you 
are in breach of any material provision of the Coverall Franchise Agreement or any other agreement with Coverall. The 
Franchised Business must be a corporation or limited liability company, and you must keep separate accounting, banking, 
and financial records. You must obtain a Federal Employer Identification Number and obtain a business license, if 
applicable, prior to signing the Franchise Agreement. The completion of your initial obligations is recorded in our system 
of record. 

The customers offered to fulfill your Initial Business may be new customers recently acquired by Coverall or 
existing customers that become available for resale. A customer becomes available for resale because a customer has 
requested a replacement franchised business or a franchised business has abandoned a customer. Customers requesting a 
replacement franchised business because of poor service by that franchised business may be difficult to please. In addition, 
depending upon the results of your background screening, you may not meet certain customer criteria and customers may 
want to reject your services.   

The Service Agreements for customers that you accept will be assigned to you, excluding those Service Agreements 
that prohibit assignment, cover multiple locations, or apply to National Account Customers.  All Service Agreement 
assignments are conditional and will be effective only upon payment in full to Coverall of your Franchise Fee and sales and 
marketing fees financed by you. All such assignments shall be subject to the terms and conditions of your Franchise 
Agreement. In addition, after assignment, Coverall shall retain the right to offer and sell special services, equipment, 
chemicals and supplies to your customers. (See attached Exhibit G, Franchised Business Customer Acceptance Forms). 
Franchised Businesses typically begin servicing their first customer approximately two (2) months after signing the 
Franchise Agreement. However, this length of time varies according to conditions, such as, when you begin your first 
customer, and your personal readiness to begin based on training and preference. 

Customer Guarantees 

Commercial cleaning customers can be lost for any number of reasons, including but not limited to, poor service, 
the customer chooses a lower priced provider, the customer goes out of business or files for bankruptcy protection, economic 
circumstances cause the customer to terminate outside vendors. You can expect to lose customers, and that is a risk of doing 
business. Customer attrition is why, excluding customers lost for poor service, we provide limited customer guarantees. 
(See Item 19 of this Disclosure Document). 

1. The Initial Business Guarantee (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 14) 

We provide a limited guarantee of your Initial Business to help you get established. This Initial Business is 
guaranteed for a one time only replacement for twelve (12) months from the date you first service a customer, but only if 
the customer is lost through no fault of your own, as determined by us in our sole discretion. If you qualify for the guarantee 
for Initial Business, then we will offer you customer(s) to replace the monthly Gross Dollar Volume of the lost customer, 
with one or more customers of equal monthly Gross Dollar Volume. This is a one-time only replacement. Replacement 
Business is not guaranteed. And, if the replacement customer(s) has a monthly Gross Dollar Volume in excess of that lost 
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by you, you may have to pay us for the excess monthly Gross Dollar Volume. The Initial Business guarantee does not apply 
to any customer who: (a) you voluntarily abandoned, or (b) terminated your services for cause.  

2. Additional Business Guarantee (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 15) 

If you purchase Additional Business from Coverall, we further support you by guaranteeing that Additional 
Business for a one time only replacement for six (6) months from the date you first service a customer, but only if the 
customer is lost through no fault of your own, as determined by us in our sole discretion. If you qualify for the guarantee 
for Additional Business, then we will offer you customer(s) to replace the monthly Gross Dollar Volume of the lost 
customer, with one or more customers of equal monthly Gross Dollar Volume. This is your only remedy for lost Additional 
Business; and this is a one-time only replacement. Replacement Business is not guaranteed. And, if the replacement 
customer(s) has a monthly Gross Dollar Volume in excess of that lost by you, you may have to pay us for the excess monthly 
Gross Dollar Volume. 

3. Promotional Business (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 15) 

There may be situations where we will offer you additional contract business volume without charging you the 
current sales and marketing fee ("Promotional Business"). Promotional Business, which you do not pay for, is not guaranteed 
and will not be replaced regardless of whether the customers are lost through no fault of your own. 

Fulfillment of Our Obligation to Offer Initial Business (Franchise Agreement, Page 1 and Paragraph 13) 

If you refuse to accept any customer offered by us to fulfill your Initial Business, the time for offering the Initial 
Business will be extended; and Coverall will continue to offer you, within a reasonable period of time after the expiration 
of the Initial Business Offering Period, the amount of Initial Business you refused. We will be deemed to have fulfilled our 
obligation to provide your Initial Business, based on our reasonable efforts. Examples of unreasonable rejections of offered 
Initial Business include but are not limited to the following:  (1) too far when the account offered is within a 30-mile radius 
of your place of business; (2) the customer facility is too dirty; or (3) the customer revenue offered is too small because you 
want a single customer account to fulfill your entire Franchise Package. Voluntary abandonment by you of a customer 
accepted to fulfill Initial Business does not give rise to an obligation on Coverall's part to offer you more business and voids 
the Initial Business guarantee with regard to the portion of Initial Business so abandoned; and that abandoned customer will 
be counted against your Franchise Package.  If you choose to stop servicing a customer that you have accepted as part of 
your Initial Business, you will not be entitled to replacement of that customer. 

Billing and Collection Services (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 16) 

We provide you with billing and collection services. We will invoice customers in your business name each month 
for the cost of services and supplies that you provide (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 16B). If a customer that we bill on 
your behalf is delinquent in payment, Coverall may, after discussing the customer with you, stop invoicing that customer. 
If you choose to continue servicing a delinquent customer, you do so at risk of non-payment. If your Franchised Business 
is servicing a National Account Customer, Coverall may unilaterally determine that services to that National Account 
Customer must cease and direct you to stop servicing any location or locations of that National Account Customer. 

We will collect the monies due for your service from the customers and distribute it to you on a monthly basis, after 
deduction of the 5% royalty fee, the 10% support fee, any note payments for amounts you financed with us, any sales and 
marketing fee, any transfer fee, any equipment lease payments, any special service finder's fees, any advances made by us, 
any authorized insurance charges, and any out-of-pocket costs (including attorneys' fees and court costs) which we incur in 
enforcing payment by your customers and any other deductions authorized by you (collectively, the "Authorized 
Deductions"). We are not required to engage attorneys, begin litigation, or do any acts (other than send monthly statements) 
in order to enforce payment by customers. (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 16B) If applicable, Coverall will pay any state 
sales tax collected from your customers to the appropriate state taxing authority. You may choose to enforce payment on 
delinquent customer(s) which you are servicing, excluding National Account Customers. This includes your right at your 
expense to file a lawsuit for payment against a delinquent customer. If you collect monies due on a delinquent customer, 
you will be responsible to us for any unpaid royalties, support fees, note payments, and other payments (if any) due us on 
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the amounts collected. You must keep us timely advised of any legal or other proceedings which you institute, including 
the outcome of any proceedings. (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 16B). If you wish for Coverall to file a lawsuit against 
a delinquent customer, you will have to reassign the Service Agreement to Coverall. If we file a lawsuit for payment against 
a delinquent customer and we collect, you will be entitled to receive an amount net of our royalty and support fees and the 
costs of collection, including attorney's fees, costs, and expenses. Once we initiate a collection action (whether in-house 
collection efforts or a lawsuit) against a delinquent customer, after consulting with you, we may settle and compromise 
customer debt, which means that we may agree to accept less than the amount owed by the customer. If we agree to accept 
less than the amount owed by the customer, you will be entitled to receive an amount net of our royalty and support fees 
and the costs of recovery, including attorney's fees, costs and expenses. These fees may exceed the amount collected, in 
which event, you will not receive any payment. 

Cash Flow Protection Program (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 16) 

While we are collecting the monies due from the customers you serviced, we will assist you in the operation of your 
business by advancing [loaning] to you the amount that we billed to the customer ("Cash Flow Advance"). This is our Cash 
Flow Protection Guarantee. It is a short-term, interest-free loan to you. Under our Cash Flow Protection Program, we will 
advance to you amounts that have been billed to customers serviced by you, whether or not we have collected those amounts, 
for a maximum of 60 days (two months). Cash Flow Advances are made on the last calendar day of the month following 
the month the services were rendered (if the last day of the month falls on a weekend and/or holiday, payment will be made 
on the next business day. If at the end of 90 days from the invoice date the customer has not paid, advances will stop for 
that customer, and you must repay us the amounts billed and advanced. Repayment will ordinarily be over a period of 2 
months through statement deductions. For example, if we advance $100.00 in January (reflected on your January Franchise 
Statement), and $80.00 in February (reflected on your February Franchise Statement), and no payments are collected from 
that customer within 90 days from the invoice date, you will repay $100.00 in your March Franchise Statement (identified 
as a Chargeback) and $80.00 in April Franchise Statement (identified as a Chargeback). (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 
16C.) If you are not generating sufficient Gross Dollar Volume to repay the advance through statement deductions from 
(i.e., to cover the Chargeback), you must directly repay Coverall. 

POST-OPENING ASSISTANCE: 

1) We will be available to answer routine questions regarding your business. (Franchise Agreement Paragraph 
16.)2) We will offer any additional training and introduction of new methods and materials through updating manuals, 
personal consultation, and/or group seminars. (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 11, 16, and 17.) 

2) Under our Business Protection Plan, we may make available to you and you may wish to participate in the 
Coverall general liability insurance and fidelity bonding program, which has been placed through a major insurance 
company. If you participate, you and Coverall will be named as insured. In addition to the premium, the cost includes a 
support fee and service charge as determined by Coverall. In consideration of our support fee and service charge, we will 
waive certain of our indemnification rights against participants in our Business Protection Plan, except for the deductibles 
under the Business Protection Plan. The Business Protection Plan is optional, and is subject to modification and/or 
cancellation. You may obtain insurance through another source, provided the coverage meets the minimum requirements 
set forth in your Franchise Agreement. (Franchise Agreement, Paragraphs 17 and 19.) 

3) The Coverall Accident Insurance Program makes available on-the-job accident insurance. This is an 
optional program and is subject to modification and/or cancellation and premium rate modification. (Franchise Agreement, 
Paragraph 17.) This insurance provides coverage only to your owner(s). Your employees and owners' and employees' family 
members are not covered by this insurance. 

4) We may periodically telephone and/or visit to conduct site surveys of the customers you are servicing to 
assist you in maintaining and improving the quality of your services and to protect the Coverall brand. (Franchise 
Agreement, Paragraph 12.) 

5) We will assist you with promoting and soliciting additional and new business for you. (Franchise 
Agreement, Paragraph 15.) 
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6) We do not have an advertising fund, council, or cooperative, nor do we charge an advertising fee. At our 
discretion, we may advertise in print, radio, television, or other local, national, and international media. Our print advertising 
is produced both in-house and by an advertising agency. Although Coverall-produced marketing materials are available for 
purchase by you, you may use your own advertising materials subject to approval of our Marketing Department before 
distribution.  

7) We do not require you to purchase or use electronic cash registers or computer systems. However, your 
owners are required to have access to a cell phone and a personal computer or hand-held device, such as a cell phone, with 
internet access, the ability to send and receive electronic mail and text messages and with full-web browsing capabilities. 
We do not specify what type of device you use, as long as you have the ability to send and receive electronic mail, text 
messages, and full web browsing capabilities via the Internet. (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 17.) 

8) We may assist you with bidding (for example, establishing the contract price) for a potential customer. 
There will be a one-time fee, as published and revised from time to time in the Franchised Business Policies and 
Procedures Manual. (Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 6.) 

ITEM 12 - TERRITORY 

You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchised businesses, from 
outlets that we own, or from other channels or distribution or competitive brands that we control.  

Coverall is not able to state the exact number of miles to a customer location. In the ordinary course of business, 
we endeavor to offer you customers no more than a 30-mile radius from your designated location; however, this does not 
represent an exclusive or protected territory whatsoever. You may offer and render cleaning services to commercial 
customers only within the area(s) in which your designated Coverall Support Center conducts business. Coverall will award 
numerous Franchises to third parties other than Franchised Business within the those areas. We have established and will 
continue to establish other franchises, each licensed to use our service marks that may compete with you. 

In addition, by way of example but without limitation, we retain the right, for ourselves and our affiliates alone, on 
any terms we deem advisable, and without granting you any rights to: establish or operate, and grant others the right to 
establish or operate, other businesses offering the same or similar products utilizing other trade names, trademarks, and 
service marks, at any location; use the Coverall® tradenames, trademarks, System, and business model to sell any products 
or services the same as or similar to those which you will sell, through any alternate channels of distribution at any location, 
including without limitation, other channels of distribution such as television, mail order, catalog sales, wholesale to 
unrelated retail outlets, or over the Internet (we exclusively reserve the Internet as a channel of distribution for us, and you 
may not independently market on the Internet or conduct e-commerce); sell supplies directly to your customers; use and 
license the use of other proprietary and non-proprietary marks or methods which are not the same as or confusingly similar 
to the Coverall® tradenames and trademarks at any location, which may be similar to or different from the Coverall 
franchised business operated by you; to purchase or be purchased by, or merge or combine with, any business, including a 
business that competes directly with your Coverall franchised business, wherever located; acquire and convert to the System 
operated by us, any businesses, including such businesses operated by competitors or otherwise operated independently or 
as part of, or in association with, any other system or chain, whether franchised or corporately owned, and wherever located; 
and to engage in any activities not expressly prohibited by the Franchise Agreement. At your request, we will use our best 
efforts to arrange for your relocation to another Coverall location, even though we are not required to do so under the 
Franchise Agreement. You do not receive the right to acquire additional franchises within your area. 

ITEM 13 - TRADEMARKS 

We grant you the right to use certain trademarks, service marks, and other commercial symbols in operating your 
franchise. Coverall®, as presented on the cover page, is the name and service mark of Coverall North America, Inc. Since 
February, 1985, we have used "Coverall®" as our name and mark and have licensed our Franchised Businesses to use the 
name and mark. 
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Coverall North America, Inc. 
Service Marks Registered on the Principal Register of The United States Patent and Trademark Office 

Service Mark 

Registration/ 
Application 

Number 
Registration/ 

Application Date Class Number 
Coverall® 2,178,521 August 4, 1998 37
Coverall Cleaning Concepts® 2,075,333 July 1, 1997 37
The Art And Science Of Cleaning® 1,991,930 August 6, 1996 37
The Art and Science of Cleaning® 1,931,173 October 31, 1995 35
When It Has to be Absolutely Clean® 2,182,697 August 18, 1998 37
Customers for Life® 2,204,464 November 17, 1998 37
Healthy Cleaning Down to A Science® 3,547,673 December 16, 2008 37
Color Coding for Health® 3,780,009 April 27, 2010 37
Coverall Health-Based Cleaning System® 3,811,485 June 29,2010 37
Coverall Health-Based Cleaning System®& 
design (light green)

3,818,990 July 13, 2010 37 

Cleaning Concepts® 3,881,979 November 30, 2010 35,37
Coverall Color-Coding for Health® 3,998,565 July 19, 2011 37
Core 4® 6,933,335 December 27, 2022 37
Coverall Core 4® 6,778,637 July 5, 2022 37
Coverall & Design (side) 4,642,644 November 18, 2014 37
Coverall® 5,468,488 May 15, 2018 35
The Art and Science of a Better Clean® 5,896,051 October 29, 2019 37

There are no currently effective or pending determinations of the Patent and Trademark Office, Trademark Trial 
and Appeal Board, or any court; pending infringement, opposition or cancellation; and pending material litigation involving 
the principal trademarks; and Coverall does not know of any infringing uses that could materially affect your use of our 
trademarks. Any required affidavits have been filed.  Any required renewals have been or will be filed. 

As of the date of this disclosure document, there are no agreements in effect which significantly limit our rights to 
use or license the use of our trademark, service mark, trade name, or other commercial symbols in any manner material to 
you. 

When you use these marks, you must follow our policies, procedures, and guidelines. You cannot use our name or 
marks as part of a corporate name or with modifying words, designs, or symbols except for those which we license to you. 
You may not use our registered names for the sale of an unauthorized product or service or in a manner not authorized in 
writing by us. The Franchise Agreement reserves the right upon written notice to revoke your use of our marks and logos 
and/or to direct the use of modified, different or substitute marks or logos. In such event, you will be required, at your sole 
expense, to promptly cease using those marks and logos which use has been terminated and to begin use of the different or 
substitute marks or logos. 

You must notify us of the unauthorized use of or claims of rights to a service mark identical to or confusingly similar 
to any service mark we license to you. We reserve the sole right to institute administrative proceedings and/or litigation 
regarding the marks.  Although it is our current policy to defend such claims, we are not contractually obligated to protect 
your rights to use trademarks, service marks, trade names, logotypes, or other commercial symbols, or to protect you against 
claims of infringement or unfair competition regarding such use. Coverall may in its sole discretion choose to defend or 
prosecute an action related to its trademarks. We do not agree to protect you against claims of infringement or unfair 
competition arising out of your use of our trademarks. We are not obligated by the Coverall Franchise Agreement to 
participate in your defense or to indemnify you in the event that a third party sues you because of your use of our trademarks. 
However, we may in our sole discretion choose to do so. 
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ITEM 14 - PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

PATENTS AND COPYRIGHTS 

We hold no patents that are material to the Franchised Business. 

We have obtained and renewed copyright registrations with the United States Registrar of Copyrights for our 
commercial cleaning, service, and territory disclosure documents, brochures, maintenance proposals, contracts, and business 
forms. We claim ownership of our systems, methods of operation, knowledge, know-how, training, procedures, forms, 
manuals, and computer software which we regard as a valuable and integral part of your franchise. We intend to renew our 
current copyrights and secure copyright protection for new material as we deem necessary. Coverall may in its sole 
discretion choose to defend or prosecute an action related to its copyrights. We do not agree to protect you against claims 
of infringement or unfair competition arising out of your use of our copyrights. We are not obligated by the Coverall 
Franchise Agreement to participate in your defense or to indemnify you in the event that a third party sues you because of 
your use of our copyrights. However, we may in our sole discretion choose to do so. 

In the event of modifications, changes, or discontinuations, Franchised Business will upon receipt of written notice, 
and at its sole expense, promptly discontinue use of the discontinued trademarks and/or copyrights and adopt and promptly 
begin use of the new or modified trademarks and/or copyrights, and promptly implement the modifications and/or changes 
to the System. Franchised Business expressly and specifically waive any claims, demands, or damages arising from or 
related to the loss of the Marks and/or the loss of association with or identification with the Mark "Coverall®" arising out of 
Coverall's exercise of the above reservation. (Coverall Franchise Agreement, Paragraph 1). 

COPYRIGHT REGISTRATIONS 

COPYRIGHTED MATERIAL 

DATE OF 
REGISTRATIO

N 

DATE OF 
EXPIRATION REGISTRATION 

NUMBER 
Training Materials 06/27/97 06/27/2092 TXu 810-122
Computer Programs 05/03/99 

05/03/99 
05/03/99

05/03/2094 
05/03/2094 
05/03/2094

TXu 907-583 
TXu 907-584 
TXu 907-585

Janitorial Franchise Offering Circular 06/28/96 
05/05/95 
02/22/94 
08/10/94 
03/08/93 
03/08/93 
04/17/92

12/31/2090 
12/31/2089 
12/31/2088 
04/15/2089 
12/31/2087 
03/01/2088 
09/30/2086

TX 4329959 
TX 4041503 
TX 3749674 
TX 3882451 
TX 3507656 
TX 3507657 
TX 3286118

Janitorial Franchise Agreement 04/17/92 09/30/2086 TX 3286116
Service Franchise Offering Circular 06/28/96 

03/02/95 
02/22/94 
08/10/94 
03/08/93 
03/08/93 
03/08/93

02/28/2091 
01/31/2090 
01/03/2089 
06/29/2089 
09/18/2087 
02/22/2088 
01/31/2088

TX 4330325 
TX 4042179 
TX 3785274 
TX 3882452 
TX 3505090 
TX 3505091 
TX 3505092

Territory Franchise Offering Circular 07/01/96 07/01/2091 TXu 673914
Guidelines for Regional Directors 08/16/00 08/16/2095 TXu 965-500
Customer Solutions Playbook 02/14/08 

02/14/08
04/01/2102 
2/14/2103

TX 6-825-226 
V 3562D285

Coverall Health-Based Cleaning 
System 
Coverall website/www.coverall.com

4/28/10 
10/06/01 

07/1/2104 
07/1/2104 

PA 1-694-138 
TX 7461784 
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There are currently no effective or pending determinations, litigation, agreements, infringing uses, or superior prior 
rights actually known to us, which may materially affect your use of copyrights, and/or proprietary information in the United 
States. 

CONFIDENTIAL MANUALS 

We claim copyrights to our confidential and proprietary manuals and to the content of our training program. We 
authorize you to access our training program and to use our Operations Training Manual, Sales Manuals, and Coverall 
Franchised Business Policies and Procedures Manual and other proprietary and confidential printed materials during the 
term of your Franchise Agreement. In fact, in order to protect the Coverall brand for the benefit of all franchised businesses 
in the  System, you must operate your franchise according to the standards and procedures specified in the manuals. We 
may periodically revise our training program, manuals and other materials, and you will be required to update your materials 
as revisions are provided to you to keep them current and to adhere to and operate your franchise in accordance with the 
revised standards and procedures. 

CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 

We claim property rights to all information concerning the System, including: operational, promotional, sales, and 
marketing techniques and methods; policies, procedures, and related materials; training procedures; franchised business and 
customer lists, pricing and billing services and procedures; and assistance with employee and customer relationships. 

You must not divulge, reproduce, or use any of Coverall's confidential, proprietary, and copyrighted information 
during the Initial or Successor Term of your franchise, except as authorized by the Franchise Agreement. You must promptly 
tell us if you learn of unauthorized use of our confidential, proprietary, and copyrighted information, and we will respond 
as we deem appropriate. 

If your Franchise Agreement is terminated or expires, you must return to Coverall all confidential, proprietary, and 
copyrighted information including all forms, materials, books, records, software, and manuals which are in your possession, 
custody, or control. 

We require that you obtain a signed Confidentiality/Non-Solicitation Agreement from each officer, director, 
member, and/or shareholder within ten (10) days of signing the Franchise Agreement and subsequently from additional 
officer, directors, members, and shareholders. We also require that you obtain a signed Employee Confidentiality/Non- 
Solicitation Agreement from all of your employees upon ten (10) days of signing the Franchise Agreement or upon ten (10) 
days of hire, whichever last occurs. The forms of these Agreements appear in this Franchise Disclosure Document as 
Exhibits A.3 and A.4. 

ITEM 15 - OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED 
BUSINESS 

We do not require that your owners personally supervise the Franchised Business, but strongly recommend that 
they directly participate in its management, supervision, and operation. Your operating manager/supervisor, if any, is not 
required to have an equity interest in your business but must satisfactorily complete our Coverall Training Program. Our 
Initial Training Program is available to you without charge. 

Our franchised businesses are independent contractors operating Commercial Cleaning Franchises. Your owner(s) 
and employee(s) are affiliated with you and are not employees of Coverall. Your owner(s) and employee(s) are not entitled 
to participate in any benefits programs offered by Coverall to those whom Coverall classifies as its employees; and you are 
not covered by either our workers' compensation insurance or unemployment compensation, unless as otherwise required 
by law. You must purchase this insurance on your own. Should any state or federal agency or court determine that you or 
your owner(s) or employee(s) fall within the definition of an employee of Coverall under any state or federal statute, 
Coverall does not intend to provide any of you retroactively or thereafter with any benefits (including but not limited to, 
vacation pay, overtime, rest and meal breaks, healthcare benefits, worker's compensation, or unemployment compensation) 
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that it may provide to those whom Coverall classifies as employees, unless obligated by law to do so. Should any state or 
federal agency or court determine that you or your owner(s) or employee(s) fall within the definition of an employee of 
Coverall under any state or federal statute, Coverall may, in its sole discretion, terminate or modify your Franchise 
Agreement. 

You are buying a Franchise, and you are an independent Franchised Business. We are not offering you or your 
owner(s) or your employee(s) a job; and none of you is an employee. 

ITEM 16 - RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS MAY SELL 

The System has been carefully developed over many years to provide high-quality services and products. You must 
provide only services and products we prescribe or authorize. In keeping with our high-quality standards, you may not 
provide unauthorized services or products. 

We reserve the right to modify the types of services provided to customers and you must abide by those 
modifications. To ensure quality, we also approve the specifications of your chemicals and equipment as described in Item 
8. 

In addition to the standard commercial cleaning services, you may also become qualified through Coverall's training 
to offer and perform Special Services. Special Services include but are not limited to day porter services, special event 
cleanup, blind cleaning, light bulb changing, deep cleaning, upholstery cleaning, machine scrub and rinse, strip and finish, 
scrub and recoat, windows, carpet extraction, carpet encapsulation and electrostatic disinfection. Other Special Services 
may be added. Since customers often prefer to obtain their cleaning services from one source, we strongly recommend that 
you take part in our specialized training to be equipped to provide these services. You must comply with our reasonable 
training requirements. If you choose not to offer these Special Services, we may bring in different franchised businesses or 
other contractors to provide them. 

We may also solicit special services from the customers to whom you are providing commercial cleaning services. 
Special services we obtain for the premises you are servicing will ordinarily be offered to you first. If you do not accept the 
special services, or you have not completed the specialized training required for the service, or the business is for a facility 
separate from the premises you are cleaning, we can offer the business to another franchised business or contractor. 

To ensure consistent quality throughout the System, you must adhere to the policies, procedures, and use of 
appropriate forms as set forth in training, the Coverall Franchised Business Policies and Procedures Manual, Operations 
and Sales Manuals, and other manuals and written directives. 

The customers that you service through your Coverall Franchise enter into contracts with Coverall unless you obtain 
the customer yourself. These contracts will be assigned to you, excluding those Service Agreements that prohibit 
assignment, cover multiple locations, or apply to National Account Customers, contingent upon your payment in full of the 
Initial Franchise Fee or the financed portion of Additional Business that you purchase. You must not solicit or contact 
existing Coverall customers or prospects, unless we authorize you to do so, as in the case of providing Special Services. 
Because of the potential of interfering with another franchised business's current customer or a prospect being solicited by 
Coverall or another franchised business, you may not telemarket. You may bid on a customer yourself, and if you request, 
we will assist you in preparing written proposals to prospective customers identified by you. You may not solicit outside of 
the territory encompassed by your Support Center. We reserve the right to contact the customers you are servicing, whether 
or not those customers were obtained by Coverall or you, through periodic visits and/or telephone contact to conduct surveys 
for Coverall brand protection. 

You may not use the "Coverall®" service mark and confidential, proprietary, and copyrighted information to 
perform residential or other noncommercial cleaning services. You may not be associated with any other company offering 
commercial cleaning services during the term of your franchise. All of the commercial cleaning services that you provide 
must be through your Franchise with all billing and collection done by Coverall, regardless of whether Coverall procured 
the customer or you did. 
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ITEM 17 - SUCCESSOR TERM, TERMINATION, TRANSFER, AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related agreements. You should read these 
provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure document. 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provision 
Section in franchise or 

other agreement Summary 
a. Length of the franchise term Section 2 20 years.
b. Renewal or extension of the term Section 2 Your Franchise terminates at the end of your 

franchise term and you have no automatic right of 
renewal. If you wish to enter into a successor term, 
Coverall agrees, and you satisfy all contractual 
conditions for a successor term, you must sign our 
then-current Franchise Agreement. This new 
agreement may have materially different terms and 
conditions (including e.g. higher royalty and/or 
support fee) from the agreement that governed your 
original term. As a further condition, you will be 
required to sign a general release in favor of 
Coverall.

c. Requirements for franchisee to 
renew or extend 

Section 2 You must satisfy certain prerequisites under the 
Franchise Agreement before entering into a 
successor term. You must sign our then-current 
franchise agreement for the successor term, and this 
new agreement may have materially different terms 
and conditions (including e.g. higher royalty and/or 
support fee) from the agreement that governed your 
original term. As a further condition, you will be 
required to sign a general 
release in favor of Coverall.

d. Termination by franchisee None Not Applicable
e. Termination by franchisor 

without cause
None Not Applicable 

f. Termination by franchisor with 
cause1

Section 22 Breach of Franchise Agreement or other 
agreements and other causes; See Section 22

g. "Cause" defined – curable 
defaults 

Section 22 You have 10 days to cure the following defaults: any 
breach of the franchise agreement not otherwise 
specified and abandonment of the franchised 
business. 

h. "Cause" defined – non-curable 
defaults 

Section 22.A. Non-curable defaults giving Coverall the immediate 
right to terminate include activities such as: material 
misrepresentation in your franchise application, 
bankruptcy or insolvency, unauthorized assignment, 
dishonest, immoral, unethical or illegal conduct 
which might adversely affect the reputation of 
Coverall, the franchised business, or the Coverall 
marks, multiple defaults, failure to pay taxes when 
due, failure to indemnify, failure to acquire 
necessary licensure or permits, failure to operate as 
a business entity and maintain such business entity 
in good standing, conviction of a felony, fraud, 
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provision 
Section in franchise or 

other agreement Summary 
crime involving moral turpitude or other criminal 
offence which adversely affect the reputation of 
Coverall, the franchised business, or the Coverall 
marks, breach of non-compete or confidentiality 
obligations, willful misrepresentation, contractual 
interference, misuse of confidential information, 
engaging in conduct that constitutes a danger to the 
health and safety of the general public, failing a 
background check,  

Coverall may also terminate the franchise 
agreement upon 30 days' notice in the event there is 
a change in applicable law that threatens to result in 
Coverall being deemed the employer, joint 
employer, co-employer or as having an employment 
relationship with the franchisee or the franchisee's 
employees. 

i. Franchisee's obligations on 
termination/ expiration 

Section 23 Obligations include: payment of all sums due, 
discontinuing use of Coverall marks, surrendering 
all documentation relating to the System, 
discontinuing all advertising for the franchised 
business, maintaining all books, records and reports 
for a period of three years, complete de-
identification of the franchised business and 
exercise the option to purchase franchisee’s 
business. See Section 23 and o., and q. below.

j. Assignment of contract by 
franchisor

Section 21 No restriction on our right to assign. 

k. "Transfer" by franchisee - 
defined

Section 21 Includes transfer of your Franchised Business 
and/or customers and/or Business Owed.

l. Franchisor approval of transfer 
by franchisee 

Section 21 We have the right to approve all transfers of the 
Franchised Business or any customers, which 
approval will not be unreasonably withheld.

m. Conditions for franchisor 
approval of transfer 

Section 21 Conditions include: our written consent, no defaults, 
qualified and trained transferee, payment of transfer 
fee, and execution of new Franchise Agreement, 
general release, Non-Competition Agreement, and 
other documents.

n. Franchisor's right of first refusal 
to acquire franchisee's business

None Not Applicable 

o. Franchisor's option to purchase 
franchisee's business

Section 23 We have the right to purchase some or all of the 
franchised business's customers.

p. Death or disability of franchisee Section 22 Our conditions for approval of transfer apply.
q. Non-competition covenants 

during the term of the franchise 
Section 18 During the Term of this Agreement and any 

Successor Term, franchisee shall not, without the 
prior written consent of Coverall, directly or 
indirectly, engage in, or acquire any financial 
interest in (either as an individual, principal, owner, 
agent, employee, partner, stockholder, or director) 
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THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provision 
Section in franchise or 

other agreement Summary 
any business which performs commercial janitorial 
and related commercial cleaning and maintenance 
services, or engages in the franchising of 
commercial cleaning businesses, or any related 
business anywhere in the Area. Franchisee shall not 
divert any customer of its Franchised Business to 
another entity, whether or not that entity is directly 
or indirectly controlled by Franchisee, unless 
Franchisee obtains Coverall's written consent.

r. Non solicitation covenants after 
the franchise is terminated or 
expires 

Section 18 Prohibits solicitation, either directly or indirectly, or 
servicing of any customer repurchased by Coverall 
or another Coverall franchised business for a period 
of 18 months following the date of repurchase.

s. Modification of the agreement Section 29 No modifications except in writing by all parties.
t. Integration/merger clause Section 28 Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement and 

other related written agreements are binding 
(subject to applicable state law). Any other promises 
may not be enforceable. Nothing in the Franchise 
Agreement is intended to disclaim the 
representations Coverall made in the Franchise 
Disclosure Document that Coverall furnished to 
you.

u. Dispute resolution by arbitration 
or mediation 

Section 24 and 25 Informal dispute resolution by non-binding 
mediation (Section 24). Mandatory arbitration 
(Section 25).

v. Choice of forum None
w. Choice of law Section 27 State in which franchise granted is located
x. Time to Assert Claims Section 26 The two year limitations period shall be enforceable 

to the fullest extent permitted by law.

1If your Coverall Franchise is terminated because of your abandonment of your Franchise, any funds collected from 
your customers for services rendered by you will first be applied to any outstanding obligations owed by you to Coverall as 
of the date of your abandonment. Abandonment of your Franchise shall result in forfeiture of your customers and any 
Business Owed to you at the time of your abandonment. 

Applicable state laws may require additional disclosures related to the information in this Franchise Disclosure 
Document. These additional disclosures, if any, appear in an Addendum. 

ITEM 18 - PUBLIC FIGURES 

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchises. 

ITEM 19 - FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial 
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the 
information is included in the disclosure document. Financial performance information that differs from that included in 
Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; 
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or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in the Item 19, for example, by providing information about 
possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances. 

COVERALL'S FULFILLMENT OF FRANCHISE PACKAGES 

We analyzed our compliance with the Franchise Agreement concerning the amount, timeliness, and refund 
requirements for Initial Business provided to our Franchised Businesses. We reviewed all franchise sales made during our 
fiscal year, and determined whether or not as of December 31, 2023 the Initial Business had been offered in compliance 
with the Franchise Agreement. 

During our fiscal year January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023, Coverall sold 367 franchises. Of those sold, as of the 
close of the fiscal year: (a) Franchised Businesses either had their packages timely filled or have accepted our performance 
in 117 cases; or 32%; (b) we and the franchised businesses made a mutually acceptable adjustment to the franchise package, 
such as by our recalculation of the franchise fee or an extension of time to provide customers, in 2 cases; or less than 1%; 
(c) the time for us to provide initial customers under franchise packages had not expired in 248 cases, or 68%; and (d) it is 
undetermined whether the package has been filled in 0 cases, or 0%.  Therefore, we complied with the amount, timeliness, 
and recalculation requirements for Initial Business provided to our Franchised Businesses in 100% of the cases. 
Substantiation of the data used in preparing these statistics will be made available upon request.

The following chart discloses a historic financial performance representation of the Initial Package Fulfillment of 
the existing 367 Franchised Businesses who purchased an Initial Franchise Package from Coverall in fiscal year 2023. 

INITIAL VOLUME FULFILLMENT 
COVERALL NORTH AMERICA, INC.  

FISCAL YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Package Size 3,000 4,000 5,000 7,000 10,000   

  # of days to provide initial 
business 120 150 180 240 330

TOTAL 

Total # of franchisees 
purchasing packages 289 29 24 15 10 367

# of packages filled within 
required time period 70 4 2 0 0 76

# of franchisees whose 
fulfillment period has not 
expired 179 23 21 15 10 248

# of franchisees who have 
accepted our performance1 39 2 0 0 0 41



©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. 48 Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document 
74005932;6 

# of franchisees whose 
packages were adjusted 1 0 0 0 0 1

# of franchisees who 
currently disagree whether 
package was filled 0 0 1 0 0 1

  Total 289 29 24 15 10 367

1Franchised Businesses have accepted our performance for various reasons, which include requests by the 
franchised business owners to delay fulfillment of their packages. We accommodate the requests of our franchised business 
owners, and when a franchised business owner requests deferment of the fulfillment of their package, we accommodate that 
request. We will fulfill the remainder of such deferred fulfillment package at the direction of the franchised business owner. 

Some outlets have sold this amount.  Your individual results may differ.  There is no assurance that you’ll 
sell as much. 

Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any representations about a 
franchised business's future financial performance or the past financial performance of company-owned or franchised 
outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in 
writing. If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you 
receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to the 
franchisor's management by contacting the Director of Legal Operations at the Global Support Center located at 350 SW 
12th Avenue, Deerfield Beach, Florida 33442 (561) 922-2443 ; the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state 
regulatory agencies. 

ITEM 20 - OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

Table No. 1 

Systemwide Outlet Summary 
For Years 2021 to 2023 (1) (2) 

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the Start of 
the Year 

Outlets at the End of the 
Year 

Net Change 

Franchised 

2021 6,973 6,507 -466

2022 6,507 5,917 -590

2023 5,917 5,654 -263

Company-Owned 
2021 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0

Total Outlets 
2021 6,970 6,507 -463 

2022 6,483 5,916 -566 

2023 5,916 5,654 -262 
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Table No. 2 

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor) 
For Years 2021 to 2023 (1) (2) 

State Year Number of Transfers

Alabama 
2021 0

2022 3

2023 0

Arizona 
2021 0

2022 0

2023 1

California 
2021 15

2022 5

2023 4

Connecticut 
2021 2

2022 1

2023 1

Florida 
2021 6

2022 10

2023 8

Georgia 
2021 3

2022 1

2023 1

Hawaii 
2021 1

2022 2

2023 0

Illinois 
2021 2

2022 0

2023 2

Indiana 
2021 0

2022 3

2023 0

Kentucky 
2021 2

2022 4

2023 0

Maryland 
2021 1

2022 7

2023 0

Michigan 
2021 1

2022 3

2023 0

Minnesota 
2021 4

2022 1

2023 5

Mississippi 
2021 0

2022 1
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2023 1

Missouri 
2021 2

2022 0

2023 0

Nevada 
2021 1

2022 0

2023 0

New Jersey 
2021 0

2022 1

2023 1

New York 
2021 4

2022 7

2023 2

North Carolina 
2021 3

2022 3

2023 3

Ohio 
2021 3

2022 2

2023 2

Oregon 
2021 1

2022 0

2023 0

Pennsylvania 
2021 0

2022 3

2023 3

South Carolina 
2021 1

2022 0

2023 1

Tennessee 
2021 0

2022 1

2023 0

Texas 
2021 2

2022 0

2023 1

Virginia 
2021 1

2022 0

2023 0

Totals 
2021 55 

2022 58 

2023 36 
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Table No. 3 

Status of Franchised Outlets 
For Years 2021 to 2023 (1) (2) (3) (4) 

State Year 
Outlets at 
Start of 
Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

(new sales) 
Terminations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations

-Other 
Reasons 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

Alabama 
2021 50 11 3 0 0 3 55

2022 55 5 4 0 0 4 51

2023 51 5 5 0 0 0 52

Arizona 
2021 83 10 19 0 0 7 57

2022 57 3 1 0 0 4 55

2023 55 6 5 0 0 0 56

Arkansas 
2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

California 
2021 912 105 125 4 0 27 855

2022 855 74 98 2 0 25 803

2023 803 72 68 4 0 19 785

Colorado 
2021 47 1 0 0 0 0 48

2022 48 3 1 0 0 0 50

2023 50 2 1 0 0 0 51

Connecticut 
2021 137 15 5 0 0 9 138

2022 138 4 2 0 0 14 129

2023 129 0 9 2 0 0 116

Delaware 
2021 20 0 5 0 0 1 16

2022 16 2 4 0 0 0 14

2023 14 3 3 0 0 0 14

Florida 
2021 918 78 135 0 0 62 801

2022 801 85 97 0 0 64 725

2023 725 66 75 1 0 41 675

Georgia 
2021 181 17 36 1 0 0 163

2022 163 7 31 0 0 0 140

2023 140 9 19 0 1 3 124

Hawaii 
2021 178 13 30 0 0 0 161

2022 161 9 32 0 0 2 136

2023 136 10 16 0 0 0 129

Illinois 
2021 251 20 32 1 0 0 236

2022 236 7 12 0 0 6 225

2023 225 19 6 0 0 14 222

Indiana 
2021 49 14 3 0 0 0 38

2022 38 10 3 0 0 0 45

2023 45 7 8 0 0 0 47
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State Year 
Outlets at 
Start of 
Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

(new sales) 
Terminations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations

-Other 
Reasons 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

Iowa 
2021 7 1 0 0 0 0 10

2022 10 0 2 0 0 0 8

2023 8 2 1 0 0 0 9

Kansas 
2021 34 2 0 0 0 0 36

2022 36 0 0 0 0 1 35

2023 35 0 0 0 0 0 35

Kentucky 
2021 95 14 8 0 1 3 95

2022 95 13 4 0 0 0 106

2023 106 24 14 0 0 0 118

Louisiana 
2021 48 10 6 0 0 4 48

2022 48 6 5 0 0 4 46

2023 46 1 9 0 0 0 38

Maine 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Maryland 
2021 233 17 25 0 0 0 226

2022 226 17 33 0 0 0 211

2023 211 14 18 0 0 0 206

Massachusetts 
2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

Michigan 
2021 239 16 25 0 0 4 230

2022 230 14 18 0 0 31 194

2023 194 10 15 0 0 9 183

Minnesota 
2021 132 10 10 0 0 1 131

2022 131 6 7 0 0 4 129

2023 129 7 12 0 0 1 121

Mississippi 
2021 12 1 2 0 0 1 10

2022 10 0 0 0 0 2 7

2023 7 0 0 0 0 0 7

Missouri 
2021 85 4 1 0 0 0 89

2022 89 0 1 0 0 0 88

2023 88 2 0 0 0 0 92

Nebraska 
2021 26 3 5 0 0 0 24

2022 24 3 6 0 0 1 20

2023 20 5 3 0 0 1 21

Nevada 
2021 85 10 11 0 0 3 81

2022 81 9 5 0 0 4 81

2023 81 10 12 0 0 0 79

New Hampshire 
2021 5 0 0 0 0 0 5

2022 5 0 1 0 0 0 4
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State Year 
Outlets at 
Start of 
Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

(new sales) 
Terminations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations

-Other 
Reasons 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

2023 4 0 1 0 0 0 3

New Jersey 
2021 330 14 23 1 1 39 287

2022 287 7 37 0 1 25 234

2023 234 11 19 1 0 0 224

New Mexico 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

New York 
2021 284 36 19 1 0 28 269

2022 269 23 24 0 0 15 251

2023 251 15 43 1 0 1 227

North Carolina 
2021 174 15 43 2 0 1 147

2022 147 11 32 0 0 0 127

2023 127 8 22 1 0 0 110

Ohio 
2021 551 71 28 0 0 64 530

2022 530 31 42 0 2 64 451

2023 451 21 22 1 0 50 399

Oklahoma 
2021 42 1 0 0 0 0 43

2022 43 2 0 0 0 0 45

2023 45 1 0 0 0 0 46

Oregon 
2021 59 6 5 0 0 0 61

2022 61 5 7 0 0 2 57

2023 57 4 7 0 0 0 54

Pennsylvania 
2021 422 49 93 1 0 4 371

2022 371 42 63 0 0 1 348

2023 348 41 35 0 0 0 353

Rhode Island 
2021 39 0 2 0 0 5 32

2022 32 1 1 0 0 2 30

2023 30 0 5 0 0 1 24

South Carolina 
2021 37 2 7 1 0 1 29

2022 29 1 4 0 0 0 24

2023 24 2 3 0 0 0 22

South Dakota 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Tennessee 
2021 149 16 9 0 1 3 151

2022 151 9 3 0 0 9 148

2023 148 17 3 0 0 0 157

Texas 
2021 300 34 51 0 0 1 287

2022 287 33 24 0 0 8 287

2023 287 30 13 2 0 13 289
Utah 2021 60 0 10 0 0 0 51
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State Year 
Outlets at 
Start of 
Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

(new sales) 
Terminations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations

-Other 
Reasons 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

2022 51 3 4 0 0 4 46

2023 46 3 2 0 0 0 47

Virginia 
2021 340 27 39 6 0 1 320

2022 320 13 85 3 0 0 245

2023 245 9 44 0 0 1 209

Washington 
2021 71 10 10 0 0 0 70

2022 70 7 14 0 0 1 64

2023 64 10 7 0 0 0 66

Washington D.C. 
2021 9 2 1 0 0 0 9

2022 9 1 4 0 0 0 6

2023 6 1 2 0 0 0 5

West Virginia 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Wisconsin 
2021 273 34 34 0 0 3 270

2022 270 19 18 0 0 21 248

2023 248 26 14 2 0 24 236

Wyoming 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Totals 
2021 6,970 689 860 18 3 275 6,483 

2022 6,483 485 729 5 3 318 5,916 

2023 5,916 473 541 15 1 178 5,654 

This space intentionally left blank. 
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Table No. 4 
Status of Company-Owned Outlets 
For Years 2021 to 2023 (1) (3) (4) 

State Year Outlets at Start 
of Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Outlets 
Reacquired 

from 
Franchisee 

Outlets 
Closed 

Outlets Sold 
to 

Franchisee 

Outlets at 
the End 
of the 
Year 

All States 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(1) The numbers for 2021-2023 are as of Coverall's fiscal year (December 31 of each year). 

(2) Franchised outlets include outlets operated by franchisees under franchise agreements with Coverall, and 
outlets operated by franchisees under franchise agreements with Coverall's Service Franchisees (as reported to Coverall by 
its Service Franchisees).  

(3) Coverall conducted an audit of franchised outlets in operation as of December 31, 2023 and made 
adjustments to the column "Outlets at the End of the Year" to reconcile any discrepancies in the total number of franchised 
outlets in each state and total number of outlets as of December 31, 2023.  Other franchised outlet information in this Item, 
i.e., "Outlets at Start of Year," "Outlets Opened," etc.,… (which has been based in part on reports to Coverall by its Service 
Franchisees for the years 2021 to 2023) has not been audited or adjusted. 

(4) Coverall and Coverall's Service Franchisees do not operate any company-owned outlets. 

Table No. 5 
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2023 

State Franchise Agreements 
Signed But Outlet Not Open 

(as of December 31, 2023) 

Projected New 
Franchised Outlet In The 

Next fiscal Year 

Projected New Company Owned 
Outlet in Next Fiscal Year 

Alabama 2 11 0 

Arizona 1 11 0 

Arkansas 0 0 0 

California 10 73 0 

Colorado 1 8 0 

Connecticut 0 6 0 

Delaware 1 0 0 

Florida 8 82 0 

Georgia 2 13 0 

Hawaii 1 9 0 
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Idaho 0 0 0 

Illinois 3 12 0 

Indiana 0 0 0 

Iowa 1 0 0 

Kansas 0 8 0 

Kentucky 0 24 0 

Louisiana 1 6 0 

Maine 0 0 0 

Maryland 1 10 0 

Michigan 2 14 0 

Minnesota 0 10 0 

Mississippi 0 2 0 

Missouri 0 8 0 

Nebraska 1 7 0 

Nevada 2 8 0 

New Hampshire 0 0 0 

New Jersey 3 11 0 

New Mexico 0 0 0 

New York 1 33 0 

North Carolina 0 20 0 

Ohio 1 45 0 

Oklahoma 0 8 0 

Oregon 1 7 0 

Pennsylvania 4 43 0 

Rhode Island 0 6 0 

South Carolina 0 0 0 

Tennessee 0 23 0 

Texas 9 31 0 

Utah 0 5 0 

Virginia 1 14 0 

Washington 10 10 0 

Washington, D.C. 0 10 0 

Wisconsin 2 12 0 

Totals 69 600 0 

Exhibit E lists the names of all current franchisees and their addresses and telephone numbers as of the end of our 
last fiscal year. Exhibit E also lists the name, city and state, and the current business telephone number (or, if unknown, the 
last known home telephone number) of every franchisee who has an outlet terminated, cancelled, transferred, not renewed, 
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or who otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceasing to do business under its franchise agreement during the most recently 
completed fiscal year, or who has not communicated with us (or a Service Franchisee, as applicable) within 10 weeks of the 
issuance date of this disclosure document. including franchisees who transferred their franchise during the most recently 
completed fiscal year. If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave 
the franchise system. 

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the franchise 
system. We are not aware of any trademark specific independent franchisee associations and no independent franchisee 
organizations have asked to be included in this disclosure document. 

During the last 3 fiscal years, we have signed some confidentiality clauses with certain existing and former 
franchises that would restrict them from speaking openly about their experience with Coverall. 

ITEM 21 - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We are a direct wholly owned subsidiary of CNA Holding Corporation, which is indirectly wholly owned by 
Coverall Acquisition, LLC, and our ultimate controlling parent WCP Coverall Topco LLC.  Our financial results are 
included in the consolidated audited financial statements of Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries. Attached to this 
disclosure document as Exhibit B are the consolidated audited financial statements of Coverall Acquisition, LLC and 
Subsidiaries (Successor Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the 
related consolidated statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022 and the period from July 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 (Successor Period), and the audited the consolidated 
financial statements of CNA Holding Corporation and Subsidiaries (Predecessor Company), which comprise the 
consolidated statements of income, changes in equity, and cash flows for the period from January 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2021 (Predecessor Period).  

Coverall Acquisition, LLC guarantees our obligations to you, and a copy of the Guaranty is attached in Exhibit B. 

ITEM 22 - CONTRACTS 

The following agreements are attached to this disclosure document: 

Exhibit A.1 Coverall Franchise Agreement 
(Transfer of a Franchised Business Page 1) (Successor Term Form Page 1) 

a. Promissory Note 
b. Customer Transfer Form (for transfers) 
c. Customers Serviced Form (for successor term) 

A.2 Guaranty to Coverall Franchise Agreement 
A.3 Confidentiality/Non-Solicitation Agreement 
A.4 Confidentiality Agreement for Franchised Business's Employees 
A.5 Equipment Purchase Agreement 

Exhibit F Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure Agreement  

Exhibit G Franchised Business Customer Acceptance Forms 

ITEM 23 - RECEIPTS 

Two copies of an acknowledgment of your receipt of this disclosure document appear at the end of this disclosure 
document (Exhibit K). Please return one copy to us and retain the other for your records. 
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FRANCHISE # NEW FRANCHISED BUSINESS

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between Coverall North America, Inc., a corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of Delaware ("Coverall") and _________________ ("Franchised Business") for the 
purposes of granting Franchised Business the rights necessary to operate a Coverall Franchise. Franchised 
Business is doing business as a: 

Corporation, state of incorporation: ____________ LLC, state of organization: _____________ 

Effective Date of Agreement:  

Term of Franchise ("Initial Term"): 20 years 

Package Purchased: P-

Initial Business Offering Period _______ business days 

Coverall Support Center  

Non-Refundable Franchise Fee:  
 Cash  Veteran 

Down Payment   
Amount Financed:  
(with interest at   % per annum) 
Financing Period:   months 

Amount of Each Monthly Installment:   

The first installment of principal and interest shall be 
paid on  , 20 

Franchised Business agrees to receipt of all correspondence sent via U.S. MAIL at the following address: 

Email Address:  FEIN: - 

Franchised Business Owners (each a 100% guarantor of Franchised Business for purposes of its operation as a 
Coverall Franchise and each fully authorized to transact business with Coverall on behalf of Franchised Business): 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone:  Email Address: 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone:  Email Address: 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone:  Email Address: 
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TERMS OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual rights and obligations contained in 
this Franchise Agreement (this "Agreement"), Coverall and Franchised Business agree as follows: 

1. NATURE AND SCOPE OF FRANCHISE. 

A. Coverall awards franchises (each a "Coverall Franchise" or "Franchise") for 
purposes of conducting commercial cleaning and related special services (as 
defined herein), and supports such Franchises as set forth in this Agreement. 

B. Upon execution of this Agreement, Franchised Business will be an independent 
business owner with a Coverall Franchise. During the Term, Franchised Business 
will be entitled to (1) use the Coverall System for the ongoing development and 
operation of commercial cleaning and related services, and (2) use certain Coverall 
trade names, service marks and trademarks, including the trade names "Coverall®," 
"Coverall Health-Based Cleaning System®," and/or such other names, designs, and 
logos as Coverall may from time to time designate (the "Marks"). The Coverall®

System is operated widely within the United States of America and in certain 
foreign countries. 

C. Coverall, directly or indirectly through its affiliates, owns the Coverall System and 
Marks and has the right to authorize their adoption and use. 

D. The rights granted to Franchised Business to operate the Franchise are set forth in 
this Agreement. 

E. The Franchised Business shall be operated in conformity with the Coverall System 
and adhere to this Agreement and Coverall's standards, policies, and procedures as 
they may be issued from time to time. 

2. FRANCHISE GRANT AND TERM. 

A. Coverall grants Franchised Business, for the stated Term, the right, license, and 
privilege to adopt and use the Coverall System, to advertise to the public that 
Franchised Business is a Coverall Franchise, and to adopt and use, but only in 
connection with the sale of commercial cleaning and related services and the 
provision of commercial cleaning and related services, the Marks that Coverall 
shall designate from time to time. 

B. The Term of this Agreement is twenty (20) years and shall begin on the Effective 
Date. 

C. Upon the expiration of the Term of this Agreement, Franchised Business shall have 
no further right to operate a Coverall Franchise unless Coverall and Franchised 
Business execute a written agreement for an additional term ("Successor Term 
Franchise"). Any Successor Term Franchise shall be upon the terms and conditions 
as Coverall is then using for Successor Term Franchises, which terms and 
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conditions may be materially different from the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. There is no charge for a Successor Term Franchise. As a condition 
associated with any Successor Term Franchise agreement, Franchised Business 
shall execute a general release in favor of Coverall. 

3. TERRITORY. 

Franchised Business is not granted an exclusive territory. Franchised Business may operate 
the Coverall Franchise only in the stated geographic area covered by the identified Coverall 
Support Center where Franchised Business bought the Franchise (the then-current list of 
Support Centers is described on Exhibit I to the Franchise Disclosure Document) (the 
"Area"). Coverall will award numerous Franchises to third parties other than Franchised 
Business within the Area. Without limitation, Coverall and its affiliates alone also have the 
right to establish or operate, and grant others the right to: establish or operate, other 
businesses offering the same or similar products utilizing other trade names, trademarks, 
and service marks, at any location; use the Coverall® Marks, System, and business model 
to sell any products or services the same as or similar to those which Franchised Business 
will sell, through any alternate channels of distribution at any location (including without 
limitation, other channels of distribution such as television, mail order, catalog sales, 
wholesale to unrelated retail outlets, or over the Internet); sell supplies directly to your 
customers; use and license the use of other proprietary and non-proprietary marks or 
methods which are not the same as or confusingly similar to the Coverall® Marks at any 
location, which may be similar to or different from the Coverall Franchise operated by 
Franchised Business; purchase or be purchased by, or merge or combine with, any 
business, including a business that competes directly with Franchised Business’s 
Franchise, wherever located; acquire and convert to the System operated by Coverall, any 
businesses, including such businesses operated by competitors or otherwise operated 
independently or as part of, or in association with, any other system or chain, whether 
franchised or corporately owned, and wherever located; and, engage in any activities not 
expressly prohibited by the Franchise Agreement.   

4. FRANCHISE FEE. 

The Franchise Fee stated on Page 1 is non-refundable. A portion of the Initial Franchise 
Fee, $5,000, is the price that Franchised Business pays for the license to use the Coverall®

Marks and System. 

5. ROYALTY AND SUPPORT FEES. 

Franchised Business is obligated to pay Coverall Royalty and Support Fees based on 
Franchised Business's monthly Gross Dollar Volume. Gross Dollar Volume includes all 
service fees billed to all Franchise customers. The Royalty Fee is for the right to use the 
Coverall System and the Marks; and the Support Fee is for the support that Coverall 
provides to Franchised Business. 

A. Royalty. Franchised Business shall pay Coverall a Royalty Fee in an amount equal 
to five percent (5%) of Franchised Business's monthly Gross Dollar Volume billed, 
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and the Royalty shall be payable monthly no later than the last calendar day of the 
month following the month in which Franchised Business serviced the customers. 

B. Support Fee. Franchised Business shall pay Coverall a Support Fee equal to ten 
percent (10%) of Franchised Business's monthly Gross Dollar Volume billed, and 
the Support Fee shall be payable monthly no later than the last calendar day of the 
month following the month in which Franchised Business serviced the customers. 

6. OTHER FEES. 

A. Special Services Finder's Fee. Special service contracts ("Special Services") are 
one-time or periodic contracts for services such as, but not limited to, day porter 
services, special event cleanup, blind cleaning, light bulb changing, deep cleaning, 
upholstery cleaning, machine scrub and rinse, strip and finish, scrub and recoat, 
windows, carpet extraction, and carpet encapsulation. A fee shall be charged for 
special service contracts obtained by Coverall which are accepted by and assigned 
to Franchised Business. However, there shall be no Special Services Finder's Fee 
charged for special service contracts obtained solely by Franchised Business (but 
other applicable fees hereunder shall apply). 

B. Transfer Fee. 

(i) A Transfer Fee is charged pursuant to Coverall's consent to Franchised 
Business's assignment to a third party of the Franchise and/or this 
Agreement, in whole or in part. The Transfer Fee is published and revised 
from time to time in the Franchised Business Policies and Procedures 
Manual (the "Policies and Procedures Manual"). 

(ii) A Customer Transfer Administrative Fee is charged for transfer of a 
customer to another Franchised Business and is ten percent (10%) of the 
Regular Service Volume attributable to each transferred customer, not to 
exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500) per customer transferred. 

(iii) A Business Owed Transfer Administrative Fee is charged for the transfer of 
Business Owed to another Franchised Business and is ten percent (10%) of 
the Business Owed transferred. ("Business Owed" is defined in Paragraph 
13.) 

C. Bid and Negotiation Fee. If Franchised Business requests assistance from Coverall 
with bidding (for example, establishing the contract price) for a potential customer, 
there will be a one-time fee as published and revised from time to time in the 
Policies and Procedures Manual. 

7. PAYMENT OF FEES AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS. 

Coverall supports Franchised Business by billing and collecting Franchised Business's 
Gross Dollar Volume (Franchised Business's customer receivables; see Paragraph 16B). 
Franchised Business hereby authorizes Coverall to deduct from Franchised Business's 
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Gross Dollar Volume, or any other amounts collected on Franchised Business's behalf, any 
and all fees and other amounts of any nature or kind owed by Franchised Business to 
Coverall, including but not limited to, any financed portion of the Franchise Fee (principal 
and interest), Royalty Fees, Support Fees, any financed portion of any Sales and Marketing 
Fees for the purchase of Additional Business (principal and interest), Special Services 
Finder's Fees, any Retentions for National Account Customers (defined in paragraph 13), 
any financed portion of equipment purchases (principal and interest), fees charged to 
participate in any Coverall insurance programs, any other obligations due and owing to 
Coverall by Franchised Business, and any other fees or charges that Franchised Business 
may authorize Coverall to deduct ("Authorized Deductions"). 

8. BUSINESS MULTIPLIERS. 

Business Multipliers are used to determine (a) the amount Franchised Business must pay 
Coverall for Additional Business (as defined in Paragraph 15), or (b) the amount Coverall 
may pay to Franchised Business to purchase Franchised Business's customers or Business 
Owed. Business Multipliers are published and revised from time to time in the Policies and 
Procedures Manual. The Business Multiplier applied to purchases of Additional Business 
by Franchised Business may be higher if Franchised Business has previously lost 
customers for cause, all as the Policies and Procedures Manual specifies. 

9. TRAINING. 

Franchised Business acknowledges the importance of quality and uniformity of business 
operation among all Franchised Businesses in the Coverall System; and Franchised 
Business agrees to enroll in Coverall’s Initial Training its Franchised Business owners or, 
with Coverall’s consent, Franchised Business’s designated employee(s). 

A. Initial Training is a forty (40) plus hour program that consists of classroom and on-
site instruction on, among other things, cleaning techniques, customer service, and 
business management. 

B. Initial Training may take up to eight (8) weeks to complete, or longer, depending 
upon Franchised Business owner / employee schedules. 

C. Coverall’s obligation hereunder to offer Franchised Business sufficient customers 
to fulfill Franchised Business’s Franchise Package does not begin until: 

(i) Franchised Business owner(s) or Franchised Business’s designated 
employee(s), as approved by Coverall, has / have satisfactorily completed 
Initial Training; 

(ii) Franchised Business has complied with the provisions of Paragraph 10 of 
this Agreement; and 

(iii) Franchised Business's and Franchised Business's owner(s) background 
screening has been approved. 
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10. INCORPORATION, BUSINESS LICENSE AND BUSINESS BANK ACCOUNT. 

Franchised Business must be a corporation or limited liability company, and Franchised 
Business must keep separate accounting, banking, and financial records for the operation 
of its Coverall Franchise. Prior to signing this Agreement, Franchised Business shall 
procure a business license, if applicable; obtain a Federal Employer Identification Number 
("FEIN"); and open a business bank account in the name of the Franchised Business. 

11. MANUALS. 

Coverall shall loan Franchised Business the Coverall Operations Manual and Policies and 
Procedures Manual (the "Manuals"); and grant access to Coverall's on-line training 
program. The Manuals contain detailed proprietary information about the Coverall System. 
Franchised Business agrees to promptly adopt and use exclusively the methods, policies, 
and procedures contained in current versions of the Manuals; the Manuals are revised from 
time to time. Franchised Business acknowledges that Coverall owns all proprietary rights 
in and to the Coverall System, and that the information revealed in the Manuals, in their 
entirety, constitutes confidential trade secrets. Without the prior written consent of 
Coverall, Franchised Business shall not disclose the content of the Manuals to any person, 
except employees of Franchised Business for purposes related solely to the operation of 
the Franchised Business, nor shall Franchised Business reprint or reproduce the manuals 
in whole or in part for any purpose except in connection with the instruction of Franchised 
Business's employees in the operation of the Franchised Business. Upon expiration or 
termination of the Coverall Franchise for any reason, Franchised Business shall return the 
Manuals to Coverall. 

12. COMPLIANCE WITH COVERALL SYSTEM. 

Franchised Business agrees that every component of the Coverall System is important to 
Coverall and the operation of the Franchised Business, including, but not limited to, 
uniformity of services, appearance, and adherence to Coverall standards and policies. 
Coverall shall have the right to observe and evaluate from time to time Franchised 
Business's business operations, including but not limited to, on-site visits and surveying 
any customer premises serviced by Franchised Business to assure compliance with 
Coverall standards and policies. 

13. THE FRANCHISE PACKAGE. 

Franchised Business purchased the Franchise Package described on Page 1. Coverall is 
obligated to fulfill that Franchise Package by offering Franchised Business commercial 
cleaning customers at the required Regular Service Volume level ("Initial Business") 
within the Initial Business Offering Period described on Page 1. Coverall procures 
commercial cleaning customers and offers those customers to Franchised Business to fulfill 
the Franchise Package and help Franchised Business launch the Franchised Business. 
Franchised Business may accept or reject an offered customer. If Franchise Business 
accepts an offered customer, Coverall will assign the customer agreement to Franchised 
Business. 
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Coverall does not have an inventory of customers, so Coverall has a specified number of 
business days from the date on which Franchised Business satisfies the requirements of 
Paragraph 9 to offer customers to satisfy Coverall's Franchise Package obligation. The 
Regular Service Volume that Coverall is obligated to offer Franchised Business is 
commonly referred to, and referred to herein, as "Business Owed." Business Owed is 
composed of Initial Business, Additional Business (as defined in Paragraph 15) purchased 
by Franchised Business, and Replacement Business owed pursuant to certain guarantees. 

A. The Franchised Business Fee reflects the amount of Initial Business owed by 
Coverall to Franchised Business. The amount of Initial Business is equal to the 
Franchise Package purchased. Initial Business is a specific dollar amount of 
Regular Service Volume. 

B. The Franchise Package purchased is not a guarantee that Franchised Business will 
earn an equivalent amount of Gross Dollar Volume each month; and except for 
customers lost during the guarantee period through no fault of Franchised Business, 
neither does it mean that Coverall is obligated at any time to replace lost customers 
to enable Franchised Business to maintain that level of Gross Dollar Volume. 

C. Coverall is obligated to offer Franchised Business, within the Initial Business 
Offering Period, one or more commercial cleaning customers to fulfill the Initial 
Business obligation. The customers offered to Franchised Business may be new 
customers recently acquired by Coverall; or existing customers that become 
available for resale. Coverall's obligation to offer customers to Franchised Business 
does not arise until Franchised Business has satisfied the requirements of Paragraph 
9. 

D. If Franchised Business accepts a customer offered to fulfill Initial Business that has 
Regular Service Volume in excess of that required to fulfill Initial Business, the 
excess Regular Service Volume is Additional Business and Franchised Business 
must pay Coverall for the excess as provided in Paragraph 15. As a condition of 
acceptance and purchase of Additional Business, Franchised Business will be 
required to sign a general release in favor of Coverall. 

E. If a Franchised Business accepts a customer, Coverall will assign the Service 
Agreements to the Franchised Business subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and that Service Agreement will become an asset of the Franchised 
Business. The Assignment shall be conditional subject to, among other things, 
payment in full of the financed portion of the Franchise Fee or purchases of 
Additional Business. Assignment of the Service Agreements shall not prohibit 
Coverall from selling to Franchised Business's customers Special Services, 
equipment, chemicals or supplies not covered by the assigned Service Agreements. 
National Account Customers are Coverall customers that have multiple national or 
regional locations, and such National Account Customer agreements, along with 
local multiple location customers, or customers with contracts that prohibit 
assignment (collectively "National Account Customers"), will not be assigned to 
Franchised Business. Franchised Business may agree to service National Account 
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Customers, but because such agreements will not be assigned to Franchised 
Business, Franchised Business's only interest in such customers will be the right to 
receive, in return for identified services performed, the amounts specified in 
Paragraph 16B(ii) and perform services as a subcontractor. With regard to such 
National Account Customers, Coverall may at any time unilaterally determine that 
Franchised Business's subcontractor services must cease and direct Franchised 
Business to stop servicing any and all National Account Customer location or 
locations. 

F. If Franchised Business refuses to accept any customer offered by Coverall to fulfill 
Initial Business, the time for offering the Initial Business is extended; and Coverall 
shall remain obligated to offer, within a reasonable period of time after the 
expiration of the Initial Business Offering Period, the amount of Initial Business 
refused by Franchised Business. 

G. The Initial Business Offering Period may be suspended during any period in which: 

(i) Coverall reasonably requires Franchised Business to attend retraining; or 

(ii) Franchised Business is in breach of any material provision of this 
Agreement or any other agreement between Coverall and Franchised 
Business. 

H. If the Initial Business Offering Period expires and Coverall has not offered 
Franchised Business sufficient customers with adequate Regular Service Volume 
to satisfy the total amount of Initial Business, Franchised Business may request 
Coverall to: 

(i) Pay Franchised Business for the amount of the Franchise Package not 
timely offered times the Business Multiplier applicable to the purchase of 
Additional Business under this Paragraph 13H as published and revised 
from time to time in the Policies and Procedures Manual; and 

(ii) Coverall shall first apply refunds due pursuant to 13H(i) to any obligations 
owed by Franchised Business to Coverall, and pay the balance, if any, to 
Franchised Business. 

This is the sole remedy available to Franchised Business for Coverall's failure to 
timely offer Initial Business. 

I. Franchised Business must not solicit or contact existing Coverall customers or 
prospects, unless Coverall authorizes Franchised Business to do so, as in the case of providing 
Special Services.  Because of the potential of interfering with another franchised business's current 
customer or a prospect being solicited by Coverall or another franchised business, Franchised 
Business is prohibited from telemarketing.     
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J. Coverall reserves the right to contact the customers Franchised Business is 
servicing, whether or not those customers were obtained by Coverall or Franchised Business, 
through periodic visits and/or telephone contact to conduct surveys for Coverall brand protection. 

14. THE COVERALL INITIAL BUSINESS GUARANTEE. 

Coverall provides a limited guarantee of the Initial Business accepted by Franchised 
Business. The purpose of the guarantee is to help Franchised Business through the start-up 
phase of Franchised Business. The guarantee applies only to customers lost through no 
fault of Franchised Business; and entitles Franchised Business to a one (1) time 
replacement of each customer's monthly Gross Dollar Volume accepted by Franchised 
Business to fulfill Initial Business. The guarantee does not apply to Initial Business 
customers voluntarily abandoned by Franchised Business or to customers that have 
terminated Franchised Business for cause. 

A. Initial Business is guaranteed for a one time only replacement for twelve (12) 
months from the date Franchised Business first services the customer, but only if 
the customer is lost through no fault of Franchised Business. Coverall will within a 
reasonable period of time offer Franchised Business one or more customers 
generating Regular Service Volume at least equal to that lost by Franchised 
Business to fulfill the guarantee. 

B. If the customer(s) offered to replace the guaranteed lost Initial Business generates 
Regular Service Volume in excess of that lost and Franchised Business accepts the 
customer, Franchised Business will have to pay Coverall for the excess Regular 
Service Volume. The payment to Coverall shall be equivalent to the Business 
Multiplier times the excess Regular Service Volume. 

15. GROWING THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS. 

After Franchised Business's Franchise Package is fulfilled by Coverall, Coverall may, but 
is not obligated to, offer Franchised Business additional Regular Service Volume 
("Additional Business"). Franchised Business may grow the Franchised Business by i) 
obtaining customers for the Franchised Business on its own, ii) purchasing Additional 
Business from Coverall in the event Coverall has Additional Business available to offer 
Franchised Business, or iii) purchasing Additional Business from other Coverall franchise 
owners. As a condition of acceptance and purchase of Additional Business from Coverall, 
Franchised Business will be required to sign a general release in favor of Coverall. 
Additional Business, including National Account Customers, may be new customers 
recently acquired by Coverall, or they may be existing customers that become available for 
resale. 

A. The fee charged for Additional Business is the Business Multiplier times the 
Regular Service Volume Franchised Business desires to purchase (the "Sales and 
Marketing Fee"). In accordance with the current version of the Policy and 
Procedures Manual, Franchised Business may pay a higher multiple if Franchised 
Business has previously lost a customer for cause or abandoned a customer. Once 
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Franchised Business has paid in full for the Additional Business, Coverall will have 
a reasonable period of time from the date of payment in full within which to offer 
the Additional Business. If Coverall does not offer the Additional Business within 
a reasonable period of time, Franchised Business will be entitled to a refund of the 
Sales and Marketing Fee paid to Coverall. 

B. From time to time, Coverall may initiate an offer of Additional Business to 
Franchised Business. If Franchised Business accepts the offer, Franchised Business 
shall pay the Sales and Marketing Fee stated in Paragraph 15A. Coverall may 
finance up to eighty percent (80%) of the Sales and Marketing Fee. 

C. Additional Business purchased from Coverall is guaranteed for a one time only 
replacement for six (6) months from the date Franchised Business first services the 
customer, but only if the customer is lost through no fault of Franchised Business. 
Coverall will replace the monthly Gross Dollar Volume of the Additional Business 
within a reasonable period of time. If Coverall does not offer the replacement 
Additional Business within a reasonable period of time, Franchised Business's sole 
remedy is a refund of the Sales and Marketing Fee paid to Coverall. Coverall shall 
first apply any refund due under this Paragraph 15C to any obligations owed by 
Franchised Business to Coverall, and pay the balance, if any, to Franchised 
Business. The Additional Business guarantee does not apply to customers obtained 
by Franchised Business or to promotional Regular Service Volume provided to 
Franchised Business by Coverall free of charge. 

16. BUSINESS AND SUPPORT SERVICES PROVIDED BY COVERALL. 

Coverall provides business and support services to Franchised Business for the Support 
Fee paid to Coverall. Coverall will provide the following services: 

A. Additional Training. Franchised Business is required to complete Initial Training 
in the Coverall System. Subsequent training is Additional Training, and may 
include, but shall not be limited to, any training course offered in the Initial 
Training, or any other training provided by Coverall to Franchised Business and/or 
Franchised Business's owners or employee(s). Additional Training may also 
include courses introducing new methods and any certification requirements 
developed after Initial Training, which Additional Training may be mandatory in 
Coverall's sole discretion. Franchised Business's Additional Training may be 
offered online, through webinars, personal consultation and/or through group 
seminars. Personal consultations may be scheduled at the request of Franchised 
Business and may be conducted by telephone or in person. There is no charge for 
Additional Training. 

B. Billing and Collection. Coverall provides billing and collection services for 
Franchised Business, including billing customers for services and supplies provided 
by Franchised Business, collecting the amounts due from those customers, and 
remitting to Franchised Business the amounts collected from those customers on 
Franchised Business's behalf, less Authorized Deductions. Coverall has the 
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exclusive right to bill and collect in the name of the Franchised Business from 
customers during the Term of this Agreement. 

(i) At the beginning of each month, Coverall shall invoice and collect payment 
from Franchised Business's customers according to the customer contract 
(the "Service Agreement") and for any other services and supplies that may 
have been provided by Franchised Business. On the last calendar day of the 
month following the month in which the services and supplies were 
provided by Franchised Business (if the last calendar day of the month falls 
on a weekend and/or holiday, payment will be made on the next business 
day), Coverall will distribute to Franchised Business amounts collected 
from Franchised Business's customers less the Authorized Deductions. If 
applicable, Coverall will remit any state sales tax collected from Franchised 
Business's customers to the appropriate state taxing authority. 

(ii) With the exception of National Account Customers that Franchised 
Business may service, Franchised Business is entitled to receive the total 
amount collected from each customer, less all Authorized Deductions. 
Coverall may retain a percentage, or another separately specified portion, 
of the total amount collected from the National Account Customer (the 
"Retention"). Therefore, the amount that Franchised Business will receive 
for servicing a National Account Customer location may not be equivalent 
to a pro rata share of the total monthly amount that is collected from the 
National Account Customer, or equivalent to the amount that is collected 
from the National Account Customer for the location serviced by 
Franchised Business. To the extent that there is excess Retention, those 
funds are kept by Coverall. The Retention, however, does not affect the 
amount of Regular Service Volume offered to Franchised Business to fulfill 
either Franchised Business's Initial Package or sold to Franchised Business 
as Additional Business. 

(iii) If a customer discontinues Franchised Business's services for any reason 
and the customer is Franchised Business's only customer, Coverall shall 
have the right to apply the entire amount of any payment subsequently 
collected by Coverall from that customer to any amount owed by Franchised 
Business to Coverall. Nothing contained in this Paragraph 16B(iii), 
however, shall be construed to release Franchised Business from its 
obligations to Coverall for any amount remaining due after applying the 
funds received from the discontinued customer. 

(iv) If a customer that Coverall bills on Franchised Business's behalf is 
delinquent in payment, Coverall may, after consulting with Franchised 
Business, stop invoicing that customer. If Franchised Business chooses to 
continue servicing a delinquent customer, Franchised Business does so at 
the risk of non- payment. 



Exhibit A.1 to 
Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document _________ / _________ 

©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. Page 12 of 63 Initial Initial 
74065823;4 

(v) If Coverall must file a lawsuit against a delinquent customer and Coverall 
collects from that customer, Franchised Business will be entitled to receive 
the amount collected net of Coverall's Royalty and Support Fee and the 
costs of collection, including attorney's fees, costs, and expenses. 

(vi) Coverall may, after consulting with Franchised Business, settle and 
compromise delinquent customer obligations, which means that Coverall 
may (with Franchised Business’s consent) agree to accept less than the 
amount owed by the customer. Franchised Business will be entitled to 
receive the amount collected net of Coverall's Royalty and Support Fees and 
the costs of recovery, including attorney's fees, costs and expenses. 

(vii) The balance of the funds collected from Franchised Business's delinquent 
customers pursuant to Paragraphs 16B(v) and (vi) will first be applied to 
any amount owed by Franchised Business to Coverall, and the balance, if 
any, will be paid to Franchised Business. 

(viii) Franchised Business agrees to cooperate with Coverall in the collection of 
delinquent customer receivables, including but not limited to reassignment 
of the Service Agreement to Coverall as needed for collection purposes. 

(ix) If Franchised Business chooses at its own expense to file a lawsuit to collect 
from a delinquent customer, Franchised Business must pay Coverall its 
Royalty and Support Fee on any amount collected. 

(x) Franchised Business understands, acknowledges and agrees that Coverall is 
an intended third-party beneficiary of all Service Agreements that 
Franchised Business enters into and Coverall and its affiliates have the 
absolute right to enforce all of the terms and provisions of the Service 
Agreements should Franchised Business fail or otherwise refuse to do so. 
Notwithstanding the fact that Coverall is a third party-beneficiary to such 
Service Agreements as described above, Coverall is not a party to such 
Service Agreements and Coverall is not responsible for any of the duties, 
obligations or requirements imposed on Franchised Business by such 
Service Agreements or any liabilities of Franchised Business associated 
with such Service Agreements, and as a consequence, Franchised Business 
and the customer must covenant never to commence any action or 
proceeding against Coverall, file any complaint with any regulatory 
authority concerning Coverall or otherwise assert any claim against 
Coverall or in any way seek to hold Coverall liable for any performance or 
non-performance under such Service Agreement.  

C. Cash Flow Protection Services. Coverall will advance (loan) to Franchised 
Business the amounts billed to Franchised Business's customers, whether or not 
those amounts have been collected. Advances will be made no earlier than the last 
calendar day of the first month following the month the services and supplies were 
provided (if the last calendar day of the month falls on a weekend and/or holiday, 
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payment will be made on the next business day). Advances attributable to billings 
for any one customer shall not exceed an amount equal to billings for sixty (60) 
days and shall not remain outstanding for a period exceeding ninety (90) days from 
invoice date. If advances remain uncollected from the customer at the end of ninety 
(90) days, Franchised Business shall repay Coverall the total amount billed to the 
customer that was advanced to Franchised Business. Coverall may recover the 
advance through Franchise Statement Deductions. However, if Franchised 
Business has insufficient Gross Dollar Volume to cover the advances, then 
Franchised Business must pay Coverall directly. 

17. FRANCHISED BUSINESS OPERATIONS. 

Franchised Business acknowledges that every component of the Coverall System is 
important to Coverall, its Franchised Business, and to the operation of the Franchised 
Business. Franchised Business shall comply with the entire Coverall System, including but 
not limited to the following: 

A. Franchised Business to Attend Training Course. Franchised Business owners 
and/or employees shall attend and successfully complete Initial Training, and any 
other Additional Training that Coverall may require from time to time, at 
Franchised Business’s sole cost and expense. Coverall may, in its sole discretion, 
agree in writing to allow a designee of Franchised Business to attend initial Training 
instead of Franchised Business owners. Franchised Business's employees may also 
attend training. 

B. Retraining of Franchised Business. If at any time any customer being serviced by 
Franchised Business cancels Franchised Business's services for faulty 
workmanship, lack of trustworthiness, or any other default under that customer's 
Service Agreement, Franchised Business may be required to attend retraining. 

In the event of retraining, the time within which Coverall must offer any remaining 
Initial Business or Additional Business will be suspended from the time Franchised 
Business is requested to attend retraining until Franchised Business completes 
retraining to Coverall's reasonable satisfaction. 

C. Staffing. Franchised Business is an independently owned and operated franchise of 
Coverall, and it and its owners and employees are neither an employees nor agents 
of Coverall. Franchised Business is fully responsible for all employment decisions 
and functions of the Franchised Business, including without limitation, hiring, 
firing, training, wage and hour compliance, compliance with federal immigration 
laws, record keeping, and supervision. 

D. Franchised Business to Use Coverall Approved Equipment, Chemicals and 
Cleaning Supplies. Franchised Business shall use only Coverall specified 
equipment, chemicals, and cleaning supplies in Franchised Business's Franchised 
Business. Specifications may change from time to time, and Franchised Business 
shall at Franchised Business's sole expense comply with any such changes. Coverall 
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will provide Franchised Business with specifications at Initial Training and the 
procedures to obtain approval on non- pre-approved equipment, chemicals, and 
supplies will be published and revised from time to time in the Policies and 
Procedures Manual. 

E. Identifying Franchised Business's Franchise. Franchised Business shall identify its 
Franchised Business as an independently owned and operated franchise of Coverall 
(in the manner Coverall specifies) and cause all persons involved in the operation 
of the Franchised Business to reflect that independent status with customers and 
other third parties. Franchised Business shall cause all persons involved in the 
operation of the Franchised Business to wear approved apparel. 

F. Insurance. Franchised Business shall acquire and maintain in effect the following 
insurance coverage in the following minimum amounts, or in the amounts that 
Coverall may require according to the Policies and Procedures Manual, as 
published and revised from time to time: 

(i) Janitorial bonding in an amount not less than $100,000; 

(ii) Commercial general liability insurance covering property damage, loss and 
personal injury in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence; 
$2,000,000 in the aggregate; and a $5,000,000 umbrella policy, which 
policy: i) shall identify the Franchised Business's business name as the 
named insured on the policy; ii) shall name Coverall as an additional insured 
on a primary and non-contributory basis and include a waiver of 
subrogation; iii) may not contain an exclusion for property in Franchised 
Business's care, custody, and control; iv) is strongly recommended that you 
obtain an endorsement that provides coverage for bodily injury, property 
damage, loss and personal injury resulting from building, cleaning and 
maintenance operation in a limit no less than the CGL required policy limits 
written on an occurrence basis; and v) umbrella shall follow form; 

(iii) Comprehensive automobile liability insurance, including personal injury 
and property damage insurance, in the minimum amount of $50,000, or the 
amount required by state law, whichever is higher; 

(iv) Workers' compensation insurance for Franchised Business and its 
employees for statutory limits (regardless of the requirements of state law, 
if Franchised Business has employees, utilizes subcontractors or is assisted 
by family members, Franchised Business shall purchase workers' 
compensation insurance); 

(v) If Franchised Business does not have workers' compensation covering the 
owner of the Franchised Business, then Franchised Business must obtain 
on-the-job accident and disability coverage for the owners of the Franchise 
having the following minimum coverage: accidental death ($20,000.00), 
accidental dismemberment ($20,000.00), paralysis ($20,000.00), temporary 
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total disability ($500.00 per week for 52 weeks), continuous disability 
($500.00 per week for 52 weeks), and accident medical expense (maximum 
benefit of $50,000.00 for 52 weeks); 

(vi) Employer's liability insurance in amounts no less than $100,000.00 each 
accident for Franchised Business and all of its employees; and 

(vii) Franchised Business shall comply with all state and federal laws to maintain 
a proper unemployment insurance account. 

All insurance policies shall name Coverall as an additional insured. Franchised 
Business shall provide Coverall with proof of the above insurance coverage prior 
to Franchised Business starting Franchise operations, and no later than ten (10) days 
after Franchised Business personnel complete Initial Training. If Franchised 
Business fails to obtain any or all insurance as specified herein and approved by 
Coverall, Coverall may (but shall not be required to), in addition to other remedies, 
purchase such insurance for the benefit of Franchised Business in which event 
Franchised Business agrees to promptly reimburse Coverall for the cost. In the 
event it becomes necessary for Franchised Business to reimburse Coverall for the 
costs of insurance, Franchised Business hereby authorizes Coverall to deduct the 
costs of the insurance, on a monthly basis, or as is otherwise necessary, from 
Franchised Business's Gross Dollar Volume. 

Franchised Business may choose to participate in Coverall's Business Protection 
Plan and other insurance programs that offer some of the insurance coverage 
required by this Paragraph. The cost of participating in Coverall's Business 
Protection Plan or other insurance programs is typically more expensive than 
similar insurance coverage available from other sources. Coverall earns a profit on 
its Business Protection Plan and other insurance programs. 

G. Franchised Business to Abide by Policies and Procedures. Franchised Business 
shall be free to conduct its business as it deems best in providing services to its 
customers. However, Franchised Business understands and acknowledges that 
implementation of the Coverall System is essential to the Coverall® brand in order 
to: 

(i) Develop and maintain quality operating standards; 

(ii) Increase the demand for the services sold by other Franchised businesses 
and by Coverall on behalf of all Franchised business operating Coverall 
Franchises; and 

(iii) Protect Coverall's brand, reputation and goodwill. 

Franchised Business may not implement any modification to the System without 
Coverall's prior written consent. Coverall shall have the right to incorporate any 
modification to the System developed by Franchised Business without 
compensation to Franchised Business. 
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H. Franchised Business to Abide by all laws. Franchised Business agrees to abide by 
all of the terms of this Agreement, the Policies and Procedures Manual and all 
federal, state and local laws, including but not limited to: 

(i) Franchised Business shall maintain good standing and obtain all applicable 
business licenses and/or registrations from all local or state agencies having 
jurisdiction over Franchised Business's Franchised Business, as required. 
Franchised Business shall furnish Coverall proof that Franchised Business 
obtained the applicable business licenses and registrations. 

(ii) Franchised Business shall be solely responsible to pay any taxes or other 
assessments due to any governmental agencies. 

(iii) Franchised Business is solely responsible for the payment of the employer's 
portion of social security and other taxes required to be withheld for 
Franchised Business's employees. 

(iv) Franchised Business shall also pay all taxes withheld from employee wages, 
and premiums for unemployment and worker's compensation insurance, as 
required by law. 

(v) Franchised Business shall provide Coverall, upon demand, proof of 
payment of all taxes due and compliance with all laws. 

I. Modification to the System. Franchised Business acknowledges and agrees that due 
to changes in competitive circumstances, presently unforeseen changes in the needs 
of the marketplace, changing customer demands, presently unforeseen 
technological innovations, and for protection of the Marks, the Coverall System 
must be subject to modification in order to best serve the interests of Coverall, 
Franchised Business, and the Coverall System. Accordingly, Franchised Business 
expressly acknowledges and agrees that Coverall may from time to time alter, 
modify, or change the components of the Coverall System, including, but not 
limited to, modifying, altering, varying, and adopting new products, services, 
equipment, techniques, methods, programs, standards, training, sales training, 
forms, and policies and procedures; adding to, deleting from, or modifying those 
programs and services which Franchised Business is authorized to offer; and 
changing, improving, or modifying the Marks. Franchised Business agrees, at 
Franchised Business's own expense, to adopt on a timely basis (but in no case later 
than sixty (60) days after notice) any such modifications to the Coverall System set 
forth in updates or changes to the Policies and Procedures Manual, or in other 
written communications, as if they were a part of the Coverall System at the time 
of the execution of this Agreement. Coverall shall notify Franchised Business in 
writing as to changes in the Policies and Procedures Manual or other changes in the 
operational structure of the Franchise. 

J. Coverall's Right to Audit. Franchised Business agrees to keep true and accurate 
business records and books of account which shall be open to examination by 
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Coverall or its duly authorized agent during regular business hours, and Coverall 
shall have the right to examine same, including other related records. Upon 
Coverall's request, Franchised Business shall prepare and/or produce to Coverall 
such records and books, and any other information, including without limitation 
financial statements and personal and business income tax returns, that will permit 
Coverall to verify that all fees due Coverall are fully, accurately, and truthfully 
accounted for, and that Franchised Business is not otherwise in breach of this 
Agreement. Franchised Business shall be responsible to reimburse Coverall for the 
cost of the audit if the audit reveals a violation of Paragraph 18A of this Agreement. 
Coverall's right to reimbursement shall be in addition to any other rights or remedies 
it has under this Agreement or otherwise.  

K. Computer Equipment. Franchised Business must have access to a cell phone and 
personal computer, or other hand-held device with Internet access, the ability to 
send and receive electronic mail and text messages, and full-web browsing 
capabilities. Franchised Business must provide Coverall with a cell phone number 
and electronic mail address. 

L. Websites and Social Media.  Coverall alone may establish, maintain, modify or 
discontinue all internet, worldwide web and electronic commerce activities 
pertaining to the Coverall System. Any websites or other modes of electric 
commerce that Coverall establishes or maintains may – in addition to advertising 
and promoting the products, programs or services available at Coverall businesses 
– also be devoted in part to Coverall’s offering Coverall franchises for sale and be 
utilized by Coverall to exploit the electronic commerce rights which Coverall 
reserves.  Franchised Business must not maintain its own website; otherwise 
maintain a presence or advertise on the internet or any other mode of electronic 
commerce in connection with the Franchise; establish a link to any website Coverall 
establishes at or from any other website or page; or, at any time establish any other 
website, electronic commerce presence or URL which in whole or in part 
incorporates the “Coverall” name or any confusingly similar name.  Coverall alone 
will be, and at all times will remain, the sole owner of the copyrights to all material 
which appears on any Coverall website Coverall establishes and maintains, 
including all material Franchised Business may furnish to Coverall.  Franchised 
Business may not maintain a social media page (including, without limitation 
Facebook, Instagram or Twitter) or otherwise maintain a presence or advertise on 
the internet, through social media without Coverall’s prior written approval (which 
may be withheld, conditioned or delayed for any or no reason).  Notwithstanding 
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, in the event Coverall approves any such 
presence, such presence must at all times conform to Coverall’s then-current 
standards, specifications and social media and electronic commerce policies, as 
Coverall may establish and modify from time to time.  

M. Franchised Business Service to Customers. All services provided to the customers 
of the Franchised Business shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner, 
satisfactory to the customers, and in accordance with Coverall standards. High 
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quality services are essential to the reputation and goodwill associated with the 
Coverall System and Marks. 

N. Voluntary Abandonment of Customer by Franchised Business and Limited 
Customer Guarantee. If Franchised Business desires to cease servicing a customer, 
Franchised Business shall give Coverall ten (10) days' written notice before ceasing 
service. In such event, any remaining guarantee for the Regular Service Volume 
shall be deemed to have been fulfilled, and Coverall shall have no obligation to 
replace the Regular Service Volume. Franchised Business shall remain liable to pay 
any outstanding balance due on any financing related to the customer(s) abandoned 
by Franchised Business. If, however, Coverall successfully transitions the 
abandoned customer to another Franchised Business and but for Franchised 
Business's abandonment, Franchised Business would otherwise qualify for a 
guarantee, Coverall may, in its sole discretion, replace the Regular Service Volume 
lost due to Franchised Business's abandonment of the customer applying the 
applicable Business Multiplier. In such instance, the replacement Regular Service 
Volume is not guaranteed. 

18. RESTRICTIONS. 

Franchised Business agrees and covenants as follows: 

A. In-Term Restrictions. During the Term of this Agreement and any Successor Term, 
Franchised Business shall not, without the prior written consent of Coverall, 
directly or indirectly, engage in, or acquire any financial interest in (either as an 
individual, principal, owner, agent, employee, partner, stockholder, or director) any 
business which performs commercial cleaning, Special Services, or related 
services, or engages in the franchising of commercial cleaning businesses, or any 
related business anywhere in the Area. Franchised Business shall not divert any 
customer of its Franchised Business to another entity, whether or not that entity is 
directly or indirectly controlled by Franchised Business unless Franchised Business 
obtains Coverall's prior written consent. 

B. Post-Term Restrictions. In the event this Agreement is assigned, terminated, or 
expires, for any reason whatsoever, Franchised Business shall not solicit, directly 
or indirectly, without the prior written consent of Coverall any customer 
repurchased by Coverall or by another Coverall Franchised Business for a period 
of eighteen (18) months from the date of repurchase. 

Should a customer serviced by Franchised Business prior to termination initiate 
contact with Franchised Business for the purpose of engaging Franchised Business 
to provide cleaning or related services to customer, unless Coverall has otherwise 
agreed in writing, Franchised Business shall decline to provide such services until 
such time as the term of this non-solicitation covenant has expired. 

C. Lesser Included Covenants Enforceable at Law. If all or any portion of the 
restrictive covenants set forth in this Section are held unreasonable, void, vague or 
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illegal by any court or agency with competent jurisdiction over the parties and 
subject matter, the court or agency is hereby empowered to revise and/or construe 
the covenants to fall within permissible legal limits, and should not by necessity 
invalidate the entire covenants. Franchised Business expressly agrees to be bound 
by any lesser covenants subsumed within the terms of this Section as if the resulting 
covenants were separately stated in and made a part of this Agreement. 

D. Confidentiality. Franchised Business agrees to use and permit the use of the 
Confidential Information (as defined below) solely in connection with the operation 
of the Franchise and during the Term. Franchised Business must only divulge such 
Confidential Information to Franchised Business's operational personnel as is 
necessary for each to perform his/her functions and then only on a "need to know" 
basis. Franchised Business agrees to take all necessary precautions to insure that 
these individuals maintain the Confidential Information in confidence and comply 
with the confidentiality provisions of this Agreement.  Franchise Business shall 
never (whether during the Term, or any time after the Agreement expires, transfers 
or terminates) divulge or use any of the Coverall System or Confidential 
Information for the benefit of Franchised Business, Franchised Business's owners 
or any third party (including any person, business entity or enterprise of any type 
or nature), and shall not directly or indirectly aid any such third party to imitate, 
duplicate or "reverse engineer" any of the Confidential Information.  Except as 
authorized in this Agreement, Franchised Business agrees never to copy, duplicate, 
record or otherwise reproduce any of the Confidential Information or portion or 
aspect of the Coverall System, in whole or in part; otherwise share it with any other 
third party individual or entity; store it in a computer or other electronic format; or, 
otherwise make it available to any third party by any other means whatsoever. Upon 
the expiration or termination of this Agreement, Franchised Business agrees to 
return to us such Confidential Information as Coverall requests (including customer 
lists and records; all training materials and other instructional content; financial and 
non-financial books and records; the Manuals; and, computer databases, software 
and manuals) which is then in Franchised Business's possession or, upon Coverall's 
request, destroy all or certain such Confidential Information and certify such 
destruction to Coverall. It is specifically understood that all customer lists or 
information adduced by Franchise is Coverall's property, not Franchised Business's 
property, and you shall never contend otherwise. 

"Confidential Information" means all information, knowledge, trade secrets or 
know-how utilized or embraced by the Coverall System or which otherwise 
concerns Franchised Business's or Coverall's systems of operation, programs, 
services, products, customers, practices, materials, books, records, manuals, 
computer files, databases or software. Confidential Information includes (without 
limitation): all elements of the Coverall System and all products, services, 
equipment, technologies, policies, standards, requirements, criteria and procedures 
that now or in the future are a part of the Coverall System; the Manuals; all 
specifications, sources of supply, all procedures, systems, techniques and activities 
employed by Coverall or by Franchised Business in the offer and sale of products 
and/or services at or from the Franchise; all pricing paradigms established by 
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Coverall or by Franchised Business; all of Coverall's or Franchised Business's 
sources (or prospective sources) of supply and all information pertaining to same 
(including wholesale pricing structures, the contents of sourcing agreements and 
the identity of suppliers); all information pertaining to Coverall advertising, 
marketing, promotion and merchandising campaigns, activities, materials, 
specifications and procedures; all customer lists and records generated and/or 
otherwise maintained by Franchised Business's Franchise; Coverall's training and 
other instructional programs and materials; all elements of Coverall's recommended 
staffing, staff training and staff certification policies and procedures; all 
communications between the parties (including the financial and other reports 
submit to Coverall under this Agreement); all other systems and methods of 
operations which Coverall employs now or in the future; and, all other information, 
knowledge and know-how which either Coverall or its affiliates, now or in the 
future, designate as confidential. 

E. License and Goodwill Restrictions. Franchised Business shall acquire no right to 
use, or to license the use of, any name, Mark, or other intellectual property right 
granted or to be granted herein, except in connection with the operation of the 
Franchised Business in accordance with and during the Term of this Agreement. In 
all instances Franchised Business's use of the Marks must comply with Coverall's 
directions, limitations, specifications and authorized prescribed uses. Franchised 
Business will assert and will in the future assert no claim to any goodwill, reputation 
or ownership of the Marks by virtue of Franchised Business's licensed use of the 
Marks, or for any other reason. 

Franchised Business has no right, title or interest in or to Coverall's goodwill. 
Goodwill inures solely to the benefit of Coverall. Franchised Business agrees that 
it will not do or permit any act or thing to be done in derogation of any of Coverall's 
or Coverall's affiliates rights in connection with the Marks, either during or after 
the term of this Agreement. Further, Franchised Business agrees: (i) not to apply 
for or obtain any trademark or service mark registration of any of the Marks or any 
confusingly similar marks in Franchised Business's own name; (ii) to use the Marks 
only for the uses and in the manner licensed under this Agreement and as provided 
in this Agreement; (iii) under no circumstance will Franchised Business incorporate 
any of the Marks, any portion thereof or any name or mark derivative of or similar 
to the Marks, in Franchised Business's entity's name; (iv) it may never use the 
Marks in connection with any other business except for the Franchise; (v) it will 
not, during or after the term of this Agreement, impair the goodwill associated with 
the Marks or in any way dispute or impugn the validity of the Marks, Coverall's or 
Coverall's affiliates' rights to the Marks, or the rights of other Coverall franchisees 
or other third parties to whom Coverall may have licensed the Marks. 

Franchised Business acknowledges that Coverall's rights in the Marks are not 
limited to the specific presentation or configuration of any of them, but rather 
extend to all combinations and displays of the words and/or design elements thereof 
and extend to all translations of them in any language, and agrees that Coverall's 
rights in and to the Marks are not limited to such rights as may be conferred by 



Exhibit A.1 to 
Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document _________ / _________ 

©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. Page 21 of 63 Initial Initial 
74065823;4 

registrations thereof or by applications for registrations but, instead, include 
extensive common law and other rights in the Marks vested in us as a result of their 
use by Coverall or Coverall's affiliates and other authorized parties. 

If Franchised Business receives notice, is informed or learns of any claim, suit or 
demand against Franchise Business on account of any alleged infringement, unfair 
competition, or similar matter relating to the use of the Marks or any of Coverall’s 
copyrights (each, a "claim"), or of unauthorized use of or claims of rights to a 
service mark identical to or confusingly similar to any Mark Coverall licenses to 
Franchised Business, Franchise Business must promptly notify Coverall. Coverall 
reserves the sole right to institute administrative proceedings and/or litigation 
regarding the Marks.  Coverall is not obligated to protect Franchised Businesses’ 
rights to use the Marks, or to protect Franchised Business against claims of 
infringement or unfair competition regarding such use. Coverall may in its sole 
discretion choose to defend or prosecute an action related to its Marks but Coverall 
do not agree to protect Franchised Business against claims of infringement or unfair 
competition arising out of Franchised Business’ use of the Marks. Coverall is not 
obligated to participate in Franchised Business’ defense or to indemnify Franchised 
Business in the event that a third party sues Franchised Business because of its  use 
of the Marks. However, Coverall may in its sole discretion choose to do so. 

Franchised Business must never identify itself as an agent or an employee of 
Coverall. Franchised Business must conspicuously identify itself and the Franchise 
it operates in all dealings with customers, contractors, suppliers, public officials 
and members of the public, and in all advertising, promotion and marketing related 
to its Franchise, as Coverall’s independently owned and operated franchisee. 

19. FRANCHISED BUSINESS IS AN INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. 

Franchised Business is and shall remain at all times a completely independent contractor 
in business for itself operating a commercial cleaning Franchised, and shall have no right 
or interest in or authority over Coverall, the Coverall System, or any of Coverall's goodwill, 
property or business. Franchised Business hereby acknowledges that it has no authority to 
sign on behalf of Coverall any written agreement. 

A. Neither Franchised Business, nor Franchised Business's owners or employees, are 
employees of Coverall. Neither Coverall nor Franchised Business is the principal, 
agent, employer, employee, partner, officer, director, or owner of the other. 
Franchised Business shall always hold itself out as an independent contractor in its 
dealings and communications with the public. 

B. Franchised Business acknowledges and agrees that Franchised Business, its owners 
and its employees are not employees of Coverall; that Franchised Business 
intended to buy a Franchised business; and that Franchised Business does not intend 
that it or its owners or employees are to become employees of Coverall. Franchisee 
hereby further irrevocably affirms, attests and covenants its understanding that 
Franchised Business's employees are employed exclusively by Franchised Business 
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and in no fashion is any such employee either employed, jointly employed or co-
employed by Coverall.  Franchised Business further affirms and attests that each of 
its employees is under the exclusive dominion and control of Franchised Business 
and never under the direct or indirect control of Coverall in any fashion whatsoever.  
Franchised Business alone hires each of its employees; sets their schedules; 
establishes their compensation rates; and, pays all salaries, benefits and 
employment-related liabilities (workers' compensation insurance premiums/payroll 
taxes/Social Security contributions/Affordable Care Act 
contributions/unemployment insurance premiums).  Franchised Business alone has 
the ability to discipline or terminate its employees to the exclusion of Coverall, 
which has no such authority or ability.  Franchised Business also affirms and attests 
that any recommendations it may receive from Coverall regarding salaries, hourly 
wages or other compensation for employees are recommendations only, designed 
to assist it to efficiently operate its Franchise, and that Franchised Business is 
entirely free to disregard Coverall's recommendations regarding such employee 
compensation. Moreover, Franchised Business affirms and attests that any training 
provided by Coverall for Franchised Business's employees is geared to impart to 
those employees, with ultimate authority, the various procedures, protocols, 
systems and operations of a Franchise and in no fashion reflects any employment 
relationship between Coverall and such employees.  Finally, should it ever be 
asserted that Coverall is the employer, joint employer or co-employer of Franchised 
Business or any of Franchised Business's employees in any private or government 
investigation, action, proceeding, arbitration or other setting, Franchised Business 
irrevocably agrees to assist Coverall in defending said allegation, including (if 
necessary) appearing at any venue requested by Coverall to testify on Coverall's 
behalf (and, as may be necessary, submitting itself to depositions, other 
appearances and/or preparing affidavits dismissive of any allegation that Coverall 
is the employer, joint employer or co-employer of Franchised Business or any of 
Franchised Business's employees).  To the extent Coverall is the only named party 
in any such investigation, action, proceeding, arbitration or other setting to the 
exclusion of Franchised Business, then should any such appearance by Franchised 
Business be required or requested by Coverall will recompense Franchised 
Business the reasonable costs associated with Franchised Business appearing at any 
such venue (including travel, lodging, meals and per diem salary).   

Franchised Business is the owner of a Franchised Business, a business owner in all 
respects, and its owners and employees are not entitled to participate in any benefits 
provided by Coverall to those whom Coverall classifies as its employees; and 
Franchised Business is not covered by either Coverall's workers' compensation 
insurance or unemployment compensation. Franchised Business must purchase this 
insurance on its own for the benefit of employees of its Franchised Business. 
Should any state or federal agency or court determine that Franchised Business falls 
within the definition of an employee of Coverall under any state or federal statute, 
Coverall does not intend to provide Franchised Business retroactively or thereafter 
with any benefits (including but not limited to, vacation pay, overtime, rest and 
meal breaks, healthcare benefits, worker's compensation, or unemployment 
compensation) that it may provide to those whom Coverall classifies as employees, 
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unless obligated by law to do so. Coverall may, in its sole discretion, terminate or 
modify this Agreement upon any such determination by a state or federal agency 
or court that Franchised Business is an employee of Coverall. 

20. INDEMNIFICATION. 

Franchised Business shall be solely responsible for its business operations, including but 
not limited to, the services and results of services performed by Franchised Business and 
its employees for Franchised Business's customers, and shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless Coverall and its parent companies, subsidiaries, and affiliates, and the 
stockholders, owners, directors, officers, agents, and employees of each, and all other 
Coverall Franchised businesses (collectively, "Coverall Indemnitees") from any and all 
expenses, fines, suits, proceedings, claims, losses, damages, liabilities or actions of any 
kind or nature (including, but not limited to, costs and attorneys' fees) or any settlement of 
the foregoing, which actually or allegedly, directly or indirectly, arises out of, is based 
upon, is a result of or is related in any way to any element of Franchised Business's 
establishment and operation of the Franchise, including (without limitation) any personal 
injury, death or property damage suffered by any customer, visitor, operator, employee or 
guest of the Franchise; any failure to comply with or violation of any laws, rules and 
regulations; any claims that Coverall is the employer, joint-employer or co-employer of 
Franchised Business or any of Franchised Business's owners, directors, managers, 
shareholders, members, agents or employees; any crimes committed on or near any of the 
premises, facilities of Franchised Business or vehicles used by Franchised Business; all 
acts, errors, neglects or omissions engaged in by Franchised Business, the owners, officers, 
directors, management, employees, agent, servants, contractors, partners, proprietors, 
affiliates or representatives of Franchised Business (or any third party acting on Franchised 
Business's behalf or at Franchised Business's direction), whether in connection with the 
Franchised Business or otherwise, including (without limitation) any property damage, 
injury or death suffered or caused by any vehicle serving Franchised Business; and, any 
action by any customer of Franchised Business or any other facility of Franchised Business.  
For avoidance of doubt, Franchised Business’s indemnification obligation applies to suits, 
proceedings, claims, losses, damages, liabilities or actions brought by Franchised Business 
itself or any of its owners, directors, managers, shareholders, members, agents or 
employees.  

Franchised Business further agrees that if any Coverall Indemnitee is made a party to a 
lawsuit or other legal action in connection with the activities of Franchised Business, then 
Coverall may tender the defense and/or prosecution of the case to Franchised Business, 
which shall be responsible for diligently pursuing the case or action at Franchised 
Business's expense, or Coverall may hire counsel directly to protect its interests and bill 
Franchised Business for all costs and attorneys' fees incurred, and Franchised Business 
shall promptly reimburse Coverall costs and expenses incurred, regardless of any actions, 
activity or defense undertaken by Coverall or the subsequent success or failure of the 
actions, activity or defense.  If Franchised Business participates in Coverall's Business 
Protection Plan, Coverall will waive certain of its contractual indemnification rights against 
Franchised Business, except for the applicable deductibles under the Coverall Business 
Protection Plan. 



Exhibit A.1 to 
Coverall Franchise Disclosure Document _________ / _________ 

©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. Page 24 of 63 Initial Initial 
74065823;4 

Franchised Business agrees to give Coverall written notice of any such action, suit, 
proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or investigation that could be the basis for a claim for 
indemnification by any Coverall Indemnitee within three (3) days of Franchised Business's 
actual or constructive knowledge of it. At Franchised Business's expense and risk, Coverall 
may elect to assume (but under no circumstance will Coverall be obligated to undertake) 
the defense and/or settlement of the action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or 
investigation. However, Coverall will seek Franchised Business's advice and counsel and 
keep Franchised Business informed with regard to the defense or contemplated settlements. 
Coverall's undertaking of defense and/or settlement will in no way diminish Franchised 
Business's obligation to indemnify Coverall and the other Coverall Indemnitees and to hold 
Coverall and them harmless. 

Coverall will have the right, at any time Coverall considers appropriate, to offer, order, 
consent or agree to settlements or take any other remedial or corrective actions Coverall 
considers expedient with respect to the action, suit, proceeding, claim, demand, inquiry or 
investigation if, in Coverall's sole judgment, there are reasonable grounds to do so. Under 
no circumstance will Coverall or the other Indemnitees be required to seek recovery from 
third parties or otherwise mitigate our or their losses to maintain a claim against Franchised 
Business. Franchised Business agrees that any failure to pursue recovery from third parties 
or mitigate loss will in no way reduce the amounts recoverable by Coverall or the other 
Coverall Indemnitees from Franchised Business. The indemnification obligations of this 
Section will survive the expiration or sooner termination of this Agreement. 

21. ASSIGNMENT. 

A. Coverall's Right to Assign the Franchise Agreement. Coverall may, without the 
consent of Franchised Business, assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise, 
this Agreement, or Coverall's rights and duties under this Agreement, to any other 
entity or third party, whether affiliated with or independent of Coverall. Coverall 
may also assign, or transfer by operation of law or otherwise, to any other entity or 
third party, whether affiliated with or independent of Coverall, any promissory note 
or other negotiable instrument of Franchised Business, which is payable to 
Coverall, either in conjunction with or independent of this Agreement. Coverall's 
rights under this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any assignee or legal 
successor to Coverall. 

B. Franchised Business's Right to Assign the Franchise or Franchise Agreement. 
Except as stated below, neither Franchised Business nor any owner of Franchised 
Business may transfer or assign any interest in this Agreement or the Coverall 
Franchise. Franchised Business may, with the written consent of Coverall obtained 
after thirty (30) days written notice to Coverall, which consent will not be 
unreasonably withheld, transfer or assign all or part of its interest in this Agreement 
or the Coverall Franchise provided that: 

(i) Franchised Business provides Coverall a copy of any written agreements 
relating to the proposed assignment, and any additional information which 
Coverall may require in order to determine whether it will grant its consent 
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to the proposed assignment, including but not limited to, background 
investigations of personnel of the assignee(s); 

(ii) If there is a proposed assignment of 100% of Franchised Business's interest 
in this Agreement, the assignee is itself a corporation or limited liability 
company and agrees to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement; 

(iii) Franchised Business pays Coverall the then current Transfer Fee as 
published in the Policies and Procedures Manual; 

(iv) Franchised Business pays to Coverall all amounts due by Franchised 
Business to Coverall, or any assignee, subject to Coverall's consent, 
assumes all such obligations owed to Coverall; 

(v) Assignee executes confidentiality and non-solicitation agreements in 
Coverall's favor with terms and conditions the same as the confidentiality 
and non-solicitation covenants in this Agreement; 

(vi) The assignee is capable of immediate compliance with all laws, regulations, 
and ordinances governing the operation of a commercial cleaning business; 

(vii) Franchised Business executes a general release, in a form satisfactory to 
Coverall, of any and all known or unknown claims against Coverall and its 
affiliates and their owners, officers, directors, employees, and agents; and 

(viii) Any owner associated with any assignee agrees to be bound by the guaranty 
provisions of this Agreement and execute Coverall's then standard Guaranty 
Agreement to personally guaranty the obligations of Franchised Business to 
Coverall and execute Coverall's then standard Confidentiality Agreement. 

If, at the time of an approved assignment of this Agreement by Franchised Business, 
there is Initial Business or Additional Business to which Franchised Business ("the 
assignor") is entitled, which Coverall has not yet provided, this Initial or Additional 
Business shall be provided by Coverall to the assignee within a reasonable period 
of time after the assignee successfully completes the initial Training program. 

If at the time of an assignment of this Agreement, Franchised Business is servicing 
customers and those customers will be transferred to an assignee, the owners or 
employees of assignee shall, within forty-five (45) days from the date of the 
assignment, complete to Coverall's satisfaction Initial Training. Until such 
personnel of assignee complete the Initial Training to Coverall's satisfaction, the 
assignor Franchised Business shall remain responsible for assignor Franchised 
Business's customers, including but not limited to, supervising the assignee and/or 
assignee's employees' servicing of the customers. If the assignee personnel do not 
complete training to Coverall's satisfaction within forty-five (45) days, or assignor 
Franchised Business does not provide the required supervision, Coverall may at the 
end of such forty-five (45) day period terminate the assignee Franchise Agreement 
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and Coverall will have no obligation to replace the Regular Service Volume that 
assignee received from assignor Franchised Business. Assignee's Franchise 
Agreement may be terminated prior to the expiration of forty-five (45) days if the 
assignee is in default under the terms of the Franchise Agreement. 

Coverall may, in Coverall's sole discretion, withhold written consent of any 
proposed assignment in the event that Franchised Business is in default under the 
terms of this or any other agreement with Coverall until default is cured. 

C. Franchised Business's Right to Transfer Customers or Business Owed. Franchised 
Business must obtain Coverall's written consent before transferring any customer 
or Business Owed to another Franchised Business, which consent will not be 
unreasonably withheld. Transfer Fees equal to ten percent (10%) of the Regular 
Service Volume attributable to each transferred customer, not to exceed $500 each, 
and ten percent (10%) of the Business Owed transferred will be assessed. 

22. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION. 

A. Coverall may terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of written notice 
of termination to Franchised Business, if: 

(i) Franchised Business (or any of its owners) has made or makes any material 
misrepresentation or omission in its franchise application or in acquiring the 
Franchised Business; 

(ii) Franchised Business becomes insolvent, admits in writing the inability to 
pay Franchised Business's monetary obligations as they mature, is 
adjudicated bankrupt, voluntarily files a petition for liquidation or 
reorganization under any provision of the United States Bankruptcy Code, 
makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or takes any other action 
pursuant to any federal or state insolvency statute; 

(iii) Franchised Business makes an unauthorized assignment of this Agreement 
or the Franchise; 

(iv) Franchised Business (or any of its owners) engages in any dishonest, 
immoral, unethical or illegal conduct which might adversely affect the 
reputation of the Franchised Business or Coverall or the goodwill associated 
with the Marks; 

(v) In the event of the death or disability of all of Franchised Business's owners, 
this Agreement or ownership interest in the Franchise has not been assigned 
in accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 21 of this Agreement; or 

(vi) Franchised Business fails, on three (3) or more separate occasions within 
any twelve (12) month period, to comply with the terms of this Agreement, 
any other agreement between Franchised Business and Coverall, or any 
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Service Agreement, whether or not it corrects the failure after receipt of 
written notice. 

(vii) Franchised Business fails to pay any taxes due and owing by Franchised 
Business (including employee taxes) when due. 

(viii) Franchised Business does not use the Marks solely in the manner and for 
the purposes directed by Coverall in this Agreement, the Manuals or 
otherwise. 

(ix) Franchised Business does not indemnify Coverall as required by this 
Agreement. 

(x) By act or omission, Franchised Business permits a continued violation in 
connection with the operation of the Franchised Business of any law, 
ordinance, rule or regulation of a governmental agency, in the absence of a 
good faith dispute over its application or legality and without promptly 
resorting to an appropriate administrative or judicial forum for relief. 

(xi) Franchised Business fails to obtain or maintain any required permit, 
certificate or other governmental approval required either by this 
Agreement or applicable law, rule or regulation, or fails to operate as a 
business entity and maintain such business entity in good standing at all 
times throughout the term of this Agreement. 

(xii) Franchised Business employs any individual who is not eligible for 
employment in the United States under any federal, state, local or other law, 
rule or regulation. 

(xiii) Franchised Business or any owner, member, shareholder, director or 
manager (as applicable) of Franchised Business is convicted of a felony, 
fraud, crime involving moral turpitude, or any other crime or offense which 
Coverall reasonably believes is related to Franchised Business's operation 
of the Franchise, or is likely to have an adverse effect on the System, the 
Marks, the goodwill associated with the Marks or Coverall's interest in the 
System or Marks. 

(xiv) Franchised Business or any owner or principal of Franchised Business 
purports to transfer any rights or obligations under this Agreement, any 
interest in Franchised Business or the Franchise to any third party in 
violation of the terms of this Agreement. 

(xv) Franchised Business does not comply with the covenant not to compete 
during the term of this Agreement; violate the restrictions pertaining to the 
use of Confidential Information contained in this Agreement; or, does not 
obtain the execution of the additional covenants required by this 
Agreement. 
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(xvi) Franchised Business takes, withholds, misdirects or appropriates for its own 
use any funds withheld from its employees' wages which should have been 
set aside for the Franchise's employee taxes, FICA, insurance or benefits; 
wrongfully take or appropriate for Franchised Business's own use Coverall's 
property or funds; systemically fail to deal fairly and honestly with 
Franchised Business's employees, customers or suppliers; or knowingly 
permits or, having discovered the facts, fails to take any action against or to 
discharge any agent, servant or employee who has embezzled Coverall's 
funds or property or that of any customers or others. 

(xvii) Franchised Business makes a willful misrepresentation or does not make a 
material disclosure required by any governmental authority regarding any 
matter involving or affecting the operations of the Franchise. 

(xviii) Franchised Business interferes or attempts to interfere with Coverall's 
contractual relations with other franchisees, customers, employees, 
advertising agencies or any third parties. 

(xix) Franchised Business operates its Franchise in a fashion that, in Coverall's 
sole judgment, in any way jeopardizes the life, health or safety of the general 
public, Franchised Business's customers and/or Franchised Business's 
employees. If Franchised Business does so, then not only may Coverall 
terminate this Agreement upon notice, but Franchised Business agrees that 
Coverall may either beforehand or concurrently direct Franchised Business 
to immediately cease operations of its Franchise; Franchised Business shall 
immediately comply with such direction (which may be given orally or in 
writing); and, Franchised Business shall hold Coverall and the Coverall 
Indemnitees harmless from and against any claims whatsoever relating to 
our direction to cease operations of the Franchise. 

(xx) Franchised Business makes any use of Coverall's Confidential Information 
and/or Marks not specifically authorized by this Agreement or Manuals, or 
Franchised Business directly or indirectly utilizes or devotes same for the 
benefit of any individual or entity other than Franchise. 

(xxi) Franchised Business interferes or attempts to interfere with Franchised 
Business's ability or right to franchise or license others to use and employ 
the System and/or Marks. 

(xxii) Franchised Business engages in any act or conduct, or fail to engage in any 
act or conduct, which under this Agreement specifically authorizes Coverall 
to terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice to Franchised 
Business. 

(xxiii) Franchised Business fails a background check.  
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B. Coverall may terminate this Agreement, effective upon delivery of written notice 
of termination to Franchised Business, if Franchised Business fails to cure any of 
the following defaults within ten (10) days after delivery of written notice of such 
default: 

(i) Franchised Business breaches this Agreement, any other agreement 
between Franchised Business and Coverall, or any Service Agreement; or 

(ii) Franchised Business abandons the Franchised Business by failing to 
actively operate the Franchised Business for a period of ninety (90) 
consecutive days. 

C. Coverall may terminate this Agreement, effective thirty (30) days after delivery of 
written notice of termination to Franchised Business (unless emergent 
circumstances make a shorter notice period necessary in Coverall's reasonable 
business judgment), in the event there is a change in applicable law that, in 
Coverall's reasonable business judgment, results or threatens to result in Coverall 
being deemed the employer, joint employer, co-employer or to have an employment 
(rather than independent contractor) relationship with Franchised Business or its 
employees.  For the avoidance of doubt, if Coverall exercises this right, Coverall 
shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement without penalty or payment of 
compensation or damages and without the need to obtain the authorization of any 
third party of any arbitral, judicial or administrative resolution. 

D. Any continuance of business relations between Franchised Business and Coverall 
after the termination or expiration of this Agreement will not constitute, and may 
not be construed as, a reinstatement, renewal, extension or continuation of this 
Agreement unless Franchised Business and an authorized officer of Coverall agree 
in writing to any such renewal, extension or continuation. 

E. If any valid, applicable law or regulation of a competent governmental authority 
with jurisdiction over this Agreement or the parties to this Agreement limits 
Coverall's rights to terminate this Agreement or requires longer notice or cure 
periods than those set forth above, then this Agreement will be considered modified 
to conform to the minimum notice, cure periods or restrictions upon termination 
required by such laws and regulations. Coverall will not, however, be precluded 
from contesting the validity, enforceability or application of the laws or regulations 
in any action, proceeding, hearing or dispute relating to this Agreement or the 
termination of this Agreement. 

F. Franchised Business's failure to timely cure any breach of its obligation to make 
payments of Royalties, Support Fees or any other monies due and owing to Coverall 
or Coverall's affiliates under this Agreement, or to timely cure any other material 
breach of this Agreement committed by Franchised Business, in either instance 
following our notice to Franchised Business that Franchised Business has 
committed a breach of this Agreement and granting Franchised Business an 
opportunity to cure said breach,  will be irrevocably deemed to constitute 
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Franchised Business's unilateral rejection and termination of this Agreement and 
all related agreements between Franchised Business and Coverall or Coverall's 
affiliates, notwithstanding that a formal notice of such termination(s) ultimately 
issues from Coverall, and Franchised Business shall never contend or complain 
otherwise. 

23. PROCEDURES AFTER EXPIRATION, TERMINATION OR ASSIGNMENT. 

Upon expiration, termination for any reason, or assignment of this Agreement, all 
obligations of the parties which survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement 
shall continue in full force and effect. Franchised Business shall cease to operate a Coverall 
Franchise and shall do all of the following acts and things, each of which shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement: 

A. Immediately pay to Coverall all monies due through the date of expiration, 
termination, or assignment, and cease doing business as a Coverall Franchised 
Business. Any amounts due Coverall at or after Franchised Business's termination 
may be offset against any amounts collected by Coverall on Franchised Business's 
behalf. 

B. Immediately and permanently discontinue the use of the Coverall System and all 
Coverall Marks, or any other name or designation indicating or tending to indicate 
that Franchised Business is or ever was an authorized Coverall Franchised 
Business. Furthermore, Franchised Business shall not promote or advertise the fact 
that Franchised Business was formerly a Franchised Business or affiliate of 
Coverall. 

C. Except in the case of an assignment of this Agreement, promptly surrender to 
Coverall all documents, including but not limited to, the Coverall Manuals, 
marketing material, letterhead, and business forms bearing the Coverall Marks, or 
any designation indicating or tending to indicate that Franchised Business is or was 
an authorized Coverall Franchised Business. 

D. Immediately and permanently discontinue all advertising for the Franchise. 

E. Maintain all books, records, and reports required by Coverall pursuant to Paragraph 
17J for a period of not less than three (3) years after the termination and allow 
Coverall to perform a final audit of Franchised Business's books and records during 
normal business hours within the three (3) year period. 

F. Immediately and permanently discontinue wearing any apparel indicating or 
tending to indicate that the Franchise Business is or was an authorized Coverall 
Franchise, and promptly surrender to Coverall all apparel bearing a Coverall Mark. 

G. If Coverall terminates this Agreement, (i) Coverall may purchase some or all of 
Franchised Business's customers and/or Business Owed or (ii) if Coverall does not 
exercise the foregoing right, Franchised Business may with Coverall's consent, 
which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, sell its customers and/or 
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Business Owed to another Coverall Franchised Business. Notwithstanding 
anything in the foregoing to the contrary, Customers and Business Owed that 
Franchised Business has not paid for in full are not eligible for either sale to another 
Franchised Business or purchase by Coverall; such customers shall revert to 
Coverall. The amount due to Franchised Business upon Coverall's purchase of 
Franchised Business's customers and/or Business Owed will first be applied to 
satisfy any monetary obligations owed by Franchised Business to Coverall; and the 
balance, if any, may, in Coverall's sole discretion, be paid to Franchised Business 
in two (2) or more installments. As a condition precedent to Franchised Business's 
receipt of payment from Coverall, Franchised Business shall assist with the 
transition of any customers to another Franchised Business; and Franchised 
Business may be required to execute an asset purchase agreement, which shall 
contain, among other provisions, a general release in favor of Coverall. Coverall 
will pay Franchised Business an amount equal to the Multiplier applicable to such 
purchases as provided in the Policies and Procedures Manual times the Regular 
Service Volume purchased. 

H. Upon expiration of the Term of this Agreement: 

(i) Coverall shall have an option to purchase some or all of Franchised 
Business's customers and Business Owed, if any, excluding any 
promotional (free) Business Owed, which option shall be exercisable in 
Coverall's sole discretion. Customers and Business Owed that Franchised 
Business has not paid for in full are not eligible for purchase by Coverall; 
such customers shall revert to Coverall. The option price shall be the 
Multiple applicable to such purchases as provided in the Policies and 
Procedures Manual times the Regular Service Volume attributable to those 
customers. The amount due upon Coverall's purchase of Franchised 
Business's customers will first be applied to satisfy any monetary 
obligations owed by Franchised Business to Coverall; and the balance, if 
any, may, in Coverall's sole discretion, be paid to Franchised Business in 
two (2) or more installments. As a condition precedent to Franchised 
Business's receipt of payment from Coverall, Franchised Business shall 
assist with the transition of any customers to another Franchised Business; 
and Franchised Business may be required to execute an asset purchase 
agreement, which shall contain, among other provisions, a general release 
in favor of Coverall. 

(ii) If Coverall declines to exercise its option and Franchised Business is in 
good standing, not in default under any provision of this Agreement, and 
has fully paid its obligations to Coverall: 

a) Franchised Business may, with the exception of National Account 
Customers, retain its then-existing fully paid customers, and 
Coverall will waive those provisions of Paragraph 18B that might 
be construed to prevent Franchised Business from servicing those 
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customers. All other provisions of Paragraph 18B shall remain in 
full force and effect. 

b) Coverall may purchase Franchised Business's fully paid Business 
Owed, if any, excluding any promotional (free) Business Owed, at 
the Multiple applicable to such purchases as provided in the Policies 
and Procedures Manual times the Business Owed as reflected on 
Coverall's books and records. 

c) The purchase price will first be applied to satisfy any monetary 
obligations owed by Franchised Business to Coverall; and the 
balance, if any, will be paid to Franchised Business. 

d) Customers for which Franchised Business has not paid in full will 
revert to Coverall; and any unpaid Business Owed is not eligible for 
purchase by Coverall. 

e) Franchised Business shall execute a general release in favor of 
Coverall. 

24. INFORMAL DISPUTE RESOLUTION/MEDIATION. 

If a dispute arises between Coverall and Franchised Business and if the dispute is not 
resolved or settled, Coverall and Franchised Business agree that prior to filing any 
proceeding, whether in arbitration or (if permissible) in court, they will attempt, in good 
faith, to settle the dispute by non-binding mediation or as otherwise agreed upon in writing 
by the parties. The mediation shall take place in the Area in which Franchised Business 
conducts its business and shall be administered by a neutral mediator agreed upon by the 
parties. In the event Coverall and Franchised Business are unable to agree upon a mediator 
within 15 days of the date on which either party requests mediation of a matter, the 
mediator shall be designated by JAMS (formally “Judicial Arbitration and Mediation 
Services”). The costs of the mediation shall be shared equally by the parties unless 
otherwise agreed in writing. 

25. DISPUTE RESOLUTION/ARBITRATION. 

A. Arbitration. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all controversies, 
disputes or claims between Coverall, its owners, officers, directors, agents and/or 
employees in their respective capacities (each, a “Coverall Party”) and Franchised 
Business (Franchised Business's owners, officers, directors, agents and/or 
employees and/or any guarantors of this Agreement (the “Franchised Party,” 
collectively with the Coverall Party, the “arbitration Parties”) arising out of or 
related to this Agreement or the validity of this Agreement or any provision thereof 
(including this arbitration agreement, the validity and scope of which is to be 
determined by an arbitrator, not a court), any related agreement between the 
Arbitration Parties or the validity thereof, the relationship of the Arbitration Parties 
hereunder or under any related agreement between the Arbitration Parties, and/or 
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any specification, standard or operating procedure of Coverall, including those set 
forth in the Policies and Procedures Manual, which controversies, disputes or 
claims are not resolved in accordance with Paragraph 25, shall be submitted 
promptly for binding arbitration. The arbitration shall take place in the Area in 
which Franchised Business conducts its business. Arbitration shall be subject to the 
Federal Arbitration Act and not any state arbitration law and, except as otherwise 
provided in this Agreement or agreed upon by the parties in writing, shall be 
adjudicated by a neutral appointed JAMS. The arbitration shall take place pursuant 
to the then current JAMS comprehensive arbitration rules, or as the Arbitration 
Parties may mutually agree in writing. Pursuant to JAMS Comprehensive 
Arbitration Rule 34, the Arbitration Parties hereby agree to the JAMS Optional 
Arbitration Appeal Procedure. 

B. The Arbitration Parties agree that arbitration shall be conducted on an individual 
and not on a class wide or collective basis, that only Coverall Parties and Franchised 
Parties may be parties to any arbitration proceeding described in this Paragraph 
25B, and that no such arbitration between the Arbitration Parties shall be 
consolidated with any other proceeding between Coverall and any other Franchised 
Business or third party. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary 
in this Agreement, if any court or arbitrator determines that all or any part of this 
Paragraph 25B is unenforceable with respect to a dispute that otherwise would be 
subject to arbitration under this Paragraph, then the Arbitration Parties agree that 
this arbitration clause shall not apply to that dispute and that such dispute shall be 
resolved in a judicial proceeding. For clarity, this Paragraph is intended to be a class 
preclusion clause within the meaning of JAMS Class Action Procedures Rule 1(a). 

C. The parties agree that in connection with any arbitration proceeding, each party 
must submit or file any compulsory counterclaim (as defined by the Federal Rules 
of Civil Procedure) within thirty (30) days of the date of the submission or filing of 
the claim to which it relates or such counterclaim shall be forever barred. A decision 
by an arbitrator (including any finding of fact and/or conclusion of law) against 
either Arbitration Party shall be confidential unless otherwise required to be 
disclosed by law and may not be collaterally used against either of them in existing 
or subsequent litigation or arbitration involving any third party. The Arbitration 
Parties also agree to be bound by, and the arbitrator shall be bound to apply, the 
provisions of any applicable limitation on the period of time in which claims must 
be brought, including any set forth in this Agreement. Further, the Arbitration 
Parties agree that discovery may be conducted in accordance with the provisions of 
the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure; provided, however, that neither Arbitration 
Party shall be required to make the initial disclosures required under Rule 26(a)(1) 
of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. 

D. The decision of the arbitrator shall be conclusive and binding upon all parties, and 
judgment upon the award may be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. 
The arbitrator shall not have the authority to declare any mark generic or otherwise 
invalid. The Arbitration Parties waive to the fullest extent permitted by law any 
right or claim for any punitive, exemplary, incidental, indirect, special, 
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consequential or other similar damages in any action or proceeding whatsoever 
between the parties to this Agreement and/or any of their affiliates. The costs of the 
arbitration shall, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 25G of this Agreement, be 
shared equally between the Arbitration Parties unless governing law requires 
otherwise.  Either Arbitration Party, in their sole and exclusive discretion, may 
choose to assume responsibility for the other party’s arbitration costs.  If one 
Arbitration Party claims it cannot afford the costs of arbitration, the arbitrator shall 
determine the maximum costs the party can afford.  The arbitrator will apportion 
costs more than that amount to the opposing party.  Any Arbitration Party that, due 
to such an apportionment, pays more than one half of the total arbitration costs 
shall, if it prevails in the arbitration, recover the excess costs pursuant to the award.   
Any Arbitration Party seeking to reapportion costs in this manner must submit to 
the arbitrator for consideration and to the opposing party for inspection complete 
and unredacted copies of his or her tax returns for the preceding two years.  For the 
avoidance of doubt, the entirety of this Paragraph 25D is subject to the provisions 
of Paragraph 25G below, and it shall not be interpreted to require or permit an award 
of any costs, fees or expenses against any Arbitration Party if such recovery is 
prohibited under Applicable Law.  

E. Injunction and Specific Performance. Notwithstanding anything in Paragraphs 24 
and 25 to the contrary, Coverall and Franchised Business shall be entitled to apply 
at any time directly to a court of competent jurisdiction for the entry of preliminary 
and permanent injunctions and orders of specific performance. The prevailing party 
shall be entitled to collect from the non-prevailing party an amount equal to the 
costs incurred by the prevailing party in obtaining relief, including, without 
limitation, attorney's fees, litigation costs and expenses, as well as any damages 
incurred. 

F. Final Award. Notwithstanding any arbitration rule to the contrary, no award shall 
become final until 45 days after the award issues, or, if a JAMS appeal is filed, 45 
days after the appellate decision is issued.  If the non-prevailing Arbitration Party 
pays the full amount of the award to the prevailing Arbitration Party within that 45-
day period, the award shall not become final and, notwithstanding any arbitration 
rule to the contrary (including JAMS Comprehensive Arbitration Rule 25), no 
judgement of a court may be entered upon the award under 9 U.S.C. §9 or any other 
statute. 

G. Attorneys' Fees. Should either Arbitration Party incur attorney's fees in order to 
enforce the terms and conditions of this Agreement, including post-term covenants, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to reimbursement by the other party of all 
litigation costs, including attorneys' fees. 

H. Survival. The parties agree that the provisions of this Paragraph 25 are intended to 
benefit and bind certain third party non-signatories and shall continue in full force 
and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 
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I. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE 
LAW COVERALL AND FRANCHISED BUSINESS (AND FRANCHISED 
BUSINESS'S OWNERS, OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND/OR ANY 
GUARANTORS OF THIS AGREEMENT) IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY 
JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER 
AT LAW OR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THEM. 

26. TIME TO ASSERT CLAIMS. 

Franchised Business agrees to give Coverall immediate written notice of any alleged 
breach or violation of this Agreement after Franchised Business has constructive or actual 
knowledge of, believe, determine or are of the opinion that there has been an alleged breach 
of this Agreement by Coverall, including any acts of misfeasance or nonfeasance. Any and 
all claims and actions arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the relationship of 
Franchised Business and Coverall, or Franchised Business's operation of its business, 
brought by any Party hereto against the other, shall be commenced within two (2) years 
from the occurrence of the facts giving rise to such claim or action, or such claim or action 
shall be barred. This limitations period shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted 
by law. 

27. GOVERNING LAW. 

This Agreement shall be interpreted and governed by the laws of the state where Coverall’s 
principal place of business is then-located (the “Coverall State”), without recourse to such 
Coverall State’s (or any other state’s) choice of law or conflicts of law principles. If, 
however, any provision of this Agreement is enforceable under the laws of the Coverall 
State, and if the Franchise is located outside of the Coverall State and the provision would 
be enforceable under the laws of the state in which the Franchise is located, then that 
provision (and only that provision) will be interpreted and construed under the laws of that 
state. This Section is not intended to invoke, and shall not be deemed to invoke, the 
application of any franchise, business opportunity, antitrust, unfair competition, fiduciary 
or any other doctrine of law of the Coverall State which would not otherwise apply by its 
terms jurisdictionally or otherwise but for the within designation of governing law. 

28. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 

This is the full agreement of the parties. Any matter which is not actually written down and 
included in this document is not a term of this Agreement. To avoid any later 
misunderstanding about the exact terms of the Agreement, each party affirms, by signing 
this Agreement, that it has not relied on any comment, promise, or representation not 
actually included in this Agreement. By signing this Agreement, the parties mutually agree 
that no evidence shall be admitted in any proceeding as to the existence of any term or 
promise claimed to be a part of the Agreement unless that term is explicitly stated within 
the Agreement. 

DO NOT SIGN THIS AGREEMENT IF FRANCHISED BUSINESS IS RELYING 
UPON ANY REPRESENTATION OR PROMISE NOT STATED IN THIS 
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AGREEMENT. NOTHING IN THE AGREEMENT IS INTENDED TO DISCLAIM 
THE REPRESENTATIONS COVERALL MADE IN THE FRANCHISE 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT THAT COVERALL FURNISHED TO FRANCHISED 
BUSINESS. 

29. AMENDMENT. 

This Agreement may not be modified, altered, or amended except in writing executed by 
all of the Parties. 

30. WAIVERS AND DELAY. 

Waiver or delay by Coverall of its enforcement of any breach of any term, covenant or 
condition of this Agreement will be construed as a waiver by Coverall of such breach or 
any preceding or succeeding breach, or any other term, covenant or condition of this 
Agreement; any one or more defaults shall not operate as a waiver of successive or other 
defaults and all of Coverall's rights shall continue notwithstanding any such waiver or 
waivers. 

31. FORCE MAJEURE. 

No party shall be liable for any loss or damage due to any delay in the performance of the 
terms (except for the payment of money) by reason of strikes, lockouts, and other labor 
troubles, fires, riots, wars, acts of terrorism, embargoes and civil commotion, or acts of 
God. Any such delay shall extend performance only so long as such event is in progress. 

32. SEVERABILITY. 

If any term, provision, covenant, or condition of this Agreement is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions 
shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired, or 
invalidated. 

33. NOTICES. 

Any notices to be given by either Party to the other may be effected in writing either by 
personal delivery or by first class mail, postage prepaid or by email at the email addresses 
provided by the Parties to one another. Mailed notices should be addressed to Franchised 
Business and to Coverall at the addresses set forth on Page 1 of this Agreement. Either 
Party may designate a different address for notice in writing delivered to the other party. 
Notices personally delivered shall be deemed received when delivered. Notices sent by 
mail shall be deemed received on the second day following mailing. 

34. SUCCESSORS BOUND. 

This Agreement shall bind, and shall inure to the benefit of, the executor, administrator, 
personal representative, heirs, successors and assigns of each of the Parties. 
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35. SURVIVAL OF PROVISIONS. 

Any provision or covenant of this Agreement which expressly or by its nature imposes 
obligations beyond the expiration or termination of this Agreement shall survive expiration 
or termination. 

36. CAPTIONS. 

The captions used in this Agreement are inserted as a matter of convenience. The text of 
any paragraph of this Agreement shall control its interpretation. 

37. GUARANTY. 

The shareholders or members of any ̀ business entity constituting Franchised Business, and 
shareholders or members of any corporate entity that may own the shares of the partnership 
or corporate entity which is Franchised Business, (the shareholders or members are listed 
in on page 1), do by signing this Agreement, jointly and severally (i) guaranty the 
performance of all Franchised Business's responsibilities and duties; (ii) guaranty the 
payment of all sums which may from time to time become due to Coverall under this 
Agreement; and (iii) agree to be bound by Paragraphs 18, 20, 23, 24 and 25. The 
shareholders or members shall also, at the time of the execution of this Agreement, execute 
the current form Guaranty to the Coverall Franchise Agreement. The shareholders or 
members also agree to execute all Promissory Notes executed by Franchised Business. 

This provision shall be equally binding upon the current shareholders or members of the 
business entity which is Franchised Business, and upon any additional shareholders or 
members who may subsequently obtain an ownership interest in Franchised Business, 
pursuant to Paragraph 21 of this Agreement. Franchised Business specifically agrees that 
within thirty (30) days prior to any additional shareholders or members obtaining an 
ownership interest in Franchised Business that Franchised Business shall notify Coverall 
in writing of this fact, and such additional shareholders or members shall be approved by 
Coverall, who approval shall not be unreasonably refused. At that time, Coverall will give 
Franchised Business its then current Franchised Business confidentiality and guaranty 
form. These forms are to be executed by the additional shareholders or members 
concurrently with their obtaining their ownership interest in Franchised Business. 

38. CERTIFICATION. 

Franchised Business certifies that it and its owners are not, nor to their best knowledge 
have been designated, a terrorist and/or a suspected terrorist, nor are associated and/or 
affiliated in any way with any terrorist and/or suspected terrorist person and/or 
organization, as defined in U.S. Executive Order 13224 and/or otherwise. 

The authorized person signing on behalf of Franchised Business certifies that, to 
Franchised Business's best knowledge, neither Franchised Business, such person, and/or 
any owners, officers, board members, similar individuals and/or affiliates/associates of 
Franchised Business are, or have been designated, a terrorist and/or a suspected terrorist, 
nor is Franchised Business or any such persons and/or affiliates/associates owned, 
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controlled, associated and/or affiliated in any way with any terrorist and/or a suspected 
terrorist person and/or organization, as defined in U.S. Executive Order 13224 and/or 
otherwise. 

Franchised Business agrees to fully comply and/or assist Coverall in its compliance efforts 
with any and all laws, regulations, Executive Orders or otherwise relating to anti-terrorist 
activities, including without limitation the U.S.A. Patriot Act, Executive Order 13224, and 
related U.S. Treasury and/or regulations, including properly performing any currency 
reporting and other obligations, whether relating to Franchised Business in each case as 
designated by Coverall and/or as required by applicable law. 

39. COVERALL'S BUSINESS JUDGMENT. 

Whenever this Agreement or any related agreement grants, confers or reserves to Coverall 
the right to take action, refrain from taking action, grant or withhold our consent or grant 
or withhold Coverall's approval, unless the provision specifically states otherwise, Coverall 
will have the right to engage in such activity at Coverall's option taking into consideration 
Coverall's assessment of the long term interests of the Coverall System overall. Franchised 
Business and Coverall recognize, and any court or judge is affirmatively advised, that if 
those activities and/or decisions are supported by Coverall's business judgment, neither 
said court, said judge nor any other person reviewing those activities or decisions will 
substitute his, her or its judgment for Coverall's judgment. When the terms of this 
Agreement specifically require that Coverall not unreasonably withhold its approval or 
consent, if Franchised Business is in default or breach under this Agreement, any 
withholding of Coverall's approval or consent will be considered reasonable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of 
the day and year written above. 

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT BE VALID UNLESS SIGNED BY (i) FRANCHISED 
BUSINESS; (ii) AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF COVERALL'S REGIONAL 
SUPPORT CENTER; AND (iii) AN OFFICER OF COVERALL. 

FRANCHISED BUSINESS: 

(Print name of corporation or limited liability 
company.) 

By:  
(Date Signed) 

By:  
(Date Signed) 

By:  
(Date Signed) 
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By:  
(Date Signed) 

Title:  

ACCEPTED ON THIS   DAY OF  

COVERALL NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

By: , Vice President 
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FRANCHISE # Transfer of a Franchise

COVERALL NORTH AMERICA, INC.
TRANSFER COVERALL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between Coverall North America, Inc., a corporation organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of Delaware, ("Coverall") and ____________________________________________ 
("Franchised Business") for the purposes of granting the Franchised Business the rights necessary to operate a 
Coverall Franchise. Franchised Business is doing business as a 

Corporation, state of incorporation: ____________ LLC, state of organization: _____________ 

Effective Date of Agreement: 

Term of Franchise ("Initial Term"): 20 years 

Current Monthly $ Volume: $ 

Current Business Owed: $   days 

Coverall Support Center  
*Refer to then-current list on Exhibit I to the Franchise 
Disclosure Document. 

Franchised Buisness's outstanding note balance(s) is 
(with interest at 12% per annum) 

a. Note 1 $ 
b. Note 2 $  

Remaining Financing Period   months 

Amount of Each Monthly Installment: $ 

The next installment of principal and interest shall 
be paid on the last calendar day of 
_______________ Franchised Business hereby 
reaffirms Franchised Business's obligation under 
the above notes. 

Franchised Business agrees to receipt of all correspondence sent via U.S. MAIL at the following address: 

Email Address:  FEIN: - 

Franchised Business Owners (each a 100% guarantor of Franchised Business for purposes of its operation as a 
Coverall Franchise and each fully authorized to transact business with Coverall on behalf of Franchised Business): 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone:  Email Address: 

Name: 

Address: 

Phone:  Email Address: 

Name: 

Address: 
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Phone:  Email Address: 
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COVERALL® PROMISSORY NOTE 

Coverall of FO#

$ ,   (Insert Date) 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, ______________________ ("Franchised Business"), agrees to 
pay to the order of Coverall North America, Inc. ("Coverall"), in lawful money of the United States 
of America, the principal sum of _________________________ Dollars ($_________), with 
interest from the date above at the rate of [check one] ________ six percent (6%), ________ nine 
percent (9%), or _____________ twelve percent (12%) per annum, or the highest rate permitted 
by your state, whichever is less, on the unpaid balance of the principal amount until paid in full. 
Franchised Business further promises to pay that principal sum and interest in installments as 
follows: Initial  installment of _________________________________________________ 
Dollars ($_________) on __________________, _________ and ___________ successive 
monthly installments of ____________________________ Dollars ($_____________) each on 
the same day of each succeeding calendar month until all such payments have been made, on which 
date the entire balance of principal and interest unpaid shall be due and payable. 

This note may be prepaid without penalty. 

It is agreed that each installment, when paid, shall be credited first to interest then due and 
the remainder to principal. Should the interest not be paid, it shall, at the sole option of Coverall, 
become part of the principal and will then bear the same interest as the principal. 

If default is made in the payment of any installment of principal or interest when due, then 
the whole sum of principal and interest shall become immediately due and payable at the option 
of Coverall, with interest from the date of default at the rate of fifteen percent (15%) per annum 
until paid on the entire unpaid principal and interest. 

This note and all other obligations, direct or contingent, of Franchised Business or any 
endorser to Coverall, shall become fully due and payable immediately at the option of Coverall 
without demand or notice upon the happening of any of the following events: 

1. The failure of Franchised Business to pay when due any installment of the principal 
and/or interest of this note. 

2. The failure of Franchised Business to timely keep or properly perform any of the 
recitals, covenants, conditions, representations, warranties, obligations or guarantees contained in 
any agreement between Coverall and Franchised Business. 

3. The levy of any attachment, execution, or any other process against all or any part 
of the assets of Franchised Business. 

4. The failure of Franchised Business to pay, withhold, collect or remit any tax or tax 
deficiency when assessed or due. 
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5. The suspension of the business of Franchised Business, or the making of a general 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the commencement of proceedings for dissolution or 
liquidation, or the commencement of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, readjustment 
of debt or liquidation law or statute of the federal or state governments, or the adjudication as 
bankrupt or insolvent, or the involuntary appointment of a receiver, or applications therefor, or the 
making of a bulk sale or the giving notice of intention to do so. 

6. The failure by Franchised Business to execute, as above, any documents, which 
Coverall deems necessary to convert Franchised Business's obligation to another form of 
financing. 

7. At any time when, in the sole opinion of Coverall, Franchised Business's financial 
responsibility becomes impaired or unsatisfactory. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Promissory Note or in any document 
previously executed by Franchised Business and Coverall, in the event the services performed by 
Franchised Business for customers of their Coverall Franchised Business are discontinued in 
accordance with the provisions of Paragraph 18 of the Coverall Franchise Agreement, Coverall 
shall have the right to apply the entire amount of any payment received by Coverall from the 
customer(s) after discontinuation of services to the balance due on this Promissory Note. The 
application of such funds shall not be construed to release the Franchised Business from any 
obligation to pay any amounts remaining due to Coverall (principal or interest). 

In the event an attorney is employed by Coverall in collection of any amounts due 
hereunder, Franchised Business shall pay to Coverall its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs 
incurred in such collection. 

The obligation evidenced by this note is to be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State or District in which the Franchised Business conducts its Coverall business. 

Name of Franchised Business 
(Corporation or Limited Liability Company) 

By:   
 Officer 

By:   
 Officer 

Shareholders/Members/Guarantors of Franchised 
Business 

(Corporation or Limited Liability Company) 
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Customer Transfers 

1. Customers Being Serviced RS Guarantee Remaining 
(# months, if any) 

2. Current $ RS Business Owed (which shall be provided according to initial Paragraph 
16B(4) hereof) 

Total: $  = Initial Business $ 
+ 

 = Additional Business $ 

3. List the name, title, and date of all amendments, equipment leases, and any other 
agreements for which Franchisee will be responsible: 
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Customers Serviced – Successor Term 

1. Customers Being Serviced RS Guarantee Remaining 
(# months, if any) 

2. Current $ RS Business Owed (which shall be provided according to initial Franchise 
Agreement) 

Total: $ 

3. List the name, title, and date of all amendments, equipment leases, and any other 
agreements for which Franchised Business will be responsible: 
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GUARANTY TO COVERALL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FO#

In consideration of, and as an inducement to Coverall North America, Inc. ("Coverall"), 
entering into a Franchise Agreement ("the Agreement") dated ____________________, _______, 
with __________________________________________ ("Franchised Business"), the 
undersigned ("the Guarantor(s)") hereby unconditionally guaranty, personally, the obligations of 
the Franchised Business under the Agreement, as follows: 

1. Guarantor(s) jointly, severally, and unconditionally guarantee to Coverall 
performance of all responsibilities, duties, indebtedness, and obligations of the Franchised 
Business under the Agreement, including, but not limited to (a) payment of any fees due under the 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, initial fee, royalties, management fees, assignment fees, 
interest or late fees, training fees (if any) and fees for products, supplies or services furnished by 
Coverall to Franchised Business; (b) obligations to hold harmless, defend and indemnify Coverall 
and related parties; and (c) any and all advances, debts, obligations, notes and liabilities of the 
Franchised Business incurred in connection with or as a result of the Agreement, previously, now, 
or hereafter made, incurred, or created, voluntary or involuntary and, however arising. 

2. Guarantor(s) authorizes Coverall, (whether or not after revocation or termination 
of this Guaranty) without notice or demand (except as may be required by law) and without 
affecting or impairing Guarantor(s)' liability hereunder, from time to time, to (a) renew, 
compromise, extend, accelerate, or otherwise change the time for performance of, or otherwise 
change the terms of the obligation or any part thereof; and (b) release or substitute any one or more 
of the Guarantors, if there is more than one. 

3. Any indebtedness of the Franchised Business now or hereafter held by Guarantor(s) 
is hereby subordinated to the indebtedness of the Franchised Business to Coverall, and all such 
indebtedness shall, if Coverall so requests, be collected, enforced, and received by Guarantor(s) as 
trustee(s) for Coverall, and be paid over to Coverall on account of the indebtedness of Franchised 
Business to Coverall, without affecting or impairing in any manner the liability of Guarantor(s) 
under the other provisions of this Guaranty. 

4. Guarantor(s) waives any right to require Coverall to (a) proceed against the 
Franchised Business; (b) proceed against or exhaust any security held from the Franchised 
Business; or (c) pursue any other remedy in Coverall's power whatsoever. Guarantor(s) waives 
any defense based on or arising out of any defense of the Franchised Business other than payment 
in full of the indebtedness, including, but not limited to, any defense based on or arising out of the 
disability of the Franchised Business, the unenforceability of the indebtedness or any part thereof 
from any cause, or the cessation from any cause of the liability of the Franchised Business, other 
than payment in full of the indebtedness. Coverall may, at its election, foreclose on any security 
held by Coverall by one or more judicial sales, whether or not every aspect of any such sale is 
commercially reasonable, or exercise any other right or remedy Coverall may have against the 
Franchised Business or any security, without affecting or impairing in any way the liability of 
Guarantor(s) under this Agreement, except to the extent the indebtedness has been paid. 
Guarantor(s) waives any defense arising out of such an election by Coverall, even if the election 
operates to impair or extinguish any right of reimbursement or subrogation or other right or remedy 
of Guarantor(s) against the Franchised Business or any security. Until all indebtedness of the 
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Franchised Business to Coverall is paid in full, even though that indebtedness is in excess of 
Guarantor's liability under this Agreement, Guarantor(s) shall (a) have no right of subrogation; (b) 
waive any right to enforce any remedy that Coverall now has or may hereafter have against 
Franchised Business; and (c) waive any benefit of, and any right to, participation in any security 
now or hereafter held by the Franchised Business. Guarantor(s) waives all presentments, demands 
for performance, notices of protest, notices of dishonor, notices of acceptances of this Guaranty, 
and notices of the existence, creation, or incurring of new or additional indebtedness. Guarantor(s) 
assumes all responsibility for keeping informed of the Franchised Business's financial condition 
and assets, and of all other circumstances bearing upon the risk of nonpayment of the indebtedness 
and the nature, scope, and extent of the risks that Guarantor(s) assumes and incurs hereunder, and 
agrees that Coverall shall have no duty to advise Guarantor(s) of information known to it regarding 
those circumstances or risks. 

5. Guarantor(s)' obligations hereunder are joint and several, and independent of those 
of the Franchised Business, and a separate action or actions may be brought and prosecuted against 
the Guarantor(s) whether action is brought against the Franchised Business and/or Guarantor(s), 
or whether the Franchised Business and/or the Guarantor(s) be joined in any such action or actions; 
and the Guarantor(s) waives the benefit of any statute of limitations affecting the Guarantor(s)' 
liability hereunder, or the enforcement thereof. 

6. In addition to the amounts guaranteed under this Agreement, Guarantor(s) jointly 
and severally agrees to pay reasonable attorneys' fees and all other costs and expenses incurred by 
Coverall in enforcing this Guaranty in any action or proceeding, arising out of, or relating to, this 
Guaranty. 

7. It is not necessary for Coverall to inquire into the powers of the Franchised Business 
or the officers, directors, or agents acting or purporting to act on their behalf, and any obligations 
made or created in reliance upon the professed exercise of such powers shall be guaranteed 
hereunder. 

8. If any provision of this Guaranty contravenes or is held invalid under the laws of 
any jurisdiction, this Guaranty shall be construed as though it did not contain that provision, and 
the rights and liabilities of the parties of this Agreement shall be construed and enforced 
accordingly. 

9. In addition to the above provisions, Guarantor(s) agrees to comply with all 
provisions and covenants in the Agreement related to the protection of the Coverall trade and 
service marks and the Coverall confidentiality and trade secrets (both in-term and post term). In 
addition the Guarantor(s) agrees to be bound by all Non-Competition covenants of the Agreement, 
both in-term and post-term, which covenants shall be as fully binding and enforceable on 
Guarantor(s) as though they were set forth herein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Guarantor(s) has this ______ day of 
_______________________, _______ executed this Guaranty in the City of ________________, 
State of _______________________. 

"GUARANTOR(S)" 
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Signature Print Name Address 

Signature Print Name Address 

Signature Print Name Address 
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CONFIDENTIALITY/NON-SOLICITATION AGREEMENT 

FO# 

This Confidentiality/Non-Competition Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this ___ day of 
_____________, by and between ______________________________ ("Employer Franchisee"), 
and ______________________________ Employer Franchisee] ("Signatory Employee"). 

Recitals 

A. Employer Franchisee is an independently owned and operated Coverall® commercial 
cleaning franchised business operating under a license from Coverall North America, Inc. 
("Franchisor"). 

B. Employer Franchisee has purchased a Franchised Business and has the right to use the 
Coverall System, a proprietary system for the ongoing development and operation of a 
commercial cleaning franchised business, and the right to use certain Franchisor trade 
names, service marks and trademarks, including the trade names "Coverall®," "Coverall 
Health-Based Cleaning System®," and/or such other names, designs, and logos as 
Franchisor may from time to time designate (the "Marks"). 

C. Signatory Employee is likely to become familiar with the Coverall® System. 

D. Franchisor shall provide the Employer Franchisee with the Coverall System upon 
Signatory Employee's consent to the restriction set forth in this Agreement. 

Terms 

In consideration of Franchisor's disclosure of confidential and proprietary information, the 
Signatory Employee hereby agrees as follows: 

1. Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are fully incorporated in the Terms as if set forth herein. 

2. Confidentiality of Information. Signatory Employee acknowledges that Signatory 
Employee will have access to Coverall Manuals and documents, records and information 
of a confidential and proprietary nature including, but not limited to, the Coverall System, 
names and addresses of the Employer Franchisee's customers, the names and duties of key 
personnel of Employer Franchisee's customers, approved supplier lists, criteria for 
approval of supplies and equipment, Employer Franchisee's customer contracts, and 
information regarding the operation of the Coverall System, all of which would not be 
available to Signatory Employee except for Signatory Employee's relationship with 
Employer Franchisee. Signatory Employee acknowledges that such information is not 
generally known to the public, is confidential, is an asset of Franchisor, and to preserve 
Franchisor's good will must be kept strictly confidential and used only in the conduct of 
Employer Franchisee's business. 

Signatory Employee agrees to not ever divulge or use for the benefit of any other person(s), 
association, corporation, or limited liability company, any confidential information, 
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knowledge, or know-how concerning the Coverall System and the Employer Franchisee's 
Franchised Business. Any and all information, knowledge, know-how, techniques, and 
information which Franchisor designates as confidential shall be deemed confidential for 
the purposes of this Agreement. 

Signatory Employee shall not at any time copy, duplicate, record or otherwise reproduce 
any of Franchisor's confidential information, in whole or in part, or otherwise make it 
available to any third party except as authorized by the Coverall Franchise Agreement (the 
"CFA') or by Franchisor in writing. Upon the expiration or other termination of Signatory 
Employee's relationship with Employer Franchisee, Signatory Employee shall return to 
Franchisor all such confidential information including, but not limited to, all Coverall 
Manuals and other confidential proprietary documents, which are in Signatory Employee's 
possession, custody, or control, and shall delete all electronic data files that contain 
Franchisor's confidential information. 

3. In-Term Restrictions. During the Term of the CFA, and any Successor Term, and for so 
long that during the Term the Signatory Employee is employed by or has an ownership 
interest in the Employer Franchisee, Signatory Employee shall not, without the prior 
written consent of Franchisor, directly or indirectly, engage in, or acquire any financial 
interest in (either as an individual, principal, owner, agent, employee, stockholder, or 
director) any business which performs commercial cleaning and related services, or 
engages in the franchising of commercial cleaning businesses, or any related business 
anywhere in the Area defined in the CFA. Signatory Employee shall not divert any 
customers of the Employer Franchisee to another entity, whether or not that entity is 
directly or indirectly controlled by Employer Franchisee unless Franchisee obtains 
Franchisor's written consent. 

4. Post-Term Non-Solicitation of Franchisees, Customers, and Employees. Signatory 
Employee expressly agrees that Signatory Employee shall not, directly or indirectly, solicit 
any customer repurchased by Franchisor or another Franchisor franchisee for a period of 
eighteen (18) months from the date of repurchase. 

5. Remedy. Signatory Employee acknowledges that the restrictions set forth in Paragraphs 3 
and 4 are reasonable and necessary for Franchisor's protection. Signatory Employee hereby 
agrees that in the event of a violation by Signatory Employee of any of the provisions 
contained in this Agreement, Franchisor will be entitled, if it so elects, to institute and 
prosecute proceedings at law or in equity to obtain injunctive relief and/or damages with 
respect to such violation; and that the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect from the 
non-prevailing party its reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses associated with such 
proceedings. 

6. Divisibility. The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If any provision of this 
Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable in any respect, or in any jurisdiction, 
such provision shall be carried out and enforced only to the extent to which it shall be valid 
and enforceable, and any such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other 
provisions of this Agreement, all of which shall be fully carried out and enforced as if such 
invalid or unenforceable provision had not been set forth herein. 
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7. Third-Party Beneficiary. The parties acknowledge and agree that Franchisor is an intended 
third party beneficiary of this Agreement, and accordingly, Franchisor, as well as Employer 
Franchisee, shall have the right to enforce the provisions of this Agreement against 
Signatory Employee. Neither this Nondisclosure and Non-Solicitation Agreement between 
Employer Franchisee and Signatory Employee, nor this Paragraph 7, which makes 
Franchisor an intended third-party beneficiary, constitutes control by Franchisor over the 
Signatory Employee's conditions of employment, or creates an employee or joint employee 
relationship between Franchisor and Signatory Employee. 

8. No Waiver. Any failure or delay in exercising any right or remedy hereunder shall not 
constitute a waiver of such right or remedy and shall not excuse or release Signatory 
Employee from full performance of Signatory Employee's obligations hereunder. No 
waiver of any right or remedy shall be effective unless in writing and signed by an 
authorized representative of Franchisor. 

Executed on the date first written above. 

EMPLOYER FRANCHISEE SIGNATORY EMPLOYEE 

By:___________________________ ______________________________  
       Its Authorized Representative Individually 

______________________________  
Address 

______________________________  
Phone Number 
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FRANCHISEE'S EMPLOYEE CONFIDENTIALITY/NON-COMPETITION 
AGREEMENT 

This Confidentiality/Non-Competition Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into this 
____________ day of _______________, by and between _______________ ("Employer") and 
_______________ ("Employee"). 

Recitals 

A. Employer is a Coverall® System franchised business. 

B. Employer has the right to use the Coverall System, a proprietary system for the ongoing 
development and operation of an independently owned and operated Coverall commercial 
cleaning franchised business, which is owned by Coverall North America, Inc. 
("Coverall"), and the right to use certain Coverall trade names, service marks and 
trademarks, including the trade names "Coverall®," "Coverall Health-Based Cleaning 
System®," and/or such other names, designs, and logos as Franchisor may from time to 
time designate (the "Marks"). 

C. Employee is an at-will employee of Employer. 

D. Employee will become knowledgeable about the Coverall System. 

E. Employer and Employee agree that, in order to protect the reputation and good will and 
proprietary and confidential information of the Coverall System, Employee must abide by 
certain restrictions. 

Terms 

In consideration of Employee's employment and Employer's disclosure of Coverall System 
confidential and proprietary information to Employee, the Employer and Employee hereby agree 
as follows: 

1. Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are fully incorporated in the Terms as if set forth herein. 

2. Confidentiality of Information. During the course of Employee's training and employment, 
Employee will receive and have access to certain confidential and proprietary information, 
including, but not limited to, the names and addresses of Employer's customers, the names 
and duties of key personnel of Employer's customers and suppliers, pricing and credit 
information, manuals, and other information regarding the operation of the Coverall 
System, all of which would not be available to Employee except for Employee's 
employment relationship with Employer. Employee acknowledges that the confidential 
information is not generally known to the public, is confidential, is an asset of Employer, 
and must be kept strictly confidential and used only in the conduct of Employer's business. 
Employee agrees that, upon termination of employment for any reason, Employee will not 
use, disclose, copy or permit the use or disclosure of any confidential information in any 
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manner. Upon termination, Employee shall return to Employer any and all confidential 
information in Employee's possession, custody or control, and shall destroy any electronic 
files containing confidential information. 

3. In-Term Restrictions. While Employee is employed by Employer, Employee shall not, 
without the prior written consent of Employer, directly or indirectly, engage in, or acquire 
any financial interest in any business which performs commercial cleaning and related 
services , or engages in the franchising of commercial cleaning businesses, or any related 
business anywhere in the area where Employer conducts its business. Employee shall not 
divert any customers of the Employer to another person or entity. 

4. Post-Term Non-Solicitation Covenant. Employee expressly agrees that Employee will not, 
directly or indirectly, for a period of six (6) months following termination of his 
employment with Employer for any reason, solicit Employer's customers to either directly 
or indirectly provide commercial cleaning and related services to Employer's customers, 
who were Employer's customers at the time of Employee's termination. 

5. Remedy. Employee acknowledges that the restrictions set forth in Paragraphs 3 and 4 are 
reasonable and necessary for Employer's protection. Employee hereby agrees that in the 
event of a violation by Employee of any of the provisions contained in this Agreement, 
Employer will be entitled, if it so elects, to institute and prosecute proceedings at law or in 
equity to obtain injunctive relief and/or damages with respect to such violation; and that 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to collect from the non-prevailing party its reasonable 
attorneys fees, costs and expenses associated with such proceedings. 

6. Divisibility. The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If any provision of this 
Agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable in any respect, or in any jurisdiction, 
such provision shall be carried out and enforced only to the extent to which it shall be valid 
and enforceable, and any such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other 
provisions of this Agreement, all of which shall be fully carried out and enforced as if such 
invalid or unenforceable provision had not been set forth herein. 

7. No Waiver. Any failure or delay in exercising any right or remedy hereunder shall not 
constitute a waiver of such right or remedy and shall not excuse or release Signatory from 
full performance of Signatory's obligations hereunder. No waiver of any right or remedy 
shall be effective unless in writing and signed by an authorized representative of 
Franchisor. 

8. Third-party Beneficiary. The parties acknowledge and agree that Coverall is an intended 
third party beneficiary of this Agreement, and accordingly, Coverall, as well as Employer, 
shall have the right to enforce the provisions of this Agreement against Employee. Neither 
this Nondisclosure and Non-Solicitation Agreement between Employer and Employee, nor 
this Paragraph 8, which makes Coverall an intended third-party beneficiary, constitutes 
control by Coverall over the Employee's conditions of employment, or creates an employee 
or joint employee relationship between Coverall and Employee. 
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9. Acknowledgment of Agreement. Employee acknowledges reading this Agreement and 
fully understanding its terms and conditions. 

Executed on the date first written above. 

EMPLOYEE: ___________________ EMPLOYER: 

______________________________  ______________________________  
Print Name Its authorized representative 

______________________________  
Address 

______________________________  
Telephone Number 
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EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

CONTRACT NUMBER ___________ FRANCHISED BUSINESS NUMBER 

SELLER: PURCHASER: 
COVERALL NORTH AMERICA, INC. 

__________________________________________ 
Corporate/LLC Name/Purchaser (Franchised Business) 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
Address Address 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
Address Address 

________________________________ ________________________________ 
City, State, Zip Code City, State, Zip Code 

SEE ATTACHED: EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE. 

CONTRACT TERM AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

NUMBER OF 
MONTHS 

NUMBER OF 
PAYMENTS 

PAYMENT PERIOD AMOUNT OF EACH * 
MONTHLY  
PAYMENT 

DATE PAYMENT 
DUE 

* Principal plus interest at eighteen (18%) percent per annum.  

DOWN PAYMENT $_______________. 

BALANCE $_______________. 

TERM: This Agreement shall commence upon the execution hereof by the Seller and the Purchaser. 

IF PURCHASER HAS CHOSEN TO FINANCE ANY PORTION OF THIS PURCHASE, UPON SIGNING THIS 
AGREEMENT, PURCHASER IS AGREEING TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE PROMISSORY NOTE THAT 
APPEARS ON THE REVERSE SIDE OF THIS FORM. IT IS PURCHASER'S RESPONSIBILITY TO READ AND 
UNDERSTAND THE PROMISSORY NOTE. 

By executing this Agreement, Purchaser hereby certifies that the Equipment described in the schedule has been delivered. 
Purchaser agrees to be bound by all terms and conditions of this Agreement and Promissory Note. 

Coverall North America, Inc. Purchaser 

By: __________________________________ _______________________________ 
Individually  

Date: __________________________________ 
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PROMISSORY NOTE 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Purchaser, whose signature appears on this Equipment Purchase 
Agreement (the "Agreement") agrees to pay to the order of Coverall North America, Inc. ("Coverall"), 
in lawful money of the United States of America, the principal sum stated on Page 1 of this Agreement, 
with interest from the date of execution, at the rate of eighteen (18%) per annum, or the highest rate 
permitted by your state, whichever is less, on the unpaid balance of the principal amount until paid in 
full. 

This note may be prepaid without penalty. 

It is agreed that each installment, when paid, shall be credited first to interest then due and the 
remainder to principal. Should the interest not be so paid, it shall, at the sole option of Coverall, become 
part of the principal and thereafter bear like interest as the principal. 

Should Purchaser default in the payment of any installment of principal or interest when due, 
then the whole sum of principal and interest shall become immediately due and payable at the option 
of Coverall, with interest from the date of the default at the rate of twenty-one percent (21%) per annum 
until paid on the entire unpaid principal and interest. 

Purchaser agrees that the obligation evidenced by this Promissory Note shall, at Coverall's 
option, upon Coverall first giving Purchaser thirty (30) days written notice, be converted from a 
Promissory Note to a revolving line of credit granted by Coverall to Purchaser. Under the line of credit, 
Purchaser will remain obligated to pay to Coverall the monthly amount payable under this Promissory 
Note; however, if the line of credit issued to Purchaser is, with Purchaser's consent, increased to an 
amount exceeding the principal balance evidenced by this Promissory Note, Purchaser shall, in addition 
to the monthly amounts currently payable under the Agreement and this Promissory Note, be required 
to pay Coverall each month, an amount equal to at least twelve and one half percent (12-1/2 %) of the 
amount by which Purchaser's gross monthly billings (regular service and special services) for each prior 
month exceeds the amount of gross monthly billings originally acquired by this note and other notes of 
Purchaser converted to the line of credit. In the event of a conversion to a line of credit exceeding the 
gross monthly billings originally acquired by this note and other notes of Purchaser converted to the 
line of credit, Coverall shall also have the right, upon first giving Purchaser thirty (30) days written 
notice, to increase or decrease the rate of interest on the line of credit. Interest on the entire line of 
credit, including amounts which were payable under this note, shall be calculated on the outstanding 
daily balance of Purchaser's obligation to Coverall. In the event of such conversion, (i) the terms of 
default; and (ii) Coverall's right to accelerate the obligation in the event of default, shall remain the 
same. Purchaser will, upon receipt from Coverall of written notice to convert this obligation, execute 
such instruments and/or documents, as Coverall deems necessary. Failure by Purchaser to do so will 
be deemed an event of default under this Promissory Note. Details of the Coverall line of credit 
program, if and when adopted, will appear in the Coverall Policy and Procedure Manual as it may, from 
time to time be updated and/or modified, or in a written policy directive setting forth these details. 

Furthermore, this note and all other obligations, direct or contingent, of Purchaser or any 
endorser, shall become fully due and payable immediately at the option of Coverall without demand or 
notice upon the happening of any of the following events: 
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1. The failure of Purchaser to pay when due any installment of the principal and/or interest. 

2. The failure of Purchaser to timely keep or properly perform any of the recitals, 
covenants, conditions, representations, warranties, obligations or guarantees contained in any 
agreement between Coverall and Purchaser. 

3. The levy of any attachment, execution, or any other process against all or any part of the 
assets of Purchaser. 

4. The failure of Purchaser to pay, withhold, collect or remit any tax or tax deficiency when 
assessed or due. 

5. The suspension of the business of Purchaser, or the making of a general assignment for 
the benefit of creditors, or the commencement of proceedings for dissolution or liquidation, or 
the commencement of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, readjustment of debt or 
liquidation law or statute of the federal or state governments, or the adjudication as bankrupt or 
insolvent, or the involuntary appointment of a receiver, or applications for a receiver, or the 
making of a bulk sale or the giving notice of intention to do so. 

6. The failure by Purchaser to execute documents that Coverall deems necessary to convert 
Purchaser's obligation to another form of financing. 

7. At any time when, in the sole opinion of Coverall, Purchaser's financial responsibility 
becomes impaired or unsatisfactory. 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Promissory Note or in any document 
previously executed by Purchaser and Coverall, in the event the services performed by Purchaser for 
customers of their Coverall Franchised Business are discontinued in accordance with the provisions of 
Paragraph 18 of the Coverall Franchise Agreement, Coverall shall have the right to apply the entire 
amount of any payment received by Coverall from the customer(s) after discontinuation of services to 
the balance due on this Promissory Note. The application of such funds shall not be construed to release 
the Purchaser from any obligation to pay any amounts remaining due to Coverall (principal or interest). 

In the event an attorney is employed by Coverall in collection of any amounts due hereunder, 
Purchaser shall pay to Coverall its reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred in such collection. 

The obligation evidenced by this note is to be construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
or District in which the Purchaser conducts its Coverall business. 
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. SALE OF EQUIPMENT. Purchaser agrees to purchase from 
Seller, upon the following terms and conditions the equipment 
described in the Equipment Schedule (the "Equipment"). The 
purchase price and terms of payments are set forth in the Contract 
Term and Payment Schedule ("Payment Schedule"). 

2. PAYMENT. In the event Coverall agrees to finance the 
Equipment purchase, Purchaser shall pay Seller the down payment 
stated in the Payment Schedule, and the balance shall be payable in 
accordance with the Payment Schedule and pursuant to the terms of 
the Promissory Note. Payments shall be deducted monthly from 
Purchaser's Purchaser Statement unless there are insufficient monies 
due Purchaser in which event, Purchaser shall pay the difference. 
Default shall be defined as any payment which is not paid in full 
within three (3) business days of payment due date. Upon default by 
Purchaser or termination of Purchaser's Franchise Agreement for any 
reason, the balance shall be due and payable immediately. 
Notwithstanding anything in this Paragraph to the contrary, Seller 
reserves the right to finance the purchase of the Equipment through 
a Line of Credit provided by Seller or a third party and/or to convert 
the Promissory Note to the Line of Credit 

3. LIMITATION OF WARRANTY AND REMEDIES. 
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, 
SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS OR 
IMPLIED AND SHALL NOT, BY VIRTUE OF HAVING SOLD 
THE EQUIPMENT COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT, BE 
DEEMED TO HAVE MADE ANY REPRESENTATION OR 
WARRANTY AS TO THE MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS, 
DESIGN, CONDITION OR QUALITY OF THE EQUIPMENT OR 
THE MATERIAL OR WORKMANSHIP IN THE EQUIPMENT. 

4. THIRD PARTY CLAIMS. Seller shall not be liable to 
Purchaser for, and Purchaser shall indemnify and hold Seller 
harmless with respect to, any third party liability, claim, loss, 
damage, or expense of any kind or nature caused directly or 
indirectly by the inadequacy of any item of the Equipment; the use 
or performance of any item of the Equipment; any interruption or 
loss of business or other consequential damage whether or not 
resulting from any of the foregoing; levying of any state and local 
taxes, including sales and use and personal property taxes, as well as 
loss of federal income tax benefits by Seller. 

5. TAXES, ASSESSMENTS AND FEES. Purchaser agrees to 
pay all licensing, filing, and registration fees; to keep the Equipment 
free of all liens and encumbrances; to pay for all personal property 
taxes assessed against the equipment, to pay all other taxes, 
assessments, fees, and penalties which may be levied or assessed in 
respect to the Equipment, its use or any interest, or any lease 
payments, including but not limited to all federal, state, and local 
taxes, however designated, levied or assessed, whether upon 
Purchaser or Seller or the Equipment or upon the sale, ownership, 
use or operation, excepting any income taxes levied on the Seller. 

6. SECURITY INTEREST. To secure the prompt and complete 
payment, performance and observance of all the obligations of Buyer 
hereunder, including payment of the Promissory Note or other 
financing described in Paragraph 2 hereof, Purchaser hereby grants, 
assigns, mortgages, pledges, hypothecates and transfers to Seller, a 
continuing Lien and Security Interest (the "Security Interest") in the 
Equipment, which shall be the Collateral for such Security Interest. 

7. UCC FILINGS. The parties agree that either a photographic or 
other reproduction of this Agreement or a description of the 
Equipment may be filed with a Financing Statement, and shall be 
sufficient along with the Financing Statement, under the Uniform 
Commercial Code. Seller may file or record the Financing Statement 
with respect to the Equipment so as to give notice to any interested 
parties. The cost of any UCC filing shall be paid by Purchaser, and 
Seller shall be authorized to deduct this amount from Purchaser's 
Purchaser Statement. 

8. INSURANCE. Until Purchaser has fully paid for the 
Equipment, Purchaser shall, at Purchaser's own cost and expense, 
keep the Equipment insured for the full amount secured by this 
Agreement against damage or loss resulting from any and all risks to 
which it might foreseeably be exposed and risks designated by Seller. 
The Policy of Insurance shall be issued by an insurance company 
acceptable to Seller and shall provide for the loss payable under it 
being paid to both Purchaser and Seller as their interests may appear. 
A duplicate copy of each policy shall be delivered by Purchaser to 
Seller, who shall be named as an additional insured. 

9. RIGHT OF INSPECTION. If Purchaser has financed the 
Equipment with Seller, Seller, either in person or by agent, shall have 
the right at any and all reasonable times, and at reasonable intervals, 
to enter the premises where the Equipment is located and inspect the 
Equipment. 

10. DEFAULT. Should Purchaser fail to perform any provision of 
this Agreement, or should Purchaser fail to pay any obligation 
created by this Agreement as it becomes due, then Purchaser shall be 
in default of this Agreement. Seller shall have all the rights and 
remedies afforded by a secured party under the Uniform Commercial 
Code. Seller may: 

a. Enter on Purchaser's premises to assemble and take 
possession of the Equipment; 

b. Require Purchaser to make possession of the Equipment 
available to Seller at a place designated by Seller that is 
reasonably convenient to both Purchaser and Seller; 

c. Enter Purchaser's premises and dispose of the Equipment 
in the manner provided by the Uniform Commercial Code; 
and 

d. Apply the proceeds received from the sale or other 
disposition of the Equipment on default of Purchaser, in 
addition to the items specified in Article 9 of the Uniform 
Commercial Code, to the payment of reasonable attorneys' 
fees and legal expenses incurred by Seller as a result of 
Purchaser's default. 

11. ASSIGNMENT BY SELLER. Seller may assign this 
Agreement and its rights to a third party. Purchaser acknowledges 
that the terms and conditions of this Agreement have been fixed in 
anticipation of the possible assignment of Purchaser's rights under 
this Agreement to a third party (the "Assignee") which will rely on 
and be entitled to the benefit of the provisions of this Agreement. 
Purchaser agrees to recognize in writing (if so requested) any such 
assignment within five (5) days after receipt of written notice thereof 
and to thereafter pay all sums due Seller under a Promissory Note or 
Line of Credit directly to the Assignee. Any assignment shall be 
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subject to Purchaser's rights to use and possession of the Equipment 
under this Agreement, provided Purchaser is not in default. 

12. ASSIGNMENT BY PURCHASER. Purchaser shall not 
assign this Agreement or sell any item of financed Equipment before 
payment in full without the prior express written consent of Seller, 
which consent shall be subject to such terms and conditions as Seller, 
in its sole discretion, may determine. 

13. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be interpreted and 
governed by the laws of the State or District in which the Purchaser's 
franchise business is located. 

14. NOTICES. Any notices required to be given shall be in writing 
and may be given by personal delivery, telegram, or United States 
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid 
directed to the Seller or the Purchaser at their respective last known 
addresses. Notice by mail shall be deemed received on the third (3rd) 
business day following the date the same was deposited in the United 
States Mail. 

15. SEVERABILITY; CAPTIONS. All of the paragraphs and 
subparagraphs of this Agreement are distinct and severable and if 
any paragraphs or subparagraphs shall be deemed illegal, void, or 
unenforceable, the validity, legality or enforceability of any other 
paragraph or subparagraph of this Agreement shall not be affected. 
Captions of paragraphs and subparagraphs are for purposes of 
convenience only and do not constitute any part of, or modify, amend 
or otherwise change the language or intent of the paragraphs and 
subparagraphs. 

16. WAIVERS. Waiver of any one or more defaults by the Seller 
shall not operate as a waiver of successive or other defaults and all 
of the Seller's rights shall continue notwithstanding any waiver or 
waivers. 

17. ENTIRE AGREEMENT; MODIFICATION. The 
undersigned acknowledge that they, and each of them, have read this 
Agreement in full. No representations or agreements, whether oral or 
written, except as set forth in this Agreement have been made or 
relied upon. The terms and provisions of this Agreement cannot be 
changed or modified unless in writing signed by the authorized 
representative of the Purchaser and an authorized representative of 
the Seller. 

18. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Agreement shall be 
binding on and inure to the benefit of Seller and Purchaser and their 
respective successors and assigns. 

19. PRONOUNS. All pronouns and any variation thereof as used 
herein shall be deemed to refer to masculine, feminine, neuter, 
singular or plural as the identity of the person or persons and the 
context may require. 

20. TIME OF THE ESSENCE. Time is hereby expressly declared 
to be of the essence in this Agreement. 
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Purchaser: _______________________________________  FO#: _______________________  

EQUIPMENT SCHEDULE 

EQUIPMENT 

EQUIPMENT PURCHASED EQUIPMENT MFGR. EQUIPMENT NO. 

COST: = $ 

TAX (LOCAL RATE: ______%): = $ 

FREIGHT: = $ 

GRAND TOTAL: = $ 

DOWN PAYMENT: = $ 

MONTHLY PAYMENTS: 

$ ______________________________________ 
Includes principal plus interest at 18% per annum

NO. OF MONTHS: _____ 
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1 

Independent Auditor�s Report 

Board of Directors 
Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Opinion 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 
(Successor Company), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and 
2022, the related consolidated statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the period from July 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 
(Successor Period), and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. We have also audited 
the consolidated financial statements of CNA Holding Corporation and Subsidiaries (Predecessor 
Company), which comprise the consolidated statements of income, changes in equity, and cash flows for 
the period from January 1, 2021 through June 30, 2021 (Predecessor Period), and the related notes to 
the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of the Predecessor 
Company and the Successor Company and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements are 
collectively referred to herein as the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the results 
of their operations and their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the 
Successor Period, and the results of CNA Holding Corporation and Subsidiaries operations and their 
cash flows for the Predecessor Period, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor�s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Successor Company and Predecessor Company and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 
As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, on June 30, 2021, the Successor Company entered 
into a Stock Purchase Agreement, which resulted in the purchase of 100% of the equity interests of the 
Predecessor Company leading to predecessor/successor financial reporting. As a result of these different 
bases of accounting, these periods are not comparable to one another as they are effectively different 
accounting entities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management of both the Successor Company and Predecessor Company are responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance 
of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, both the Successor and the Predecessor Company�s management 
are required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Company�s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the 
date that the financial statements are issued or available to be issued.  

Auditor�s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor�s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material 
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment 
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
 
 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. 

 
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Successor Company and the Predecessor Company�s internal control. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 

accounting estimates made by Successor Company and Predecessor Company management, as 
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

 
 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that 

raise substantial doubt about the Successor Company and Predecessor Company�s ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control�related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

 
Fort Lauderdale 
March 26, 2024 
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Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 14,543,000  $            14,466,000  $            
Restricted cash 426,000                     426,000                     
Franchisees� accounts receivable, net of allowance for credit losses

of $597,000 and $201,000 in 2023 and 2022, respectively 23,922,000                21,047,000                
Inventories 610,000                     568,000                     
Current maturities of notes receivable from franchisees, net of allowance for

credit losses of $1,631,000 and $1,897,000 in 2023 and 2022, respectively 5,546,000                  5,913,000                  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,610,000                  3,930,000                  

Total current assets 47,657,000                46,350,000                

Notes receivable from franchisees, less current maturities, net of allowance for

credit losses of $440,000 and $517,000 in 2023 and 2022, respectively 1,426,000                  1,614,000                  
Equipment and leasehold improvements, net 3,949,000                  2,854,000                  
Intangible assets, net 79,006,000                91,269,000                
Goodwill 98,946,000                95,861,000                
Operating lease right of use assets, net 6,946,000                  6,398,000                  
Other assets 760,000                     988,000                     

Total assets 238,690,000  $          245,334,000  $          

Liabilities and Equity

Current liabilities:
Outstanding checks in excess of cash balances 1,332,000  $              1,068,000  $              
Accounts payable 31,123,000                32,171,000                
Accrued expenses 8,097,000                  8,449,000                  

Self-insurance reserves 1,069,000                  760,000                     
Deferred revenue 3,317,000                  3,549,000                  

Current maturities of operating lease liabilities 2,800,000                  2,219,000                  
Current maturities of long-term debt 4,249,000  5,640,000                  

Total current liabilities 51,987,000                53,856,000                

Deferred tax liabilities, net 15,414,000                20,668,000                

Operating lease liabilities, less current maturities 4,378,000                  4,292,000                  
Long-term debt, net less current maturities 95,385,000                97,341,000                

Total liabilities 167,164,000              176,157,000              

Commitments and contingencies 

Total equity 71,526,000                69,177,000                

Total liabilities and equity 238,690,000  $          245,334,000  $          

See notes to consolidated financial statements.   
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Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Income

Period From Period From

July 1, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31, December 31, December 31, 2021 June 30, 2021

2023 2022 (Successor) (Predecessor)

Revenues:

Royalty and support fees 52,641,000  $          50,121,000  $          22,683,000  $          22,100,000  $          

Franchise fees 20,177,000              19,110,000              9,227,000                8,770,000                

Other franchise revenue 19,733,000              19,221,000              8,721,000                9,030,000                

Interest income 908,000                   956,000                   470,000                   445,000  

Total revenues 93,459,000              89,408,000              41,101,000              40,345,000              

Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative expenses 59,562,000              60,082,000              26,889,000              26,775,000              

Costs of other franchise revenue 6,347,000                5,618,000                2,748,000                3,134,000                

Depreciation and amortization 12,841,000              13,044,000              6,480,000                2,536,000                

Total operating expenses 78,750,000              78,744,000              36,117,000              32,445,000  

Operating income 14,709,000              10,664,000              4,984,000                7,900,000                

Interest expense, net 12,505,000              9,712,000                4,186,000                791,000  

Income before income taxes 2,204,000                952,000                   798,000                   7,109,000  

Income tax expense (benefit) 141,000                   339,000                   (952,000)                 960,000  

Net income 2,063,000  $            613,000  $               1,750,000  $            6,149,000  $            

See notes to consolidated financial statements.   
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Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

Additional

Common Stock Paid-In Retained

Shares Amount Capital Earnings Total

Balance, December 31, 2020 18,000,000         180,000  $          39,382,000  $     17,064,000  $     56,626,000  $     

Net income -                      -                      -                      6,149,000           6,149,000           

Balance, June 30, 2021 (Predecessor) 18,000,000         180,000  $          39,382,000  $     23,213,000  $     62,775,000  $     

Total

Equity (Deficit)

Balance, July 1, 2021 (Successor) (4,683,000)  $      

Capital contribution 71,253,000         

Share-based compensation 77,000                

Net income 1,750,000           

Balance, December 31, 2021 68,397,000         

Share-based compensation 167,000              

Net income 613,000              

Balance, December 31, 2022 69,177,000         

Capital contribution 120,000              

Share-based compensation 174,000              

Repurchase of profit interest units (8,000)                 

Net income 2,063,000           

Balance, December 31, 2023 71,526,000  $     
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Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Period From Period From

July 1, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31, December 31, December 31, 2021 June 30, 2021

2023 2022 (Successor) (Predecessor)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income 2,063,000  $          613,000  $             1,750,000  $              6,149,000  $              

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 577,000                 791,000                 416,000                     461,000                     

Amortization of debt issuance costs 568,000                 568,000                 240,000                     -                             

Amortization of intangibles 12,263,000            12,253,000            6,063,000                  2,076,000                  

Deferred income taxes (5,254,000)             (3,496,000)             (2,182,000)                 (1,517,000)                 

Share-based compensation 174,000  167,000                 77,000                       -                             

Loss on disposal of equipment and leasehold

improvements -                         5,000                     -                             10,000                       

Change in operating lease of right of use assets 3,111,000              2,215,000              -                             -                             

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable (2,381,000)             (3,285,000)             216,000                     (176,000)                    

Inventories (38,000)                  11,000                   (15,000)                      7,000                         

Notes receivable 713,000  606,000                 1,056,000                  (688,000)                    

Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,345,000              (55,000)                  (1,127,000)                 (776,000)                    

Other assets 244,000                 134,000                 9,000                         (180,000)                    

  Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable (1,548,000)             7,339,000              95,000                       232,000                     

Accrued expenses (411,000)                244,000                 (3,947,000)                 629,000                     

Deferred revenue (232,000)                (376,000)                (2,119,000)                 340,000                     

Self-insurance reserves 309,000                 (325,000)                (67,000)                      (124,000)                    

Operating lease liabilities (2,992,000)             (2,148,000)             -                             -                             

Net cash provided by operating activities 8,511,000              15,261,000            465,000                     6,443,000                  

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of equipment and leasehold improvements (1,672,000)             (2,403,000)             (275,000)                    (154,000)                    

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired and net working capital (3,223,000)             (10,708,000)           (159,182,000)             (64,000)                      

Net cash used in investing activities (4,895,000)             (13,111,000)           (159,457,000)             (218,000)                    

Cash flows from financing activities:

Increase (decrease) in outstanding checks in excess of

cash balances 264,000                 (1,209,000)             (483,000)                    (421,000)                    

Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings 1,560,000              8,580,000              100,000,000              -                             

Payment on debt issuance costs -                         -                         (2,844,000)                 -                             

Principal payments on long-term debt (5,475,000)             (3,188,000)             (375,000)                    (6,080,000)                 

Net repayments on line of credit -                         -                         -                             (2,000,000)                 

Capital contributions 120,000                 -                         71,253,000                -                             

Repurchase of profit interest units (8,000)                    -                         -                             -                             

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (3,539,000)             4,183,000              167,551,000              (8,501,000)                 

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents 77,000                   6,333,000              8,559,000                  (2,276,000)                 

   and restricted cash

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash:

Beginning 14,892,000            8,559,000              -                             6,820,000                  

Ending 14,969,000  $        14,892,000  $        8,559,000  $              4,544,000  $              

(Continued)  
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Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

Period From Period From

July 1, 2021 January 1, 2021

Year Ended Year Ended Through Through

December 31, December 31, December 31, 2021 June 30, 2021

2023 2022 (Successor) (Predecessor)

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid for interest 9,882,000  $          6,390,000  $          1,995,000  $              845,000  $                 

Cash paid for taxes 3,928,000  $          4,384,000  $          2,022,000  $              1,692,000  $              

Supplemental disclosures of noncash operating

  and financing activities:

Right of use asset and operating lease liabilities

recorded on the adoption on ASC 842 -$                       7,025,000  $          -$                           -$                           

Right of use assets obtained in exchange for new

operating lease liabilities 3,659,000  $          1,136,000  $          -$                           -$                           

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of business: Coverall Acquisition, LLC (the Company or Coverall Acquisition) was formed as 
a limited liability company in the State of Delaware on June 4, 2021. The Company began operations 
on June 30, 2021, through its acquisition of CNA Acquisition, LLC and its wholly owned subsidiaries 
(the Sellers or CNA). 

The Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the �Company� doing 
business as �Coverall Health-Based Cleaning Systems�) is a sales and marketing company engaged in 
the business of selling franchises, equipment, supplies, and procuring commercial cleaning customers. 
The Company sells three types of franchises: Service (Master), Territory and Janitorial. Masters are 
licensed to implement the Company�s business model in an exclusive territory: selling, training and 
supporting Janitorial franchises, and procuring customer accounts. Masters pay the Company royalties on 
their business revenue. Territory franchises are licensed to use the �Coverall� marks in the operations of a 
commercial janitorial business in an exclusive territory. Territory franchises are responsible to procure and 
service their own cleaning customers and pay the Company a royalty on their gross revenue. 
 
Janitorial franchisees are licensed to use the �Coverall� marks and system in the service of commercial 
cleaning customers. The Company provides the Janitorial franchisee with an initial book of customers to 
service; training, billing and collection services; and ongoing support in exchange for a franchise fee and 
ongoing royalty and support fees. The current franchise term is 20 years with a renewal option. 
 
The Company provides financing for its Janitorial franchisees� initial franchise fee, purchases of additional 
business and equipment. The Company conducts its business in company-owned support centers 
throughout the United States of America (U.S.). The Company�s Master, Territory and Janitorial 
franchises are located in various regions in the U.S. Internationally the Company has Master franchisees 
operating in Canada and Asia. 
 
The Company procures janitorial service contracts with commercial customers and then assigns the right 
to service the customers to its Janitorial franchisees. 
 
On January 31, 2022, the Company, acquired all the outstanding equity interest of Warjon, Inc. (Warjon) 
for total consideration of approximately $10,798,000 as more fully discussed in Note 2. 
 
On May 31, 2023, the Company, acquired all the outstanding equity interest of R. & B. Services, Inc. 
(R&B) for total consideration of approximately $3,223,000 as more fully discussed in Note 2. 
 
A summary of the Company�s significant accounting policies follows: 
 
Basis of presentation: As further discussed in Note 2, on June 30, 2021, the Company entered into a 
Stock Purchase Agreement, which resulted in the purchase of 100% of the equity interests of the Sellers. 
The consolidated statements present the consolidated results of operations of Coverall Acquisition and 
its wholly owned subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to collectively as the Company) for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the period from July 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021 
(Successor Period), and the consolidated results of operations of CNA for the period from January 1, 
2021 through June 30, 2021 (Predecessor Period). As a result of these different bases of accounting, 
these periods are not comparable to one another as they are effectively different accounting entities. 
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The significant differences to the consolidated statements of income and cash flows include depreciation 
and amortization of certain tangible and intangible assets recorded at fair value as of June 30, 2021, 
certain expenses related to the transaction and interest expense from acquisition debt. The significant 
differences to the consolidated balance sheet include adjustments to certain assets and liabilities, which 
were adjusted to fair value as of June 30, 2021, and adjustments to debt and equity associated with the 
post-acquisition capital structure. 
 
Principles of consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts 
of Coverall Acquisition, LLC and its wholly owned Subsidiaries: CNA Acquisition, LLC, CNA Holding 
Corporation, Coverall North America, Inc. and Melton Franchise Systems, Inc. All material intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In March 2022, the operations of 
Melton Franchise Systems, Inc. were merged with Coverall North America, Inc.  
 
Use of estimates: The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported 
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could differ 
from those estimates reported. 
 
Revenue recognition: The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers, which provides a five-step model for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers 
as follows: 
 
 Identify the contract with a customer 
 Identify the performance obligations in the contract 
 Determine the transaction price 
 Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract 
 Recognize revenue when or as performance obligations are satisfied 

 
The core principle of the standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. In addition, the standard requires 
disclosure of the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts 
with customers.  
 
Royalty and support fees: The Janitorial franchisee pays the Company royalty fees of 5% and support 
fees (primarily for customer billing and collection services) of 10%. Royalty and support fees are based on 
monthly janitorial services billings to the customers of the franchisees. The Master franchisees pay the 
Company royalty fees of 5.5% of business revenue and a percentage of defined service revenue 
according to volume achieved. Royalties from Master and Territory franchisees are recognized based on 
reported or estimated monthly sales activity. 
 
Franchise fees: The Company sells franchises and is obligated to provide the Janitorial franchisee with 
an initial minimum janitorial revenue base (depending upon the size of the package purchased) and 
training. The current franchise term is 20 years with a renewal option. 
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of franchises and the sale of additional business 
(janitorial services contracts) after all material obligations relating to the sale have been substantially 
performed or satisfied by the Company and collectability of the financed portion of sale is reasonably 
assured. Outstanding performance obligations under the Janitorial franchise agreement are included in 
deferred revenue. 
 
The Company enters into Master franchise agreements, which grant the Master franchisee the right to 
implement the Company�s business model in an exclusive territory. The term of these agreements is 
20 years with provision for renewal. Under the terms of the Master franchise agreements, the Company is 
obligated to train the Master franchisee, provide software and disclosure document templates, marketing, 
site and equipment selection, staff selection and training. The Company recognizes revenue from the sale 
of Master franchises when the significant initial obligations are completed and when the Master 
franchisee has paid or is deemed to have the financial ability to pay the Master franchisee fee. 
 
The Initial Franchise Fee covers the initial business package, introductory training, as well as providing 
the franchise right, which gives the franchisee the right to use the Company�s symbolic intellectual 
property (IP). Under ASC 606, two or more goods or services (e.g. initial business package, training and 
the franchise right sold to the franchisee) are distinct from each other, and therefore, separate 
performance obligations, when they are not in effect inputs to a single combined item that is the output of 
the contract. The Company has determined that the initial business package and training services 
provided, are the defined separate performance obligations. The portion of the initial franchise fee 
attributable to the symbolic intellectual property is de minimis. 
 
Deferred revenues were established for initial training not yet completed. The Company has evaluated 
the value of training, based on the cost inputs, which include wages, equipment, content, materials, and 
travel costs, and has determined that they equate to the remainder of total Initial Franchisee fee after 
considering the value of the customer base sold. 
 
Other franchise revenues: Janitorial franchisees, at their discretion, may purchase chemicals, supplies 
and equipment from the Company. Revenues from goods sold to franchisees by the Company are 
recognized when goods are shipped. The Company makes available certain insurance programs for its 
Janitorial franchisees for a fee. Participation in these programs is optional. 
 
Sales commission: Incremental costs of obtaining a contract should be capitalized as assets at 
inception of the contract. The Company capitalized the commission for initial franchise sales and 
amortized over the average tenure of a Franchisee. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid instruments purchased 
with original maturity of three months or less. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts 
which, at times, may exceed federally-insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in 
such accounts. 
 
Restricted cash: Restricted funds represent cash collateral as a guarantee for an outstanding letter of 
credit required by the State of Illinois and funds reserved for settlements of, or satisfaction of judgments 
related to, certain litigation as discussed in Note 8. 
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash consists of the following at December 31, 2023 and 2022: 
 

2023 2022

Cash and cash equivalents 14,543,000  $   14,466,000  $   
Restricted cash 426,000            426,000            

14,969,000  $   14,892,000  $   
 

 
Franchisees accounts receivable and accounts payable: The Company, as billing and collection 
agent for Janitorial Franchisees, records janitorial services billed on behalf of the franchisee as 
Franchisees� accounts receivable net of management�s estimates of uncollectible accounts based on 
historical experience. Remittances to franchisees, net of amounts due the Company for royalty and 
support fees, financing payments and other amounts due to the Company, are recorded as accounts 
payable. 
 
Changes in the Company�s allowance for credit losses are as follows for the year ended December 31, 
2023: 
 

Successor Predecessor

2023 2022 Period Period 2020

Balance at beginning of period 201,000  $           56,000  $             -$                     825,000  $           453,000  $           

Bad debt expense (recovery) 396,000               145,000               56,000                 (108,000)              372,000               

Balance at end of period 597,000  $           201,000  $           56,000  $             717,000  $           825,000  $           
 

 
Notes receivable from franchisees: U.S. GAAP requires entities to disclose the nature of credit risk 
inherent in financing receivables, the procedure for analyzing that credit risk and assessing credit risk in 
arriving at the allowance for credit losses and the changes and reasons for those changes in both the 
receivables and the allowance for credit losses by portfolio segment and class. The Company only has 
one class of financing receivables, which are homogeneous, and of similar credit quality. 
 
Notes receivable from franchisees are carried at amounts management believes are collectible. The 
Company determines the allowance for doubtful accounts based on a combination of historical 
experience, aging analysis, and information on specific accounts. Interest income on notes receivables 
from franchisees is recognized using the interest method. The Company�s policy is to suspend 
recognition of interest income on notes receivables when the receivable is 90 days or more past due on a 
contractual basis. Charges for late fees and insufficient fund fees are recognized as income when 
collected. Past due status is based on the contractual terms of the promissory note agreements. 
 
Inventories: Inventories, consisting primarily of cleaning supplies and equipment, are stated at the lower 
of cost and net realizable value using the first in first out (FIFO) cost method. Net realizable value is 
defined as estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less disposal and transportation. 
The Company determines inventory reserves by regularly reviewing and evaluating individual inventory 
items and their movement history. Inventory is reserved when deemed obsolete or unsellable. As of 
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company determined that there was no reserve needed for slow-
moving inventory. 
 
 



Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

12 

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Equipment and leasehold improvements: Purchases of equipment and leasehold improvements are 
stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Major improvements that substantially extend an asset�s 
useful life are capitalized. Repairs, maintenance, and minor improvements are charged to operations as 
incurred. Leasehold costs and improvements are amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful lives 
or the remaining lease terms. Equipment and leasehold improvements acquired through business 
combination transactions were recorded at fair value on the date of the acquisition. Depreciation is 
charged to expense over the estimated useful lives of the related assets and is computed using the 
straight-line method, which range from two to five years. 
 
Concentration of credit risk: Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to 
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash, accounts receivable, and notes receivable. 
Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable and notes receivable are limited due to 
the Company�s large number of franchisees and their dispersion across several geographic areas as well 
as industries. 
 
Debt issuance costs: Debt issuance costs in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets represent 
the cost of obtaining financing arrangements. Debt issuance costs related to the delayed draw term loan, 
and revolving lines of credit are being amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the 
related debt agreement. Debt issuance costs related to the term loan are being amortized using the 
effective interest method over the term of the related debt agreement. The debt issuance costs related to 
a recognized debt liability are presented in the consolidated balance sheets as a direct deduction from the 
carrying amount of the debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, 
debt issuance costs being recorded as a discount on related debt amounted to approximately $1,467,000 
and $2,036,000, respectively, net of accumulated amortization. Interest expense related to the amortization 
of debt issuance costs for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the successor and 
predecessor periods was approximately $568,000, $568,000, $240,000, and $0, respectively. 
 
Advertising: The Company expenses advertising and promotion costs as incurred. Advertising expense 
totaled approximately $40,000, $75,000, $24,000, and $63,000, for the years ended December 31, 2023 
and 2022 and for the successor and predecessor periods, respectively. These costs are included within 
selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. 
 
Share-based compensation: The Company accounts for share-based compensation pursuant to 
accounting guidance that requires the measurement and recognition of compensation expense at the fair 
value of the share-based awards as of the grant date. Compensation expense for share-based awards to 
key employees and managers are recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period. 
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the successor and predecessor periods, the 
Company recorded approximately $174,000, $167,000, $77,000, and $0, respectively, of noncash 
compensation expenses for units awarded and vested. The Company accounts for forfeitures as they 
occur. 
 
Business combinations: Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination 
are recorded at fair value at the acquisition date. Management, in consultation with an independent 
third-party valuation expert, estimated fair values based on assumptions they believe to be reasonable 
and representative of those from the perspective of a market participant. These estimates are based on 
historical experience and information obtained from the management of the acquired entities. The 
Company accounts for revenue contracts acquired in a business combination in accordance with 
ASC 606. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as operating expenses when incurred and when the 
related services have been received and are included within selling, general, and administrative expenses 
on the accompanying consolidated statements of income. 
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in 
which the business combination occurs, the Company reports provisional amounts for the items for which 
the accounting is incomplete. During the measurement period, which does not exceed one year, the 
Company retrospectively adjusts the provisional amounts recognized at the acquisition date or recognizes 
additional assets or liabilities to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that 
existed as of the acquisition date and, if known, would have affected the measurement of the amounts 
recognized as of that date. 
 
Goodwill: Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the value assigned to identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination. 

The Company is required to assess goodwill for impairment annually, or more frequently, if circumstances 
indicate impairment may have occurred. The Company performs its impairment assessment annually. 
The goodwill impairment test is a two-step test to determine whether the carrying value of goodwill 
exceeds its implied fair value. If it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment exists, the Company 
must perform step two of the impairment test. Under step two, an impairment loss is recognized for any 
excess of carrying value over the implied fair value of that goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is 
determined based on the difference between the fair value of the reporting unit and the identifiable assets 
and liabilities of the reporting unit. No indicators of impairment were identified during the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the successor and predecessor periods. 

Intangible assets: Intangible assets consist of the Company�s trademark and franchisee relationships, 
which are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, which range from 9 to 15 years. 

Impairment of long-lived assets: The Company evaluates the recoverability of its long-lived assets, 
including amortizable intangible assets, if circumstances indicate impairment may have occurred. This 
analysis is performed by comparing the respective carrying values of the assets to the current and 
expected future cash flows, on an undiscounted basis, to be generated from such assets. If such analysis 
indicates that the carrying value of these assets is not recoverable; the carrying value of such assets is 
reduced to fair value. No indicators of impairment were identified during the years ended December 31, 
2023 and 2022 and the successor and predecessor periods. 

Fair value measurements: The Company has adopted the Fair Value Measurement guidance for all 
assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the consolidated financial statements. 
The guidance defines fair value as the price that would be received upon sale of an asset or paid upon 
transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in 
the principal or most advantageous market for that asset or liability. The fair value should be calculated 
based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, not on 
assumptions specific to the entity. 

In determining the appropriate levels, the Company performs a detailed analysis of the assets and 
liabilities that are subject to the guidance. The guidance provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the 
inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to 
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and 
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). Valuations performed maximize the 
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined as follows: 

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or 
liabilities in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date. 

Level 2: Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices in markets that are not active or 
quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial 
instrument. 

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable, reflecting the entity�s own assumptions 
about assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. 

 
Income taxes: The Company is a single-member limited liability company which is disregarded for 
federal and state income tax purposes. All income tax liabilities and/or benefits associated with the 
Company�s operations are passed through to the member. However, a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company is a taxable entity and as such accounts for income taxes in accordance with the FASB 
ASC 740, Income Taxes. 
 
Deferred income taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for 
deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards and deferred tax 
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences 
between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are 
reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that 
some portion of or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. All deferred income 
tax assets and liabilities are presented as noncurrent for all periods presented in the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon 
examination by the taxing authorities, while others are subject to uncertainty about the merits of the 
position taken or the amount of the position that would ultimately be sustained. As it relates to the 
Company�s accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, the benefit of a tax position is recognized in the 
consolidated financial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence, 
management believes it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained upon examination, 
including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not offset or 
aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold 
are measured as the largest amount of tax benefit that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon 
settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits associated with tax positions 
that exceeds the amount measured as described above (if any) would be reflected as a liability for 
unrecognized tax benefits in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
 
In the event the Company were to recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions, it 
would be recognized in the consolidated financial statements as income tax expense. The Company did 
not have any uncertain tax positions that would affect the consolidated results of operations and financial 
position for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the successor and predecessor periods. 
 



Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

15 

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Loss contingencies: Certain conditions may exist as of the date the consolidated financial statements 
are issued. Such conditions may result in a loss to the Company but will only be resolved when one or 
more future events occur or fail to occur. The Company assesses such contingent liabilities, and such 
assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal 
proceedings that are pending against the Company or unasserted claims that may result in such 
proceedings, the Company evaluates, with the assistance of its legal counsel, the perceived merits of any 
legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or 
expected to be sought therein. In the event a loss contingency is subject to certain indemnification 
agreements, the Company recognizes an asset related to an indemnification recovery only when 
realization is deemed probable, and only to the extent of the related loss recognized in the consolidated 
financial statements. All loss contingency accruals and related indemnification assets are included on the 
accompanying consolidated balance sheets in accrued expenses and prepaid expenses as of 
December 31, 2023 and 2022. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there are approximately $0 and 
$28,000, respectively, of loss contingencies in accrued expenses and no prepaid assets for indemnified 
cases. There were no loss contingencies as of December 31, 2023. 
 
Leases: The Company determines if an arrangement is or contains a lease at inception, which is the date 
on which the terms of the contract are agreed to, and the agreement creates enforceable rights and 
obligations. A contract is or contains a lease when (i) explicitly or implicitly identified assets have been 
deployed in the contract and (ii) the customer obtains substantially all of the economic benefits from the 
use of that underlying asset and directs how and for what purpose the asset is used during the term of the 
contract. The Company also considers whether its service arrangements include the right to control the 
use of an asset. 

The Company recognizes most leases on its balance sheets as a right-of-use (ROU) asset representing 
the right to use an underlying asset and a lease liability representing the obligation to make lease 
payments over the lease term, measured on a discounted basis. Leases are classified as either finance 
leases or operating leases based on certain criteria. Classification of the lease affects the pattern of 
expense recognition in the income statement. 

The Company made an accounting policy election available not to recognize ROU assets and lease 
liabilities for leases with a term of 12 months or less. For all other leases, ROU assets and lease liabilities 
are measured based on the present value of future lease payments over the lease term at the 
commencement date of the lease (or January 1, 2022, for existing leases upon the adoption of ASC 
Topic 842, Leases). The ROU assets also include any initial direct costs incurred and lease payments 
made at or before the commencement date and are reduced by any lease incentives received. To 
determine the present value of lease payments, the Company made an accounting policy election 
available to non-public companies to utilize a risk-free borrowing rate, which is aligned with the lease term 
at the lease commencement date (or remaining term for leases existing upon the adoption of Topic 842). 

Future lease payments may include fixed-rent escalation clauses or payments that depend on an index 
(such as the consumer price index), which is initially measured using the index or rate at lease 
commencement. Subsequent changes of an index and other periodic market-rate adjustments to base 
rent are recorded in variable lease expense in the period incurred. Residual value guarantees or 
payments for terminating the lease are included in the lease payments only when it is probable they will 
be incurred. 
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Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The Company has made an accounting policy election to account for lease and nonlease components in 
its contracts as a single lease component for its real estate, vehicle and equipment asset classes. The 
nonlease components typically represent additional services transferred to the Company, such as 
common area maintenance for real estate, which are variable in nature and recorded in variable lease 
expense in the period incurred. 

Accounting pronouncements adopted: In April 2020, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
(FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848). The 
FASB issued ASU 2020-04 to provide optional expedients and exceptions for applying U.S. GAAP to 
contract modifications, hedging relationships and other transactions affected by the anticipated transition 
away from London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). The Company adopted ASU 2020-04 effective 
January 1, 2023. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the accompanying 
financial statements. 
 
In June 2016, the FASB issued guidance (FASB ASC 326) which significantly changed how entities will 
measure credit losses for most financial assets and certain other instruments that aren�t measured at fair 
value through net income. The most significant change in this standard is a shift from the incurred loss 
model to the expected loss model. Under the standard, disclosures are required to provide users of the 
financial statements with useful information in analyzing an entity�s exposure to credit risk and the 
measurement of credit losses. Financial assets held by the company that are subject to the guidance in 
FASB ASC 326 were trade accounts receivable and notes receivable. The Company adopted the 
standard effective January 1, 2023. The impact of the adoption was not considered material to the 
financial statements due to the short duration of customers� trade receivables and notes receivable. The 
Company does not have any available-for-sale debt securities. 
 
Subsequent events: Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 26, 2024, which is 
the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. 
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Note 2. Business Combinations 

R & B 
On May 31, 2023, the Company acquired 100% all the outstanding equity interests of R & B for total 
consideration of approximately $3,223,000. The transaction was primarily funded through $2,500,000 in 
long-term debt borrowings and cash of approximately $500,000, net of aggregate transaction costs, and 
working capital adjustment amounting to approximately $223,000.  
 
The business combination was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Under the 
acquisition method of accounting, the results of operations of the acquired business are included in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. The net assets acquired 
were adjusted to their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. 
 
The components of the preliminary purchase price allocation are summarized in the following table, 
based on the information available to management through the issuance date of the consolidated 
financial statements: 
 
Franchisees� accounts receivable 494,000  $          
Notes receivable from franchisees 158,000              
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 25,000                
Inventory 4,000                  
Other assets 16,000                
Goodwill 3,085,000           

Total assets acquired 3,782,000           

Accounts payable 500,000              
Accrued expenses 59,000                

Total liabilities assumed 559,000              
Net assets acquired 3,223,000  $       

 
 
The business combination described was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. 
Under the acquisition method of accounting the results of operations of the acquired business are 
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition forward. The 
total purchase price has been allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with the 
acquisition based on their estimated fair values. 
 
The purchase price of $3,223,000 exceeded the fair value of net assets acquired. Accordingly, the 
Company recognized the excess of purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of acquired 
$3,085,000 as goodwill. The goodwill arises from the cumulative processes, procedures and knowledge 
of the Company�s workforce. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. 
The fair value of the remaining assets acquired and liabilities assumed were not significantly different 
from their carrying value. 
 
Acquired notes receivable, of approximately $158,000, consists of gross contractual receivables with no 
reduction for contractual cash flows as management deemed all receivables to be collectible. Acquired 
franchisees� accounts receivable, of approximately $494,000, consists of gross contractual receivables of 
with no reduction for contractual cash flows as management deemed all receivables to be collectible. 
 
In connection with the acquisition, the Company incurred transaction costs of approximately $36,000 
which were expensed as incurred, and included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2023. 
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Note 2. Business Combinations (Continued) 

Warjon 
On January 31,2022, the Company acquired 100% all the outstanding equity interests of Warjon for total 
consideration of approximately $10,798,000. The transaction was primarily funded through $8,580,000 in 
long-term debt borrowings and cash of approximately $1,918,000, net of aggregate transaction costs, and 
working capital adjustment amounting to approximately $300,000. 

The business combination was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Under the 
acquisition method of accounting, the results of operations of the acquired business are included in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. The net assets acquired 
were adjusted to their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition.  
 
The components of the preliminary purchase price allocation are summarized in the following table, 
based on the information available to management through the issuance date of the consolidated 
financial statements: 
 
Cash 90,000  $            
Franchisees� accounts receivable 1,283,000           
Notes receivable from franchisees 827,000              
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23,000                
Other assets 106,000              
Equipment and leasehold improvements 56,000                
Operating right of use assets 498,000              
Goodwill 10,046,000         

Total assets acquired 12,929,000         

Accounts payable 1,310,000           
Accrued expenses 323,000              
Operating lease liabilities 498,000              

Total liabilities assumed 2,131,000           
Net assets acquired 10,798,000  $     

 
The business combination described was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. 
Under the acquisition method of accounting the results of operations of the acquired business are 
included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition forward. The 
total purchase price has been allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed in connection with the 
acquisition based on their estimated fair values. 
 
Acquired notes receivable, of approximately $827,000, consists of gross contractual receivables of 
approximately $877,000 after reduction for approximately $50,000 for contractual cash flows that are 
estimated to be uncollectible. Acquired franchisees� accounts receivable, of approximately $1,283,000, 
consists of gross contractual receivables of approximately $1,292,000 after reduction for $9,000 of 
contractual cash flows that are estimated to be uncollectible. 
 
The purchase price of $10,798,000 exceeded the fair value of net assets acquired. Accordingly, the 
Company recognized the excess of purchase price over the fair value of the net assets of acquired 
$10,046,000 as goodwill. The goodwill arises from the cumulative processes, procedures and knowledge 
of the Company�s workforce. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. 
The fair value of the remaining assets acquired and liabilities assumed were not significantly different 
from their carrying value. 
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Note 2. Business Combinations (Continued) 

In connection with the acquisition, the Company incurred transaction costs of approximately $40,000, 
which were expensed as incurred, and included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

CNA Acquisition, LLC 
On June 30, 2021, by the effects of an Asset Purchase Agreement, the Company, purchased all the 
outstanding equity of CNA Acquisition, LLC, in exchange for total consideration of $163,726,000, after 
working capital adjustments. The consideration transferred was funded through capital contributions of 
approximately $71,253,000 and debt with a third-party lender of approximately $92,473,000, net of 
transaction expenses and deferred financing costs of $4,683,000 and $2,844,000, respectively. 

The business combination was accounted for under the acquisition method of accounting. Under the 
acquisition method of accounting, the results of operations of the acquired business are included in the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. The net assets acquired 
were adjusted to their estimated fair values as of the date of acquisition. 
 
The components of the preliminary purchase price allocation are summarized in the following table, 
based on the information available to management through the issuance date of the consolidated 
financial statements: 
 
Cash 4,037,000  $       
Restricted cash 507,000              
Franchisees� accounts receivable 16,695,000         
Inventories 564,000              
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,725,000           
Notes receivable from franchisees 8,362,000           
Equipment and leasehold improvements 1,332,000           
Intangible assets 109,585,000       
Goodwill 84,485,000         
Other assets 1,025,000           

Total assets acquired 229,317,000       

Outstanding checks in excess of cash balances 2,760,000           
Accounts payable 23,427,000         
Accrued expenses 7,192,000           
Self-insurance reserves 1,152,000  
Deferred revenue 6,044,000           
Deferred tax-liabilities, net 25,016,000          

Total liabilities assumed 65,591,000          
Net assets acquired 163,726,000  $    

 
Acquired notes receivable, of approximately $8,362,000, consists of gross contractual receivables of 
approximately $12,161,000 after reduction for approximately $3,712,000 in fair value adjustments and 
approximately $87,000 for contractual cash flows that are estimated to be uncollectible. Acquired 
franchisees� accounts receivable, of approximately $16,695,000, consists of gross contractual receivables 
of approximately $17,424,000 after reduction for $729,000 of contractual cash flows that are estimated to 
be uncollectible. 
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Note 2. Business Combinations (Continued) 

The fair values of the intangible assets acquired, consisted of $5,110,000 in trademark assets, 
$80,700,000 in janitorial franchise relationships and $23,775,000 in master franchise relationships, which 
were estimated by applying discounted cash flow models. The fair value measurements were based on 
significant inputs that are not observable (Level 3). Management, in consultation with independent third-
party valuation experts, estimates fair values based upon market participant assumptions they believed to 
be reasonable. These estimates are based on historical experience and information obtained from 
management. Critical estimates in valuing certain of the intangible assets include future expected cash 
flows from revenue, assumptions about the period of time the acquired intangible assets will continue to 
be used by the Company, and discount rates applied to the expected cash flows. The assumptions made 
by management in determining the fair value included a discount rate based on a weighted-average cost 
of capital of 19.1%, an estimated average growth rate of 3%, an estimated attrition rate for franchisee 
relationships of 14% and a royalty rate of 1.0%. 
 
The purchase price of $163,726,000 exceeded the preliminary fair value of the net assets acquired. 
Accordingly, the Company recognized the excess of purchase price over the fair value of the net assets 
of $84,485,000 as goodwill. The goodwill arises from the cumulative processes, procedures and 
knowledge of the Company�s workforce. None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax 
purposes. 
 
In connection with the acquisition, the Company incurred transaction costs of $4,683,000, which were 
expensed as incurred and included in the accompanying consolidated statements of changes in equity as 
opening equity as of July 1, 2021. 
 
The carrying value of goodwill as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows: 
 
Goodwill at December 31, 2020 59,085,000  $     
Measurement period adjustment 64,000                
Goodwill at June 30, 2021 59,149,000  $     

Goodwill at July 1, 2021 84,485,000  $     
Change in carrying amount -                      
Goodwill at December 31, 2021 84,485,000         
Measurement period adjustment 1,330,000           
Goodwill recognized in acquisition of Warjon 10,046,000         
Goodwill at December 31, 2022 95,861,000         
Goodwill recognized in acquisition of R&B 3,085,000           
Goodwill at December 31, 2023 98,946,000  $     
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Note 3. Notes Receivable from Franchisees 

The notes receivable from franchisees represent the Company�s financing of the initial franchise fees 
and the sale of additional business volume and equipment to Janitorial franchise owners. The Janitorial 
franchisee notes receivable are due generally over 12 to 36 months with interest primarily at 12% per 
annum. Janitorial franchisee notes are unsecured. Equipment notes are due generally over 12 to 
24 months, with interest primarily at 18% per annum. Master franchisee notes receivable are due 
generally over 60 months, with interest ranging from 7% to 12% per annum. The Company has the right 
to reclaim the territory from the master franchisee under certain defined circumstances in the service 
franchise agreement. 

Notes receivable as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, are as follows: 

2023 2022

Notes receivable 9,043,000  $     9,941,000  $     
Less allowance for credit losses 2,071,000         2,414,000         

6,972,000         7,527,000         
Less current maturities 5,546,000         5,913,000         
Notes receivable, long-term 1,426,000  $     1,614,000  $     

 

Notes receivable as of December 31, 2023, are scheduled to be repaid as follows: 

Years ending December 31:
2024 7,105,000  $     
2025 1,804,000         
2026 134,000            

9,043,000  $     
 

An aging analysis of past due financing receivables as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is as follows: 

2023 2022

Current 8,490,000  $     9,174,000  $     
30-60 days past due 362,000            327,000            
61-90 days past due 74,000              164,000            
Greater than 90 days 117,000            276,000            

9,043,000  $     9,941,000  $     
 

The Company provides an allowance for credit losses accounts based upon the anticipated collectability 
of each specific account. A summary of the changes in the allowance for credit losses for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the successor and predecessor periods is as follows: 

Successor Predecessor
2023 2022 Period Period

Balance at beginning of period 2,414,000  $        178,000  $           -$                     3,176,000  $        
Write-offs (750,000)              (129,000)              -                       (180,000)              
Provisions 407,000               2,365,000            178,000               136,000               

Balance at end of period 2,071,000  $        2,414,000  $        178,000  $           3,132,000  $        
 



Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

22 

Note 4. Equipment and Leasehold Improvements 

Equipment and leasehold improvements consist of the following as of December 31, 2023 and 2022: 
 

2023 2022

Equipment 413,000  $        1,351,000  $     
Furniture and fixtures 252,000            170,000            
Leasehold improvements 84,000              78,000              
Internally developed software 139,000            365,000            
Construction in progress 3,256,000         2,015,000         

4,144,000         3,979,000         
Less accumulated depreciation 195,000            1,125,000         

3,949,000  $     2,854,000  $     

 
Depreciation expense related to equipment and leasehold improvements was approximately $577,000, 
$791,000, $416,000, and $461,000 for years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and for the successor 
and predecessor periods, respectively. 
 

Note 5. Intangible Assets 

The gross carrying amount of the definite lived intangible assets and related accumulated amortization as 
of December 31, 2023 and 2022, is summarized as follows: 
 

2023
Weighted Gross Net 

Average Useful Carrying Accumulated Carrying 
Life (Years) Amount Amortization Amount

Franchise relationships 9 104,475,000  $ 29,727,000  $   74,748,000  $   
Trademark 15 5,110,000         852,000            4,258,000         

109,585,000  $ 30,579,000  $   79,006,000  $   

2022
Weighted Gross Net 

Average Useful Carrying Accumulated Carrying 
Life (Years) Amount Amortization Amount

Franchise relationships 9 104,475,000  $ 17,805,000  $   86,670,000  $   
Trademark 15 5,110,000         511,000            4,599,000         

109,585,000  $ 18,316,000  $   91,269,000  $    
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Note 5. Intangible Assets (Continued) 

Amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the successor and 
predecessor periods, amounted to approximately $12,263,000, $12,253,000, $6,063,000, and 
$2,076,000, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company wrote off $1,163,000 
of fully amortized intangibles for the master relationship related to the purchase of the stock of Plymouth 
Ridge, Inc., d/b/a Coverall of Twin Cities, and recorded $707,000 of intangible assets for the acquired 
franchisee relationships. 
 
Future expected amortization expense as of December 31, 2023, is as follows: 
 
Years ending December 31:

2024 12,263,000  $   
2025 12,263,000       
2026 12,263,000       
2027 12,263,000       
2028 12,263,000       
Thereafter 17,691,000       

79,006,000  $    
 

Note 6. Long-Term Debt and Revolving Line of Credit 

In connection with the 2021 business combination described in Note 2, the Company entered into a credit 
facility agreement with a financial institution that contains a revolving line of credit with an aggregate 
principal amount not to exceed $7,500,000, a delayed draw term loan in the aggregate principal amount 
of $15,000,000, and a term loan in an aggregate principal amount of $100,000,000. 
 
Long-term debt consists of the following as of December 31, 2023 and 2022: 
 

2023 2022

Unsecured promissory notes (a) 1,639,000  $     1,806,000  $     
Delayed draw term loan (b) 5,976,000         6,319,000         
Term loan (c) 93,486,000       96,892,000       

101,101,000     105,017,000     
Less debt issuance costs 1,467,000         2,036,000         
Less current maturities 4,249,000         5,640,000         

95,385,000  $   97,341,000  $   
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Note 6. Long-Term Debt and Revolving Line of Credit (Continued) 

The future maturities of long-term debt as of December 31, 2023, are as follows: 
 
Years ending December 31:

2024 4,249,000  $     
2025 1,755,000         
2026 93,882,000       
2027 878,000            
2028 337,000            

101,101,000  $ 

 
(a) The Company issued various unsecured promissory notes amounting to approximately $1,639,000 

and $2,080,000, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, bearing interest ranging from 
5-6% per annum. The notes are payable in quarterly installments commencing on June 30, 2022, 
and maturing on May 31, 2028. 

 
(b) The outstanding borrowings of the delayed draw term loan bear interest at the Secured Overnight 

Financing Rate (SOFR) plus 6.50%, provided that at no time SOFR shall be less than 1.00% 
(11.27% as of December 31, 2023). The outstanding borrowings of the delayed draw term loan 
are payable quarterly installments, calculated as 0.375% times the original principal amount of 
any funded delayed draw term loan, with a final balloon principal payment equaling any unpaid 
borrowings due and payable on June 30, 2026. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were 
no amounts available to be drawn on the delayed draw term loan as the availability for additional 
funding on the credit facility expired on December 31, 2022.  

 
(c) The outstanding principal of the term loan is payable in quarterly installments of $375,000, 

commencing on October 1, 2021, with a final balloon principal payment equaling any unpaid 
borrowings due and payable on June 30, 2026. Outstanding borrowings bear interest at the 
SOFR plus 6.50%. provided that at no time LIBOR shall be less than 1.00% (11.27% as of 
December 31, 2023). 

 
The credit facilities include a mandatory prepayment in the event the Company has excess cash flows, as 
defined in the agreement. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were approximately $2,000,000 and 
$3,217,000, respectively, in prepayments required to be made as a result of an excess cash flow, which 
are included in current maturities of long-term debt in the accompanying balance sheets. Borrowings are 
collateralized by substantially all the assets of the Company. The loan agreement contains certain 
restrictive covenants requiring, among other things, the maintenance of certain minimum financial ratios. 
 
Revolving lines of credit: The outstanding principal of any revolving loans are due and payable on 
June 30, 2026. Outstanding borrowings bear interest at the SOFR rate plus 6.50%, provided that at no 
time SOFR shall be less than 1.00% (11.27% as of December 31, 2023). There are no outstanding 
borrowings of under the revolving line of credit as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. 
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Note 7. Income Taxes 

Net deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following components as of December 31, 2023 and 
2022: 
 

2023 2022
Deferred tax assets:

Transaction costs 1,016,000  $     1,118,000  $     
Accrued expenses 746,000            451,000            
Allowance for doubtful accounts 757,000            246,000            
Deferred revenue 864,000            941,000            
Self-insurance reserves 278,000            202,000            
Business interest limitation 1,685,000         1,145,000         
Other 409,000            241,000            

Total deferred tax assets 5,755,000         4,344,000         

Deferred tax liabilities:
Equipment and leasehold improvements (39,000)             (97,000)             
Intangible assets (20,640,000)      (24,504,000)      
Prepaid expenses (490,000)           (411,000)           

Total deferred tax liabilities (21,169,000)      (25,012,000)      
Net deferred tax liabilities (15,414,000)  $  (20,668,000)  $  

 
The components of the provision for (benefit from) income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2023 
and 2022, and for the successor and predecessor periods are as follows: 
 

Successor Predecessor
2023 2022 Period Period 2020

Current 5,395,000  $        3,835,000  $        1,230,000  $        2,477,000  $        3,558,000  $      
Deferred (5,254,000)           (3,496,000)           (2,182,000)           (1,517,000)           (1,378,000)         

Total income tax 
expense (benefit) 141,000  $           339,000  $           (952,000)  $          960,000  $           2,180,000  $       

 
On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act was signed into 
law. Due to the CARES Act, all employers can defer for up to two years the deposit and payment of their 
share of the social security tax on employees� wages. Amounts normally due between March 27, 2020 
and December 31, 2020, can be deferred with 50% required to be paid by December 31, 2021, and the 
remaining 50% by December 31, 2022. The Company�s remaining deferral of approximately $1,242,000 
as of December 31, 2021, was included in accrued expenses on the accompanying consolidated balance 
sheets. During the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company paid the remaining deferral of social 
security tax on employee�s wages. 
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Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Leases: The Company leases real property facilities under agreements accounted for as operating 
leases, which contain renewal, options and escalation provisions that expire on various dates through 
September 2027. The components of lease expense are as follows for the year ended December 31, 
2023 and 2022: 

2023 2022

Operating lease cost 3,111,000  $     2,215,000  $     
Short-term and variable lease cost 1,103,000         1,708,000         

Total lease cost 4,214,000  $     3,923,000  $     

Rent expense, under operating leases totaled approximately $4,214,000, $3,923,000, $1,798,000, and 
$1,747,000, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for the successor and 
predecessor periods. 

Future undiscounted cash flows for each of the next five years and thereafter and a reconciliation to the 
lease liabilities recognized on the consolidated balance sheets are as follows as of December 31, 2023: 

2024 2,939,000         
2025 1,915,000         
2026 1,385,000         
2027 1,043,000         
2028 191,000            

Total lease payments 7,473,000         
Less imputed interest (295,000)           

Total present value of lease liabilities 7,178,000  $     
 

Supplemental consolidated balance sheet information related to leases is as follows as of December 31, 
2023 and 2022: 

2023 2022
Operating leases:

Operating lease right-of-use assets 6,946,000  $     6,398,000  $     

Operating lease liabilities, current 2,800,000  $     2,219,000  $     
Operating lease liabilities, non-current 4,378,000         4,292,000         

Total operating lease liabilities 7,178,000  $     6,511,000  $     

Weighted-average remaining lease term�operating leases 3.16 years 3.33 years
Weighted-average discount rate�operating leases 1.95% 1.26%

Self-insurance programs: Effective March 1, 2005, the Company became self-insured for its general 
liability insurance; in which claims are subject to a $150,000 Company self-retention amount. Under this 
program, the estimated liability on claims incurred and claims incurred but not reported as of 
December 31, 2023 and 2022, was approximately $869,000 and $578,000, respectively. 

Effective April 1 2022, the Company became self-insured for its health plan insurance; in which claims are 
subject to a $100,000 per plan participant, per year Company self-retention amount. Under this program, 
the estimated liability on claims incurred and claims incurred but not reported as of December 31, 2023 
and 2022, was approximately $200,000 and $182,000, respectively. 
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Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

Litigation: In November 2016, a franchisee in California filed a complaint against the Company, both 
individually and on behalf of all others similarly situated, claiming that he is an employee, not an 
independent contractor, and that the Company committed certain wage and hour violations against him 
and others. The complaint attempts to assert claims against the Company for various violations under the 
state�s labor code and unfair competition laws. The plaintiff seeks, among other things, certification of a 
class, an unspecified amount of compensatory damages, civil penalties, attorney�s fees, costs, interest 
and injunctive relief ordering the Company to comply with the labor code. The court granted the 
Company�s motion to compel arbitration on April 17, 2017. The plaintiff appealed to the federal appeals 
court, and also filed an arbitration with the American Arbitration Association (AAA) on July 12, 2017. The 
AAA closed the arbitration in August 2017, when the plaintiff declined to deposit his portion of the AAA 
fees. In 2019, the appeals court dismissed the appeal for lack of jurisdiction. The plaintiff then petitioned 
the trial court to re-open the matter, and the court denied the petition. The plaintiff appealed the denial to 
the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals. The 9th Circuit remanded the case to the trial court to reconsider its 
decision in light of a specific case. The matter has been briefed with the trial court and it is considering 
whether to hold a hearing. This 9th Circuit heard Oral argument on July 7, 2020. On October 21, 2020, 
the 9th Circuit remanded the matter to the District Court to reconsider its decision on plaintiff�s motion to 
reopen the case in light of new 9th Circuit case authority. Both sides completed briefing to the District 
Court regarding the new authority, and on December 8, 2022 the District Court denied the plaintiff�s 
renewed motion to reopen the case. On December 18, 2022, Gonzalez appealed that decision to the 
9th Circuit. The appeal was heard on February 22, 2024, and the 9th Circuit has not yet issued a decision 
on the appeal. The Company disputes these claims and is vigorously defending this action. 
 
A franchisee in California filed an arbitration with the AAA on February 6, 2018, claiming that the 
Company violated various sections of the California Labor Code. The arbitration asserted claims under 
the California Private Attorney General Act (PAGA) on the franchisee�s behalf and on behalf of similarly 
situated aggrieved Coverall franchisees. The AAA closed the matter when the franchisee did not pay its 
fees, and the franchisee then filed a claim in federal court. The franchisee seeks: (i) unreimbursed 
business expenses in violation of the California Labor Code; (ii) unauthorized deductions in violation of 
the California Labor Code; and (iii) damages based on various alleged California Labor Code violations. 
The franchisee also seeks all applicable penalties pursuant to PAGA, including those due to the following 
alleged conduct: (i) charging �cleaning workers� for their jobs and failing to reimburse them for all 
necessary expenditures; (ii) failing to provide itemized wage statements in violation of the California Labor 
Code; (iii) taking unauthorized deductions from its workers� pay in violation of the California Labor Code; 
(iv) failing to pay all wages twice in each calendar month and paying them late in violation of the 
California Labor Code; and (v) failing to maintain payroll records in violation of the California Labor Code. 
The Company and the franchisee unsuccessfully attempted to mediate the claim twice. Settlement 
discussions from the 2nd mediation are continuing. The Company moved to dismiss the action. The court 
ruled to dismiss part of the claim but gave the claimant the right to revise the complaint and re-file, which 
he did. Plaintiff filed a motion for summary judgment. On November 18, 2019, the Company filed motion 
to compel arbitration based on then-recent law issued by the U.S. Supreme Court. On January 21, 2020, 
the court denied a motion by the Company to move the matter to arbitration. On February 7, 2020, the 
Company filed a notice of appeal of that denial to the 9th Circuit Court of Appeals. The 9th Circuit ruled 
that the PAGA matter was not subject to arbitration and remanded to the trial court. The Company filed a 
petition for Re-Hearing en Banc, which the 9th Circuit denied. The Company petitioned the U.S. Supreme 
Court for a writ of certiorari regarding whether the plaintiff could be compelled to arbitrate in the context of 
a PAGA claim. 
 



Coverall Acquisition, LLC and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

28 

Note 8. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued) 

On October 19, 2021, the Supreme Court asked the plaintiff�s counsel to respond to the Company�s 
petition. In December 2021, the Supreme Court agreed to hear a companion case regarding the same 
PAGA arbitration issue, and ultimately issued a decision holding that PAGA representative claims could 
be arbitrated individually and that a PAGA claim must be dismissed once an individual�s PAGA claim is 
sent to arbitration. The Supreme Court then granted the Company�s petition, reversed the 9th Circuit, and 
remanded the matter to the 9th Circuit for further proceedings. 
 
On September 21, 2022, the 9th Circuit remanded the matter to the District Court, which, on November 28, 
2022, compelled arbitration of Rivas� individual claims and dismissed Rivas� non-individual claims. On 
December 18, 2022, Rivas appealed that decision to the 9th Circuit. The appeal was heard on February 22, 
2024, and the 9th Circuit has not yet issued a decision on the appeal. The Company intends to vigorously 
defend this action, although management is unable to make an estimate on the amount or range of loss 
that could result from an unfavorable outcome on this matter. 

In January 2019, two franchisees of the Company�s Master in Connecticut filed a putative class action in 
federal court in Connecticut against the Company claiming to be employees and asserting violations of 
Connecticut employment law. The Master franchise owner owns the exclusive rights for the state of 
Connecticut to operate a Coverall business, and the Company does not have operations in the state. The 
Company filed a motion to dismiss or in the alternative to send the matter to arbitration on March 20, 
2019. After a hearing on March 6, 2020, the court denied the motion to dismiss and granted the motion to 
stay and compel arbitration of the claims. One of the claimants settled in 2023 and is no longer a party to 
this lawsuit. The Company arbitrated with the other claimant, and on February 1, 2022, the arbitrator 
issued an interim decision in favor of the claimant. The parties stipulated to damages of approximately 
$56,000 and The Company paid this amount in July 2022. Plaintiff then brought a motion with the district 
court seeking to confirm the already-paid award and make the award public. The district court granted 
that motion and Coverall subsequently appealed that decision. The appeal has been stayed pending the 
resolution of a petition for writ of certiorari in an unrelated case that has a similar question of fact. The 
Company contends that Plaintiff is wrong in their arguments and is vigorously defending its position. The 
Company feel the likelihood of an unfavorable ruling is unlikely but as this matter is more procedural than 
damage related (i.e. the unsealing of an arbitration that has already been paid), any damage exposure is 
minimal. 

In addition, the Company is also involved in litigation that arises in the ordinary course of business. While 
the Company intends to defend vigorously these actions, management is unable to make an estimate of 
the amount or range of loss that could result from an unfavorable outcome of these matters. Management 
believes that the ultimate outcome should not have a material adverse effect on the Company�s consolidated 
financial statements. 
 

Note 9. Related-Party Transactions 

On June 30, 2021, the Company entered into a five-year renewable management services agreement 
with Wellspring Capital Management, an entity related to the Company�s member, to render management, 
consulting and advisory services. The agreement requires the Company to pay a yearly monitoring fee of 
$500,000, payable quarterly in installments of $125,000, plus any other allowable reimbursable expenses. 
Monitoring fees for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the successor period were 
approximately $500,000, $500,000 and $250,000, respectively, are included in selling, general and 
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. 
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Note 9. Related-Party Transactions (Continued) 

On November 2, 2015, the CNA entered into a management agreement with ICV Capital Partners, an 
entity formerly related to CNA, for management and consulting services. During the predecessor period, 
the Company incurred $517,000 in management and consulting fees which are included on the 
accompanying consolidated statements of income in selling, general and administrative expenses. In 
connection with the 2021 business combination transaction described in Note 2, this agreement was 
terminated. 
 

Note 10. Equity Compensation 

On June 30, 2021, WCP Coverall TopCo, LLC, the Company�s Parent, adopted an equity incentive plan 
(the Plan) to provide an incentive to attract, retain and reward eligible employees and consultants and to 
motivate such persons to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Company. The profits interests 
units are granted with no exercise price or payment by the employee (grantee) and have no voting rights. 
At December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were an aggregate 79,302 units available under the plan. The 
awarded profit interest units vest in separate tranches as follows: one-third of the awarded units will vest 
over time (Time-Based Units) and two-thirds of the Awarded Units will vest subject to the satisfaction of 
certain performance conditions (Performance-Based Units). 
 
The fair value of each award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing 
model that uses the assumptions noted in the following table. The Company uses historical volatility data 
of comparable public companies for expected volatility and estimates the expected term of its incentive 
units based on the historical life of the Company�s equity. The expected term represents an estimate of 
the term the units are expected to remain outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual 
life of the option is based on the U.S. treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. 

Expected volatility 56.0%
Risk-free rate of return 0.83%
Expected option term (years) 5
Discount for lack of marketability 25%
Dividends None
 
Time-Based Units: The Time-Based Units generally vest ratably over a five-year period (as defined in 
Plan) and are subject to the grantee�s continuous employment with the Company. Any portion not vested 
as of the grantee termination date will be immediately forfeited. In the event of a change in control (as 
defined in the Plan), Time-Based Units awarded under the Plan will be deemed fully vested, subject to the 
grantee continuous employment through the change in control. 
 
Performance-Based Units: Subject to the grantee continuous employment with the Company, the 
Performance-Based Units vest in two separate tranches: 

 50% of the Performance-Based Units vest upon a change in control, as defined in the agreement, 
and if the return of the invested capital is equal to at least two times the amount of the invested 
capital and the investors realize a 15% rate of return on invested capital per annum, as defined in the 
agreement. 

 50% of the Performance-Based Units vest upon a change in control, as defined in the agreement, 
and if the return of the invested capital is equal to at least three times the amount of the invested 
capital and the investors realize a 15% rate of return on invested capital per annum, as defined in the 
agreement. 
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Note 10. Equity Compensation (Continued) 

A summary of the profits interest units outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, are presented 
below: 
 

Weighted
Weighted Average

Performance- Average Remaining
Time-Based Based Grant Date Contractual

Units Units Fair Value Term (Years)

Outstanding at July 1, 2021 -                     -                     -$                   -                     
Issued 21,681               43,362               12.91                 
Exercised -                     -                     -                     
Forfeited -                     -                     -                     

Outstanding at December 31, 2021 21,681               43,362               12.91                 4.72                   
Issued 4,760                 9,520                 17.45                 
Exercised -                     -                     -                     
Forfeited (2,513)                (5,026)                12.91                 

Outstanding at December 31, 2022 23,928               47,856               13.81                 4.25                   
Issued 631                    1,260                 17.47                 -                     
Exercised -                     -                     -                     -                     
Forfeited (397)                   (794)                   12.90                 -                     

Outstanding at December 31, 2023 23,928               47,856               13.81  $             3.02                   
 

 
The fair value of the profits interest was estimated using the fair value of the Company�s Parent utilizing a 
market approach. The fair value measurements were based on significant inputs that are not observable, 
and are considered a Level 3 item under the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the profits interest were 
determined to be approximately $33,000, $249,000 and $839,000, for all profits interests granted during 
the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and the successor period, respectively. 
 
During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the successor period, no profits interest 
vested and compensation costs related to the Time-Based Units amounting to approximately $174,000, 
$167,000 and $77,000, respectively, were charged to operations. As of December 31, 2023, unrecognized 
compensation amounted to approximately $635,000 and $112,000 for the Time and Performance-Based 
Units. The compensation expense related to the Time-Based Units is expected to be recognized over an 
average remaining period of 3.02 years. 
 
2016 equity incentive plan 
In April 2016, the Company�s subsidiary, CNA Acquisition LLC, adopted an equity incentive plan (2016 
Equity Incentive Plan) to provide an incentive to attract, retain and reward eligible employees. The plan 
provided for the issuance of profits interests of up to 4,209,722 common units of CNA. The profits 
interests were granted with no exercise price or payment by the employee (grantee) and had no voting 
rights. The profits interest units generally vested ratably over a three to five-year period (as defined in the 
equity incentive plan) and were subject to the employee�s continuous employment with the Company. Any 
portion not vested as of the grantee termination date were immediately forfeited. In connection with the 
June 30, 2021 change in control, stocks awarded under the 2016 Equity Incentive Plan were deemed fully 
vested and exercised. 
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Note 10. Equity Compensation (Continued) 

The fair value of the profits interest was estimated using the fair value of the Company utilizing a market 
approach. The fair value measurements were based on significant inputs that are not observable, and are 
considered a Level 3 item under the fair value hierarchy. There were no profit interests granted during the 
year ended December 31, 2020. During the predecessor period and the year ended December 31, 2020, 
compensation costs of approximately $0 and $107,000, respectively, were charged to operations. 
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California 

Department of Financial Protection and Innovation 
320 West 4th Street Suite 750 
Los Angeles, CA 90013 

2101 Arena Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
1-866-275-2677 

Ask.DFPI@dfpi.ca.gov

Connecticut 

Securities & Business Investment Division 
Connecticut Department of Banking 
44 Capitol Avenue 
Hartford, Connecticut 06106 

Hawaii 

Hawaii Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
335 Merchant Street, Room 203 
Honolulu, HI 96813 

Illinois 

Office of Attorney General 
Franchise Division 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL  62706 

Indiana 

Indiana Secretary of State 
Securities Division 
302 West Washington, Rm. E-111 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 

Maryland 

Office of the Attorney General 
Securities Division 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202 

Michigan 

Michigan Department of Attorney General 
Consumer Protection Division 
Antitrust and Franchise Unit 
670 Law Building 
Lansing, MI  48913 

Minnesota 

Commissioner of Commerce 
85 Seventh Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 

New York 

NYS Department of Law  
Investor Protection Bureau  
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor 
New York, NY 10005 

North Dakota  

North Dakota Securities Department 
600 East Boulevard, Fourteenth  Floor, Dept 414 
Bismarck, ND  58505-0510 

Rhode Island 

Department of Business Regulation 
Division of Securities 
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Building 69-1 
Cranston, RI 02920 

South Dakota  

Department of Labor and Regulation 
Division of Insurance 
Securities Regulation 
124 South Euclid Suite 104 
Pierre, SD  57501-3185 

Virginia 

State Corporation Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising 
1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Washington 

Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 
P.O. BOX 41200 
Olympia, WA 98504-1200 

Wisconsin 

Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions 
345 W. Washington Avenue 
Madison, WI 53703 



©2024 Coverall North America, Inc. 3 
75495022;1 

AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS

California 

Commissioner Of Financial Protection and Innovation 2101 
Arena Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95834 

Hawaii 

Hawaii Commissioner of Securities 
Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
335 Merchant Street, Room 203 
Honolulu, HI 96813 

Illinois  

Illinois Attorney General 
 500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL  62706 

Indiana 

Administration Office of 
the Secretary of State 
201 State House 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 

Maryland 

Maryland Securities Commissioner 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 

Michigan 

Michigan Department of Commerce 
Corporations and Securities Bureau 
670 Law Building 
Lansing, MI  48913 

Minnesota 

Commissioner of Commerce 
85 Seventh Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 

New York 

New York Department of State 
99 Washington Avenue 
Albany, NY 11231 

North Dakota  

North Dakota Securities Commissioner 
600 East Boulevard, Fourteenth  Floor, Dept 414 
Bismarck, ND  58505-0510 

Rhode Island 

Division of Securities 
1511 Pontiac Avenue, Building 69-1 
Cranston, RI 02920 

South Dakota  

Director of the Division of Insurance-Securities Regulation  
South Euclid Suite 104 
Pierre, SD  57501-3185

Virginia 

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission 
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Washington  

Director of Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 
150 Israel Road SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 

Wisconsin 

Commissioner of Securities of Wisconsin 
345 W. Washington Avenue 
Madison, WI  53703 

An Additional Agent for Service of Process for all states is: 

General Counsel 
Coverall North America, Inc. 

350 SW 12th Avenue, Deerfield Beach, FL 33442 
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Coverall North America, Inc. 
New Franchise Owner Starter-Kit 

Initial Equipment and Supply Package Listi

Package P-3,000 

Section 1-Business Supplies – Estimated Cost $990.001

Reports and Forms 
Customer Acceptance Form                         1 Healthcare & Safety Training Materials 
Customer Site Survey 5 NSC Bloodborne/Airborne Pathogens Course 

Training Book
1 

Sales Brochures                                  5 Healthcare Facility Sales Flyer              5
Special Service Proposal Agreements          5

 Professional Supplies 
Employee Forms & Training Materials Coverall Branded Apparel                      3
Sample Employee Job Description                      1
Employee Job Application                                   1 Franchise Owner ID Badge                           1 

The Official ISSA Cleaning Times        1 Business Cards for your Franchised Business              200 

Employee I-9 Form and Users Guide       1

Section 2- Equipment 
HEPA Backpack Vacuum 1 Box of Disposable Nitrile Rubber Gloves 1 
Charging Bucket, No-Dip Mop System 1 Door Chock 1
18” Flat Mop Head and Handle                     1 Lobby Broom and Dust Pan 1
Color-coded Microfiber Mop Pads        30 Protective Eyewear 1
Color-coded Microfiber Towels                    40 Fluid Spill Kit 1
Cleaning Trowel   1 Trash Barrel on Wheels 1
Carpet Spotting Kit                 1 Trash Barrel Caddy bag 1
Window Squeegee 1 Bowl Brush & Caddy 1
Window Washer Strip Sleeve 1 Wet Floor Signs 2
Trapezoid Glass Pads 6 16” Flat Trapezoid Head and Handle 1

__________________________________________ 
Section 3 Chemicals 

Disinfectant/All Purpose Cleaner 
Concentrate

1 
Bottle

SDS and Labels for Above Material                
1 set

Neutral Floor Cleaner Concentrate 1 
Bottle

Spray Bottles                                                    
6 

Disinfectant Bowl Cleaner 6 
Bottles

Spray Nozzle Triggers                                     
6 

Glass/Multipurpose Cleaner 1 
Bottle

Pump Sprayer                                            
1 

1Plus Applicable Sales Tax 
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Coverall North America, Inc. 
New Franchise Owner Starter-Kit 

Initial Equipment and Supply Package Listi

Package P-4,000 

Section 1-Business Supplies – Estimated Cost $1,400.001

Reports and Forms 
Customer Acceptance Form 1 Healthcare & Safety Training Materials 
Customer Site Survey 5 NSC Bloodborne/Airborne Pathogens Course 

Training Book
1 

Sales Brochures 5 Healthcare Facility Sales Flyer   5
Special Service Proposal Agreements 5

 Professional Supplies 
Employee Forms & Training Materials Coverall Branded Apparel                      4
Sample Employee Job Description 1
Employee Job Application 1 Franchise Owner ID Badge                           1 

The Official ISSA Cleaning Times 1 Business Cards for your Franchised Business              200 

Employee I-9 Form and Users Guide 1

Section 2- Equipment 
HEPA Backpack Vacuum 1 Box of Disposable Gloves 1 
High Dust Wand Kit 1 Door Chock 1
Charging Bucket, No-Dip Mop System 2 Lobby Broom and Dust Pan 1
18” Flat Mop Head and Handle                     1 Protective Eyewear 1 

Color-coded Microfiber Mop Pads         66 Fluid Spill Kit 1 
Color-coded Microfiber Towels                    160 Trash Barrel on Wheels 1
Cleaning Trowel               1 Trash Barrel Caddy bag 1
Carpet Spotting Kit                 1 Bowl Brush & Caddy 1
Window Squeegee 1 Wet Floor Signs 2
Window Washer Strip Sleeve 1 Trapezoid Glass Pads 6
16” Trapezoid Head & Handle 1

__________________________________________ 
Section 3 Chemicals 

Disinfectant/All Purpose Cleaner 
Concentrate

1 
Bottle

SDS and Labels for Above Material                
1 set

Neutral Floor Cleaner Concentrate 1 
Bottle

Spray Bottles                                                    
12 

Disinfectant Bowl Cleaner 6 
Bottles

Spray Nozzle Triggers                                     
12 

Glass/Multipurpose Cleaner 1 
Bottle

Pump Sprayer  
1 

1Plus Applicable Sales Tax 
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Coverall North America, Inc. 
New Franchise Owner Starter-Kit 

Initial Equipment and Supply Package Listi

Package P-5,000 

Section 1-Business Supplies – Estimated Cost $1,975.001

Reports and Forms 
Customer Acceptance Form  1 Healthcare & Safety Training Materials  
Customer Site Survey 5 NSC Bloodborne/Airborne Pathogens 

Course Training Book
1 

Sales Brochures                         5 Healthcare Facility Sales Flyer             5
Special Service Proposal Agreements    5

Professional Supplies
Employee Forms & Training Materials  Coverall Branded Apparel                      4 

Sample Employee Job Description                     1
Employee Job Application     1 Franchise Owner ID Badge 1
The Official ISSA Cleaning Times  1 Business Cards for your Franchised 

Business      
200

Employee I-9 Form and Users Guide       1

__________________________________________ 
Section 2- Equipment 

HEPA Backpack Vacuum 2 Box of Disposable Gloves 1 
High Dust Wand Kit 1 Door Chock 1
Charging Bucket, No-Dip Mop System 1 Lobby Broom and Dust Pan 1 

18” Flat Mop Head and Handle                 2 Protective Eyewear 1 
Color-coded Microfiber Mop Pads         78 Fluid Spill Kit 1 

Color-coded Microfiber Towels          184 Trash Barrel on Wheels 1 
Cleaning Trowel  1 Trash Barrel Caddy bag 1
Carpet Spotting Kit  1 Bowl Brush & Caddy 1
Window Squeegee                       1 Wet Floor Signs 2 

Window Washer Strip Sleeve 1 Trapezoid Glass Pads 6
16” Trapezoid Head & Handle 1 Trolley No Dip Mop System 1

__________________________________________ 
Section 3 Chemicals 

Disinfectant/All Purpose Cleaner 
Concentrate

1 
Bottle

SDS and Labels for Above Material   
1 set

Neutral Floor Cleaner Concentrate 1 
Bottle

Spray Bottles                             
12 

Disinfectant Bowl Cleaner 6 
Bottles

Spray Nozzle Triggers      
12 

Glass/Multipurpose Cleaner 1 
Bottle

Pump Sprayer                                            
1 
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1Plus Applicable Sales Tax 

Coverall North America, Inc. 
New Franchise Owner Starter-Kit 

Initial Equipment and Supply Package Listi

Package P-7,000 & Up 

Section 1-Business Supplies - $2,550.001

Reports and Forms 

Customer Acceptance Form              1 Health & Safety Training Materials
Customer Site Survey 5 NSC Bloodborne/Airborne Pathogens Course 

Training Book                   
1 

Sales Brochures  5 Healthcare Facility Sales Flyer              5
Special Service Proposal Agreements       5

 Professional Supplies 
Employee Forms & Training Materials Coverall Branded Apparel                      4
Sample Employee Job Description             1
Employee Job Application     1 Franchise Owner ID Badge                          1
The Official ISSA Cleaning Times     1 Business Cards for your Franchised Business              200

Employee I-9 Form and Users Guide    1

__________________________________________ 
Section 2- Equipment 

HEPA Backpack Vacuum 2 Box of Disposable Gloves 1
Trolley No Dip Mop System 1 Door Chock 1
Charging Bucket, No-Dip Mop System 1 Lobby Broom and Dust Pan 1
18” Flat Mop Head and Handle                      2 Protective Eyewear 1
Color-coded Microfiber Wet Mop Pads        78 Fluid Spill Kit 1
Color-coded Microfiber Towels               184 Trash Barrel on Wheels 1
Cleaning Trowel               1 Trash Barrel Caddy bag 1
Carpet Spotting Kit     1 Bowl Brush & Caddy 1
Window Squeegee 1 Wet Floor Signs 2
Window Washer Strip Sleeve 1 20” Floor Machine175rpm (w/pad holder) 1
Trapezoid Glass Pads 6 16” Trapezoid Head & Handle 1

__________________________________________ 
Section 3 Chemicals 

Disinfectant/All Purpose Cleaner 
Concentrate

1 Bottle SDS and Labels for Above Material             
1 set

Neutral Floor Cleaner Concentrate 1 Bottle Spray Bottles                                                    12 

Disinfectant Bowl Cleaner 6 
Bottles

Spray Nozzle Triggers                                     
12 

Glass/Multipurpose Cleaner 1 Bottle Pump Sprayer 1
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1Plus Applicable Sales Tax_______________________________________
i The items included in Coverall’s Initial Equipment and Supply Package and pricing of each package are subject to 
change, and any changes will be stated in the Coverall Franchised Business Policies and Procedures Manual or written 
notice from us advising you of the changes 
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EXHIBIT E 

LIST OF FRANCHISED BUSINESSES FOR COVERALL AND ITS SERVICE FRANCHISES 
























































































